' SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
November 15, 2018
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, November 15, 2018,
in the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http:/www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website

(http://www bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATR ANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART _
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23™ Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464- 6083 '

Patricia K. Williams
District Secretary




Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire
in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A.  Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of October 25, 2018 (Regular) and
October 25, 2018 (Special).* Board requested to authorize.
B. Resolution Fixing the Employer’s Contribution to California Public
‘ Employees Retirement System Medical Premium for Non-Represented
Employees.* Board requested to adopt.

C. Award of Contract No. 6M3418, Reconditioning of Transit Vehicle
Nickel Cadmium Batteries.* Board requested to. authorize.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes '

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for
Public Comment is provided at the end of the Meeting.)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Allen, Chairperson

A. Award of Agreement No. 6M5131, with Hinderliter, de Llamas and
Associates, for Sales Tax Revenue Collection Services.*
Board requested to authorize. *

B. Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension and Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB) under Consideration by the District.* For information.

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS I
Director Simon, Chairperson

A. Authorization for Negotiation for Sole Sourcc;:Procurement of
Additional Transit Vehicles.* Board requested to authorize.
(TWO-THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED)

B. Sole Source Procurement with Bombardier Transportation for
Software Changes, Testing and System Certification for the West Bay
Line GEALOC Track Signaling Circuit Boards.*
Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available ' ' - 20f4



C. Change Orders to Contract No. 15IF-130A, Powell Street Station
Ceiling Upgrades, with Icenogle Construction Management, Inc.,
for the Procurement and Installation of a Light-Emitting Diode (LED)
Light System.* Board requested to authorize.

D. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-150, Construction of Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Central Warehougse, with Clark
Construction Group - California, LP, for Additional Dump Fees for
Hauling to a Class II Landfill (C.O. No. 10).* Board requested to authorize.

E.  Change Order to Contract No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage
Doors Replacement, with DMZ Builders, to Mitigate Conflicts with
Concurrent Projects (C.O. No. 1).* Board requested to authorize.

F.  Update on Wheel and Rail Profile Optimization.* For information.

G. - Quarterly Performance Report, First Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 — Service
Performance Review.* For information.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS., AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. New Transbay Rail Crossing Update.* For inforrhation.

B.  Recommendation for Deployment of Ford GoBlke at 24th Street Mission
BART.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Discussion of Advertisement Guidelines.* For information.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A.  Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. BOARD MATTERS

A.  Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Govemment Code Section
53232.3(d) are available through the Office of the District Secretary. An
opportunity for Board members to report on their District activities and
observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions. )
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for
consideration at a future Committee or Board Meeting or to request
District staff to prepare items or reports.) B

C. In Memoriam.

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be
commemorated.)

* Attachment available 3 0of4



9. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

10. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones,
Assistant General Manager, Administration; and Martin Gran,
_Chief Employee Relations Officer
Employee Organizations: © (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;
-(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993;
(3) BART Police Officers Association;
(4) BART Police Managers Association;
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021 and
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021,
BART Professional Chapter
(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)
Government Code Section: ~ 54957.6

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

Agency Negotiators: - Directors, Raburn, Keller and Simon

Titles: General Manager, General Counsel, Controller/Treasurer,
and Independent Police Auditor

Gov’t. Code Section: 54957.6

11. OPEN SESSION

A. Compensation and Benefits for District Secretary. Board requested to authorize.
B. Compensation and Benefits for General Manager, General Counsel,

Controller/Treasurer, and Independent Polict Auditor.
Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available ) 4 of 4



DRAFT

SAN FRANCiSCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,824th Meeting
October 25,2018
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 25, 2018, convening at 9:00 a.m.
in the Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided;
Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent:  Director McPartland. Directors Allen and Simon entered the meeting
later.

Consent Calendar item brought before the Board was:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of October 9, 2018 (Special), and
October 11, 2018 (Regular).

Director Saltzman moved that the Minutes of the Meetings of October 9, 2018 (Special) and
October 11, 2018 (Regular), be approved. Director Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —6: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman,
and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent — 3: Directors Allen, McPartland, and Simon.

President Raburn called for Public Comment.

Ben Zariychi addressed the Bdard.

President Raburn announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.

President Raburn brought Board Matters, Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board
At-Large Member before the Board. The item was discussed. - ,

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Richard Corriea
Megan Wachpress

Director Simon entered the meeting.

Erin Armstrong addressed the Board.

Discussion continued. The Board members completed weighted voting nomination forms to
determine the At-Large appointee. Ms. Williams announced that Erin Armstrong was the
applicant receiving the highest score, and Erin Armstrong was appointed At-Large Member of

the BART Police Citizen Review Board for a term expiring on June 30, 2020.

-1-



DRAFT

Director Dufty, Vice Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Fiscal
Year 2019 Short Range Transit Plan/Capital Improvement Program before the Board. Mr. Robert
Powers, Deputy General Manager; Ms. Pamela Herhold, Assistant General Manager,
Performance and Budget; and Mr. Michael Eiseman, Manager, F 1nan01a1 Planning; presented the
item. The item was discussed.

Director Allen entered the meeting.

Director Saltzman moved that the District’s Final Fiscal Year 2019 Short Range Transit
Plan/Capital Improvement Program be adopted and transmitted to the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission and Federal Transit Administration as required. Directors Blalock
-and Simon seconded the motion. Discussion continued. The Motion carried by electronic vote.
Ayes — 6: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes — 1.
Director Raburn. Abstain — 1: Director Allen. Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Robert S. Allen addressed the Board.
Director Keller exited the meeting.

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matters
of Sole Source Procurement of Cubic Ticket Vending Machine Software Upgrade for EMV
(Europay, Mastercard Visa Protocol) (Chip) Payment Cards and Sole Source Procurement of
Ingenico PIN Pads and Readers for EMV TVM (ticket vending machine) as a unit before the
Board. Ms. Tamar Allen, Assistant General Manager, Operations; and Mr. John Yen, Manager of
Computer Systems Engineering, presented the item. The items were discussed.

President Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized to enter into direct negotiations
and to execute a professional services agreement with Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc. to
modify Ticket Vending and Add Fare Machine Software to accept EMV cards and encrypt
cardholder data, in an amount not to exceed $1,850,000. Director Dufty seconded the motion

_ which carried by unanimouis electronic vote. ‘Ayes —7: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn. Noes —0. Absent — 2: Directors Keller and
McPartland.

President Raburn moved that pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20227, the Board finds
that UCP is the single source for the purchase of Ingenico PIN Pads and Readers for
TVMs/AFMs in use by the District and that the General Manager be authorized to negotiate and
award a contract to UCP for the purchase of Ingenico PIN Pads and Readers for TVMs/AFMs, in
an amount not to exceed $750,000, plus-applicable taxes. Director Dufty seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous roll call vote by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes —7: Directors
Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent —2:

- Directors Keller and McPartland.

Director Keller re-entered the Meeting.

Director Simon brought the matter of Change Order No. 288, to Contract No. 01RQ-110,
Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark

-



DRAFT

Construction Group — LP, for New Truck Turntables before the Board. Ms. Allen; and Mr.
Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Seismic Retrofit Capital, presented the item.

Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No.
288, New Truck Turntables, for an amount not to exceed $300,000, for Contract No. 01RQ-110,
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction.
Director Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8:
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn. Noes — 0.
Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Director Simon brought the matter of Change Order No. 312, to Contract No. 01RQ-110,
Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark
Construction Group — California, LP, for Milestone No. 3 Time Extension before the Board.
Ms. Allen and Mr. Horton presented the item.

Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No.
312, Milestone No. 3 Time Extension, in an amount not to exceed $3,150,000, and extend the
Contract completion date 150 calendar days for Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction. Director Dufty seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Director Simon brought the matter of Agreements for Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Service
Plan before the Board. Ms. Allen; Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior Planner; and Mr. Joel Soden,
Senior Transportation Engineer, presented the item. The item was discussed.

Charlotta Wallace addressed the Board.

Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to enter into agreements with
bus operators to provide early morning bus services for an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 per
year, for a base period of up to three years, plus up to three one-year extensions. Director Simon
seconded the motion.

Director Saltzman requested an amendment to the motion that staff report on service, ridership
and outreach to the Board of Directors monthly from January through April 2019 and thereafter
twice per year.

Directors Blalock and Simon accepted the amendment.

The motion carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Director Simon brought the matter of Mobility As A Service (MAAS) before the Board. Ms.
Allen; Mr. Ravi Misra, Assistant General Manager, Technology/ Chief Information Officer; and
Mr. Travis Engstrom, Assistant Chief Information Officer, presented the item. The item was
discussed.

Randall Glock addressed the Board.



DRAFT

Director Simon brought the matter of Surveillance Technology Approvals before the Board. Ms.
Allen; Mr. Engstrom; and Mr. Jefre Riser, Manager of Electrical and Communications
Engineering, presented the item. The item was discussed. :

Director Dufty made the following motions as a unit:

1. That the Board determines that the benefits to the community of the BART Mobile
Applications and Related Modifications to BART.gov outweigh the costs, and the
proposed use policy will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. The
General Manager or her designee is authorized to proceed with the use of BART
Mobile Applications & Related Modification to BART.gov as described in the
attached documents.

2. That the Board determines that the benefits to the community of the BART Closed
Circuit Television (CCTV) technology outweigh the costs, and the proposed use
policy will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. The General
Manager or her designee is authorized to proceed with use of BART Closed
Circuit Television (CCTV) as described in the attached documents.

3. That the Board determines that the benefits to the community of the BART CCTV
Public Video Monitors technology outweigh the costs, and the proposed use policy
will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. The General Manager or
her designee is authorized to proceed with the use of BART CCTV Public Video
Monitors as described in the attached documents.

4. That the Board determines that the benefits to the community of the BART Public
Emergency Phone Towers technology outweigh the costs, and the proposed use
policy will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. The General
Manager or her designee is authorized to proceed with the use of BART Public
Emergency Phone Towers as described in the attached documents.

Director Blalock seconded the motions, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —8:
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.
Absent — 1: Director McPartland. (The policies are attached and hereby made a part of these
Minutes.)

Director Simon brought the matter of Procurement of Additional Transit Vehicles before the
Board. Mr. Duncan Watry, Project Manager, Systems Development; and Mr. John Garnham,
Group Manager, Rail Vehicle Capital Program, presented the item. The item was discussed.

President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Report.

General Manager Grace Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she
had participated in, ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions
items.

President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
Memoriam.

Director Dufty reported he had attended a Salesforce Workshop and reported participating'in a
walkthrough of 24" Street/Mission BART Station with San Francisco Supervisor Ronen,

4-



DRAFT

President Raburn and San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency staff. He requested that
the District not move forward with the Ford Go Bike plans at 24" Street/Mission BART Stat1on
to respect the Latino Heritage District.

Director Simon reported regularly visiting the RISE youth organization near the Richmond
BART Station. She thanked BART staff for assistance received with the Transportation
Committee for Transition Team for San Francisco Mayor London Breed.

Director Saltzman reported she had attended a Muni Transit Assistance Program (MTAP) ride-
along with Directors Allen and Josefowitz, the Grand Opening of the new entrance to the
Downtown Berkeley Station, an AB2923 meeting at the North Berkeley Station, and a
community meeting at the North Berkeley Station on Transit Oriented Development concepts;
and she spoke at the Contra Costa Transportation Authority Citizen Advisory Committee on
Measure J and Measure RR funded projects.

Director Josefowitz reported he had attended the MTAP ride along and would like staff to look at -
the budgetary costs for this type of program.

Director Allen reported she had attended the MTAP ride along, had given a presentation to the
Lafayette Rotary, and had addressed the Lafayette City Council on AB2923.

President Raburn reported he had attended the Oakland African American Chamber Luncheon
. and a meeting in the South Bay on the future of transportation.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received.

President Raburn announced that Item 10, Closed Session, would be continued to the Spemal
Meeting of the Board of Dlrectors

The Meeting was adjourned at 12:17 p.m.

Patricia K. Williams
District Secretary






Surveillance Use Policy
BART Mobile Applications &
Related Modifications to
BART.gov

BART Office of the Chief Information Officer
OCIO-BMAARMTB-SUP-01

21 Day BART Board Notice —October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Mobile Applications & Related Modifications to
BART.gov

A. Purpose

This section should include: The purpose(s) that the surveillance technology is intended to advance,

The proposed BART Mabile Applications (BART Official App & BART to Airport App) and related
modifications to BART.gov, will be hereafter referred to as the “BART Applications” in this document.
The BART Applications will be used for providing consistent transit information, transit incentives and
maps to BART riders. In addition, the BART Applications will also be used to handle financial
transactions, provide proof of payment, and aide the BART Police Department in payment and carpool
enforcement.

Many of the services provided by the BART Official App & the BART to Airport App will also be offered
on BART.gov, to help the District provide a consistent brand experience for BART patrons. :

B. Authorized Use

This section should include: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes required prior to such use, and the uses that
are prohibjted, .

The BART Applitations shall be used in a lawful manner as identified in Section A above. In addition,
the following uses shall also be authorized:

» Navigation

e Trip Planning

» Fare, Parking and Bike Storage Transactions
Transaction Enforcement

Transit System Analysis & Demand Management
Providing & Redeeming Incentives

e Transit Information & Communication

s Surveys

All other uses not referenced above shall be prohlblted except as defined in the District's Survelllance
Technology Ordinance.

C. Data Collection

This section should include: The information that can be collected by the surveillance technology.

The following data may be obtained through the BART Applications:
e Name
»  Address
¢  Phone Number
o  Email Address
» Payment Card Details
o Clipper Card Details (Serial Number, Entry/EX|t Tlmestamps)
e Username
e Password
e Social Media Information*
e Parking Stall Number & User Defined License Plate for Registered Parking :
¢ User Defined Location (Favorite Station, Station Start, Station Stop, Address, Point of Interest)

Page 2 of 5



- Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Mobile Applications & Related Modifications to |
BART.gov

» GPS Location

e Radio Frequency Identification (RFID)

* Near Field Communication (NFC)

» Bluetooth Connection/Broadcast Information
» Barcode/QR Code and similar Data

Any data collected by the BART Applications must be used and handled pursuant to this policy. Data
from the BART Applications shall not be used for personal purposes or to surveil any particular
individual or group without probable cause or a court order. Data shall not be used to intentionally
violate anyone's right to privacy; and shall not be used to harass, intimidate, or discriminate against
any individual or group.

*The District's single sign on functionality allows integration with social providers such as Google,
Facebook, PayPal, Amazon and Box. This integration also allows sharing of basic profile information
when using a social provider as the single sign-on account logon. This functionality is currently
available, but not yet implemented. :

D. Data Access

This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rules and
processes required prior to access or uise of the information,

o  Access to the BART Applicatibns data is limited to authorized BART employees, BART service
providers and the BART Advertising Franchise pursuant to this policy.

e Data may be downloaded and released to a third party as required by law. See section H
below. :

E. Data Protection

This section should include: The safeguards that ,ororea‘ information from unauthorized access, including encryption and
access control mechanisms.

The BART Office of the Chief Information Officer sets standards for BART data protection in an
Information Security Procedure Manual that includes standards within ISO/IEC 27002, NIST, PCI-DSS
and HIPAA. .

The BART Applications will consist of databases and servers that interact through an Application
Programming Interface (API) between systems in both BART secure on-premise datacenter(s) and
secure cloud environments.

The BART Applications shall utilize encryption technology to transmit any Personally Identifiable
Information and store all payment related information in at least a Level 2 Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standard (PCI-DSS), as applicable.

Access to the BART Applications Backend Enterprise Architecture is limited to the following: -
 BART Database, Server & Application Administrators -
»  BART Cybersecurity Engineers
*  BART Supervisor of Business Systems Applications
e BART Assistant Chief Information Officer over Web & Mobile
e BART Service Providers

Page 3 of 5



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Mobile Apphcatlons & Related Modifications to
BART.gov

The BART Applications Backend Enterprise Architecture will be handled only by those that have been
trained in its operation.

F. Data Retention

This section shoutd include. The time period, if any, for which information collected by the surveiliance technology will be
routinely retained, the reason such retention is reguiarly deleted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must
be met to retain information beyond that period,

Data generated from the BART Applications shall be stored in the BART Applications Backend
Enterprise Architecture. Non-Personally Identifiable Information may be retained indefinitely unless
otherwise deleted by the BART Office of the Chief Information Officer when the allocated hardware has
reached its memory capacity. Individual Transit Account and Personally Identifiable Information may be
retained for a maximum of four years and six months from the date of individual account termination.
Active accounts are retained as long as they are active.

The data retention period aligns with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Clipper Policy for
data retention. Data collected is to be used for historical analysis and transit use by BART personnel.
Data is retained on a digital storage system with a set retention schedule which is automatically
enforced by the same digital system.

G. Public Access

This section should include: How coflected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal
defendants,

Requests for information under the California Public Records Act should be filed with the Office of the
District Secretary. Email records@bart.gov. Phone (510) 464-6080, Fax (510) 464-6011. Mail Public
Records Request c/o District Secretary BART 300 Lakeside Drive 23" Floor Oakland, CA 94612.

H. Third Party Data Sharing

This section should include: If and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information,
including any required justification or legal standard necessary to do so and any obligations imposed on the recipient of the
information.

Other than data subject to public release under the California Public Records Act, data may be shared
with BART service providers and the BART Advertising Franchise pursuant to this policy.

Staff will adhere to the District's Safe Transit Policy.

I. Training .
This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individual authorized to use the surveillance
technology or to access information collected by the surveillance technology.

Training for access and administration of the BART Applications Backend Enterprise Architecture will be
provided by BART internal staff associated with custom application development, and where necessary
related service providers. Training will be limited to staff assigned to the administration of the BART
Applications.

Page 4 of 5



Proposed Surveillance Use Pollcy BART Mobile Applications & Related Modifications to
BART.gov

J. Auditing and Oversight

This section should include: The mechanisms to ensuwre that the Surveiliance Use Policy is fo//owed including internal
personnel assigned to ensure compliance with the policy, internal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to
information coflected by the technology, technical measures to tonitor for inisuse, any independent person or entity with
oversight authority.

Pursuant to the BART Chief Information Officer’s Information Security Procedure Manual, the BART
Applications Backend Enterprise Architecture will be subject to BART's cybersecurity controls,
enterprise logging, administrator activity monitoring and Level 2 Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards (PCI-DSS), as applicable.

As defined in the District's Surveillance Technology Ordinance, an annual accounting of this

surveillance technology will be included in the District’s “Surveillance Annual Report”, in a public
hearing on or before August 1, before the BART Board of Directors.

Page 5 of 5






Surveillance Impact Report

BART Mobile Applications & Related
Modifications to BART.gov

BART Office of the Chief Information Officer
OCIO-BMAARMTB-SIR-01

21 Day BART Board Notice — October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART Mobile Applications & Related
Modifications to BART.gov

A. Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and
how it generally works.

The proposed BART Mobile Applications (BART Official App & BART to Airport App) and related modifications to
BART.gov, will be hereafter referred to as the “BART Applications” and are intended to be released as publicly
available Android and i0S mobile apps that use an Application Programming Interface (API) to provide transit
information, transit incentives and maps to BART riders. In addition, the BART Applications will also be used to
handle financial transactions, provide proof of payment and-aide the BART Police Department in payment and
carpool enforcement.

The BART Applications are intended to provide:
o Navigation
Trip Planning
Fare, Parking and Bike Storage Transactions
Transaction Enforcement
Transit System Analysis & Demand Management
Providing & Redeeming Incentives
Transit Information & Communication
Surveys

As a for-pay transportation agency, BART intends to use a combination of locational data and related fmanmal
transactions to allow BART riders to more easily plan and execute their trips on BART.

BART staff has determined that, “Locational” data is a key element in the core function of the BART
Applications, as riders use the apps to plan their trips to and from BART stations and surrounding points of
interest using the “My Location” feature of their mobile device and other user defined fields such as station
pick lists. :

Sample Images of the, BART.gov Mobile Re-Design & “Plan Trip” portion of the BART Applications _

Bay Area

. . SCHEDULES ~ STATIONS  USINGBART ~ FARES ~ NEWS  ABOUT
Rapid Transit

L

Trip Planner Real Time Departures Schedules & Map

@
\
-\

Page 2 of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Mobile Applications & Related
Modifications to BART. gov

All data use is subject to the ”Surveillance Use Policy” for the BART Applications, submitted with this
“Surveillance Impact Report”.

B. Information on the proposed purpose(s) for the surveillance
technology.

The proposed BART Applications will be used by BART for the following purposes:

» To Provide Navigation Services
o Provide BART riders with modern navigation to and from BART stations, in and around BART
public facilities, and to user defined points of interest and destinations.
¢ To Provide Trip Planning Services
o Provide BART riders with the necessary tools to plan their trips, view relevant fares and view
_ departure and arrival times.
» To Manage Fare, Parking and Bike Storage Transactions
o Provide BART riders with the ability to purchase select products/services through their mobile
device, store digital tickets/receipts and provide digital proof of payment.
e To Resolve Payment Issues & Conduct Payment Enforcement '
o Provide BART Operations employees and the BART Police Department with the ability to verify
payment, troubleshoot rider payment issues, and conduct payment enforcement.
e To Perform Transit System Analysis
o Analyze transit system use, trip preferences, demand management, frequency and duration to
better enhance the service provided by BART. :
» To Provide Transit Use Incentives
o Provide incentives such as points, discounts, and special offers to encourage transit system
use, off-peak ridership, frequency and to reduce crowding.
e To Redeem Incentives
’ o Provide BART riders with the ability to redeem incentives such as select gift cards or other
forms of incentives.
s To Provide Official Transit Information & Communication
o Provide BART with a platform to send official correspondence to participating mobile devices
such as, BART Service Alerts, Safety Messages, Trip Related Tips, Dlrectlons and Advertising.
e To Conduct BART Surveys
o Widen participation and/or frequency of BART surveys by sending digital surveys through the.
BART Applications.

C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed.
The BART Applications are intended to be released as publicly available Android and i0S mobile apps and
related modifications to BART.gov that encompass all geographic areas of BART Operation, and they are

intended to be updated from time to time to include all future geographic extensions of BART service(s).

Due to the nature and portability of installed mobile apps, users who download the BART Applications, will
have the ability to view content within the app from anywhere in the world, and at all times.

Page 3 of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART Mobile Applications & Related
Modifications to BART gov

D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the eqmpment is used to deter
~or detect crime.

The BART AppIications will be used to provide BART Operations employees and the BART Police Department
with the ability to verify payment, troubleshoot rider payment issues, and conduct payment enforcement.

“E. An assessment identifying any potential impact on privacy rights and
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public.

The BART Applications are voluntary, user installed applications subject to modern app store restrictions for the
voluntary use.of location services, push notifications and other transmissions. As such, the use of the BART
Applications do not collect any surreptitious information or violate the 4" Amendment protections for any -
individuals.

The BART Applications are subject to BART's Surveillance Technology Ordinance and a specific Surveillance Use
Policy that has been publicly noticed and presented to the BART Board for approval.

F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial
purchase, personnel and other ongoing cots, and any current or
potential sources of funding.

The BART Applications were under construction, and nearly ready for release, prior to the September 2018
approval of the BART Surveillance Technology Ordinance. However, due to the Board's adoption of the
Ordinance, the BART Mobile Applications public launch has been delayed until the requirements of the
Ordinance have been met, including the creation and approval of both a “Surveillance Use Policy”, and
“Surveillance Impact Report”.

App Component Budget Fund Ongoing Cost
BART Incentives $500,000 Federal Grant
$475,000 BART Funds |
Mobile Application $400,819 BART Funds | .
Multi-Modal Trip Planner : - $98,500 BART Funds $98,500
BART to Airport App ) $131,719 BART Funds
Single Sign-On $163,950 BART Funds $146,250.
Total - $1,769,988 , $244,750

G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data
gathered by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party
vendor on an ongoing basis.

Yes. Data from the BART Applications will be handled and stored by a third-party on an ongoing basis.
Examples of this include connections to the BART Application Programming Interface (API) that provide specific
customer centered integrations for the use of Credit Card Information, Clipper Card Information, and the

Page 4 of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART Mobile Applications & Related
Modifications to BART.gov

storage of Usernames and Passwords to enable Single-Sign On (SSO) between elements of the BART
Applications. :

Access to the BART Applications data is limited to authorized BART employees, BART service providers and the
BART Advertising Franchise pursuant to the “Surveillance Use Policy” for the BART Applications.

The BART Applications shall utilize encryption technology to transmit any Personally Identifiable Information
and store all payment related information in at least a Level 2 Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard
(PCI-DSS), as applicable.

H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a -
new technology or not) considered before deciding to use the
proposed surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits
associated with each alternative and an explanation of the reasons
why each alternative is inadequate or undesirable.

In developing the concept for the BART Applications, BART staff looked at the following alternatives.

Public API Strategy
In the past, BART has used a Public Application Programming Interface (API) strategy to allow the public market
to develop commercial apps for BART. Although this effort has created a wide variety of commercially available
applications, BART cannat ensure the uptime, accuracy, security or consistency of the data and messaging
provided by these externally managed products. In addition, the commercial app developers cannot process
payments to BART or provide riders with tickets.

As the world has migrated further into a mobile centric web browsing base, and grown more accustomed to
digital payment, BART has recognized a need to enter this space, and provide a dedicated mobile app to better
manage BART's message, service offerings and payments.

BART has recognized that the transportation world is rapidly evolving, and without a convenient mobile
interface, BART is more likely to lose market share to other service providers.

Modifications to Existing Fare Infrastructure & Signage

BART has examined the costs and complexities involved with making modlflcatlons to existing fare
infrastructure and signage and found that the Mobile Application alternative is far more cost effective and
efficient for both the rider and BART administrator. In addition, the introduction of new Mobile Application
technology opens the door to a greater expansion of foreign language support, currency support, disability
support for the hearing impaired and blind, as well as augmented reality and rich web experiences when using
a smartphone camera to interact with a BART journey.

Page S of 6



~ Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART Mobile Appllcatlons & Related
Modifications to BART.gov

I. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law
enforcement entities have had with the proposed technology,
including information about the effectiveness, any known adverse
information about the technology such as unanticipated costs,
failures, civil rights or civil liberties issues.

Although BART's Application Programming interface (API) is highly BART specific, many of the core
technologies that BART intends to use are currently employed around the world. Agencies such as SFMTA,
SamTrans, CalTrain, LA Metro, WMATA, DART, Denver RTD, New Orleans RTA, TriMet, Hamburg, Berlin,
Stuttgart, Aschaffenburg, and others have leveraged modern smartphone technology including but not limited
to GooglePay and ApplePay to provide more efficient and convenient ways to plan trips, make payments, and -
provide a wide variety of proof of payment options to transit operators such as secure visual inspections and
electronic access to fare gates.

BART is not aware of any known adverse information about the anticipated technology such as unanticipated

costs, failures, civil rights or civil liberties issues associated with the use outlined in the BART Applications
Surveillance Use Policy and this Surveillance Impact Report.

Page 6 of 6



Surveillance Use Policy
BART Closed Circuit
Television (CCTV)

BART Maintenance & Engineering
ME-BCCTV-SUP-01

21 Day BART Board Notice —October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice ~ October 10, 2018
'BART Board Meeting ~ October 25, 2018




Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

A. Purpose

This section shoutd include: The purpose(s) that the surveiliance technology is intended to advance.

The use of cameras based on closed-circuit television (CCTV) technology has proven effective in
increasing the confidence of the community in public transport and improving the protection of
patrons, employees, railcars, and critical infrastructure. The CCTV system captures and records video
images of Passengers. It serves the following key purposes:

*  Reduces the fear of crime and reassures the public and employees

» Prevents, deters and detects crime, damage of infrastructure and vehicles, public
disorder, unlawful behavior and inappropriate conduct.

e Actas a risk management tool against fare evasion and as a defense against
fraudulent claims, particularly for individuals alleging injury during accidents.

* Aid in dispute mediation, complaint resolution, accident investigation, employee
monitoring, etc.

*  Monitor, identify, apprehend and prosecute offenders for criminal offences, criminal
damage, public disorder, road way accidents and harassment.

e Investigate complaints or offences and provide evidence upon which to take criminal,
_ civil and disciplinary actions.

» Collect passenger and transport data to monitor and support network planning

objectives and initiatives.

Location of cameras
The cameras are generally installed, but not limited to, the following locations:
e Stations (including all areas for ingress and egress)
» Parking Lots and Structures
e Public areas of BART facilities
e Joint use area’s
e BART Board Room
e Revenue Vehicles

Location of cameras not included ‘
e District wide capital improvement projects contracted to third party
e Secure areas not accessible to the public.

B. Authorized Use

This section should inclide: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes required prior to such use, and the uses that
are prohibited,

The CCTV security cameras and the images/video they capture shall be used for BART business
purposes only, including the uses identified in Section 1 of this Policy, and not for personal use or other
non-BART uses. The use of the security cameras shall be 24 hours a day, 7 days per week, and 365
days per year within all San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District properties and adjacent properties
not owned by BART where the image is captured during normal surveillance of BART property. The
security cameras and their recordings shall be used in a lawful manner. The cameras shall not be used
in areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy, such as restrooms, and shall not be used to
harass, intimidate, or discriminate against any individual or group.

Page 2 of 6



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

For purposes of this Use Policy, BART business shall include use for BART administrative,

civil, and criminal investigations and monitoring activity to protect against harm to persons or _
property. It shall be permissible for data collected from the cameras to be used for the following public
safety and BART investigation purposes:

e Toassist in identifying and preventing threats to persons and property.

» To assist in identifying, apprehending, and prosecuting offenders. _

e To assist in gathering evidence for administrative, civil, and criminal investigations
and court actions.

e To help public safety personnel respond to emergency events. .

o To assist in investigating and resolving staff and customer complaints and/or issues
relating to conduct of the public or employees

BART management shall be permitted to review images or video footage to protect BART's

technology equipment, assets, and electronic information; and to respond to law enforcement inquiries,
to investigate complaints by employees and customers, and to provide local law enforcement
authorities with images or video clips of potential illegal or suspicious activity. BART staff will adhere
to the District's Safe Transit Policy.

CCTV analytics are prohibited unless explicitly approved through the Surveillance Ordinance process.

- C. Data Collection

This section should include: The information that can be collected by the surveillance technology.
BART's CCTV system shall collect and record audio, video and still photography images.

There are three conditions under which BART records audio. The first is in the operators cab of a train.
This instance could result in a passenger who approaches an operator with an open window during a
station stop to be recorded. The second is during an emergency event on a train. When the operator
activates the emergency button on the new train cars visual and audio are recorded in all cars on the
train until the train come to a stop. Finally, on the new fleet of train cars, when a passenger activates
the intercom audio is recorded. The recording stops as soon as the intercom call is ended. Audio
records are stored on a closed loop system that normally over rides after 14 days.

D. Data Access

This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rufes and
processes required prior to access or use of the information.

Access to live images and live video footage shall be restricted to:

»  All persons designated by the BART Police Department as video surveillance system
users

*  BART personnel involved in the operation, installation and maintenance of the CCTV
system.

e Operational Control Center - 0CC

e  Customer Access

¢ Office of Independent Police Auditor

e Station Agents

e Operations Planning

Page 3 of 6



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

» BART Management

E. Data Protectlon

This section should jnclude: The safeguards that protect /nfor/ndtmn from unauthorized access, including encrypiion and
. access control mechanisms.

BART shall maintain data collected by CCTV System in a secure location where physical
access is limited to authorized individuals and includes physical access protections and/or
firewall protections from external intrusion.

F. Data Retention

This section should include: The time period if any, for which information collected by the surveillance fechno/ogy will be
routinely retained, the reason such retention is reguiarly defeted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must
be met to retain information beyond that period,

BART shall retain/stored data collected from the CCTV system per BART Policy 707.

707.1.5 VIDEO STORAGE CAPABILITY

Structure and facility images captured from the video surveillance system will automatically be
downloaded onto a secure data storage system where they will be stored based on the systems' design
and recording capabilities before being overwritten by new data; which varies from seven (7) to thirty
(30) days. The design of some legacy camera systems in District facilities will only record video when
the camera is being actively monitored by an authorized user.

Train car video recorders store images for two (2) to seven (7) days before being overwritten.
This video image storage time frame is based on the various recording systems design, capabilities, and
District resources.

G. Public Access

This section should include: How collected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal
defendants.

BART shall grant Public access to data collected from the CCTV system per BART Policy 707.

707.1.8 RELEASE OF VIDEO IMAGES TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC

All video images/data shall be used for District operations, law enforcement or public safety purposes
only; except as required by law, subpoenas or other court process, such data will not otherwise be
disclosed/released by the BART Police Department without the consent of the Chief of Police.

Department employees shall not release any information, including capabilities regarding the Districts
CCTV systems to the public without prior authorization from the Chief of Police, or the appropriate
designee. Personnel shall not release the Video Recovery Personnel telephone number or email address
to members of the public.

707.1.9 REQUESTS FOR VIDEO IMAGES FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Persons that have a subpoena or preservation letter, and are interested in requesting video footage,
shall be directed to the Department's Records Division during normal business hours, or via fax at 510-
464-7089.

Page 4 of 6



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

Persons that do not have a subpoena or preservation letter and are interested in requesting video
footage are to be directed to the District Secretary's Office at 510-464-6000 or via fax at 510-464-

6011.

Page 5 of 6



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

H. Third Party Data Sharing

This section should inclide: If and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information,
including any required justification or legal standard necessary to do so and any obligations imposed on the recipient of the
information.

In response to subpoenas issued by the defendant
Pursuant to a Court Order

Criminal Investigations by Law Enforcement Agencies
Staff will -adhere to the District's Safe Transit Policy.

I. Training

This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individual authorized to use the surveillance
technology or to access information collected by the surveillance technofogy.

Training for access and administration of the BART CCTV system will be provided by BART internal staff
and where necessary related service providers. Training will be limited to staff assigned to the
operation, installation, maintenance and administration of the BART CCTV System.

J. Auditing and Oversight

This section should include: The mechanisms to ensure that the Surveillance Use Policy is followed, including internal
personnel assigned to ensure compliance with the policy, internal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to
infortation coflected by the technology, technical measures to monitor for misuse, any independent person or entity with
oversight authority.

The BART Police Department shall oversee the BART CCTV.System to ensure compliance with the
Policy, designate personnel who shall have access to the camera system and ensure that access to the
data complies with this Policy.

A log shall be maintained that records when access to image/video data is requested. This shall include
the date, time, data record accessed, and staff member involved.

Page 6 of 6



Surveillance Impact Report
BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

BART Maintenance & Engineering
ME-BCCTV-SIR-01

21 Day BART Board Notice — October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

A. Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and
how it generally works.

CCTV (closed-circuit television) is a TV system in which signals are not publicly distributed but are monitored,
primarily for surveillance and security purposes. CCTV relies on strategic placement of cameras, and observation
of the camera's input on monitors. Because the cameras communicate with monitors and/or video recorders
across private communication links, they gain the designation "closed-circuit” to indicate that access to their
content is limited by design only to those able to see it.

The various types of cameras that are employed for public surveillance purposes include visible and semi-visible,
each having its own purpose. Visible cameras are intentionally designed to be visible to the public and for the
most part, one can easily detect what is being recorded by the direction of the camera. Semi-visible cameras
have become increasingly more common. These cameras have a dome-shaped covering that prevents the public
from identifying the direction the camera is facing. For crime prevention efforts, this type of camera is more
effective for deterrence purposes because would-be offenders are unable to determine whether they are being
recorded and may therefore refrain from criminal activity due to fear of apprehension.

Sample Image of Semi-Visible CCTV Camera

B. Information on the proposed purpose(s) for the surveillance
technology.

The use of cameras based on closed-circuit television (CCTV) technology has proven effective in increasing the
confidence of the community in public transport and improving the protection of patrons, employees, railcars,
and critical infrastructure. The CCTV system captures and records video images of Passengers. It serves the
following key purposes:

» Reduces the fear of crime and reassures the public and employees

Page 2 of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report —- BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

Prevents, deters and detects crime, damage of infrastructure and vehicles, public disorder,
unlawful behavior and inappropriate conduct.

Act as a risk management tool against fare evasion and as a defense against fraudulent
claims, particularly for individuals alleging injury during accidents.

Aid in dispute mediation, complaint resolution, accident investigation, employee monitoring,
etc.

Monitor, identify, apprehend and prosecute offenders for criminal offences, criminal damage,
public disorder, road way accidents and harassment.-

-Investlgate complaints or offences and provide evidence upon which to take criminal, civil and
disciplinary actions.

Collect passenger and transport data to monitor and support network planning objectives and
initiatives.

C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed.

A10 — Lake Merritt
A20 — Fruitvale

A30 — Coliseum

A40Q - San Leandro
A50 - Bay Fair

A60 — Hayward

A70 — South Hayward
A80 - Union City
A90 — Fremont

L10 - Castro Valley
L20 - West Dublin
L30 - Dublin / Pleasanton
K10 — 12th Street
K20 — 19th Street
K30 — MacArthur
R10 — Ashby

R20 — Berkeley

R30 - North Berkeley
R40 - El Cerrito Plaza
R50 - El Cerrito Del Norte
R60 — Richmond

C10 - Rockridge

(20 - Orinda

(30 - Lafayette

C40 — Walnut Creek
(50 — Pleasant Hill
€60 — Concord

C70 - North Concord
C80 - Pittsburg ‘
M10 — West Oakland
M16 — Embarcadero
M20 ~ Montgomery

Page 3 0of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

M30 - Powell

M40 — Civic Center

M50 - 16th Street

M60 - 24th Street

M70 - Glen Park ,
M80 - Balboa Park ‘ /
M90 - Daly City ' ' :
W10 - Colma

W20 - South San Francisco

W30 - San Bruno

W40 — Millbrae

Y10 -SFO

S$10 - Irvington (Future)

520 - Warm Springs

5S40 — Milpitas

S50 — Berryessa -

E20 - Pittsburg City

E30 — Antioch

(88 /E10 — Transfer PIatform

BART Board Room

Oakland Airport Connector

Revenue Vehicles

All future stations

Hercules (Bus Park-and-Ride)

Isabel (Livermore) {Park-and-Ride)

Laughlin (Livermore) (Park-and-Ride)

Irvington (Fremont) (future station)

Brentwood

D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the eqmpment is used to deter
~ or detect crime. *

The Closed-Circuit Television System is intended as a District wide security system having amongst other
functions the purpose of prevention, deterrence and detections. The system will target PART 1 crimes as
- measured by the BART Police Performance Measurements monthly report and the reported data from the BART
official monthly FBI Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program.

E. An assessment identifying any potenﬁal impact on privacy rights and
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public.

BART recognizes that all people have an inalienable right to privacy and is committed to protecting and
safeguarding this right. BART will not capture audio and still or video footage of persons in areas where there is
an expectation of privacy without the individual’s permission, unless responding to a natural disaster or District
wide emergency.

Page 4 of 6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial
purchase, personnel and other ongoing cots, and any current or
potential sources of funding.

Initial Purchase Cost
Based on a budget generated by BART, the cost is approxmately $12.3 million.’

Personnel Costs
BART personnel will provide installation for the Closed-Circuit Television System, the cost is
approximately$3.2 million at normal BART labor rates.

Ongoing Costs _ :
The ongoing costs associated with the deployment of Closed Circuit Television System are for normal

preventative and corrective maintenance.
The anticipated lifespan of the system is about Ten (10) years. However, with proper maintenance and lack
of vandalism staff anticipates the useful operational lifespan of the system could be extended.

Potential Sources of Funding

FTA Security Grant
Operating Funds
Other Grants Services
Private Investments

G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data
gathered by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party
vendor on an ongoing basis.

Yes. Third party vendor support requires the use.of log files and sample image data to be collected for analysis
of errors and system malfunctions. The data is not stored after maintenance is complete.

H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a
new technology or not) considered before deciding to use the
proposed surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits
associated with each alternative and an explanation of the reasons
why each alternative i is inadequate or undesirable.

BART examined two types of technology in the implementation of the Closed-Circuit Television System, legacy
Analog and current Digital IP Based technology. The benefits and disadvantages are:

Benefits of Analog Cameras
o Cost
e Larger pool of mstallers and vendors
o Simplicity

PageSof6



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

e Advancements in image quality

Disadvantages of Analog Cameras
¢ Image quality is significant less than Digital IP Based Technology
¢ less coverage
e More Cables
» No Encryption

Benefits of IP Cameras (PTZ and Fixed)

Multiple image sensors in one unit.
Decrease in cost

Ease of Installation

Image Resolution

Intelligence and analytics

Security -video is encrypted

Less equipment

Open Platforms

Disadvantages of Digital IP Based Technology (PTZ and Fixed)
o Cost of initial set-up
e Storage
¢ Training for new technologies

“1. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law
enforcement entities have had with the proposed technology,
including information about the effectiveness, any known adverse
information about the technology such as unanticipated costs,
failures, civil rights or civil liberties issues.

While no published experience was known at the time of this writing a report by the ACLU of lllinois dated
February 2011 titled CHICAGO’S VIDEO SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS: A PERVASIVE AND UNREGULATED THREAT
70 OUR PRIVACY included some estimated costs.

e The lChicago Police Department's Police Observation Devices POD cameras cost approximately
$10 million to install. There are 1,260 POD's

o The Chicago Transit Authority is spending $43 million on its cameras.
e The Chicago Public schools spent $4 million to install cameras in 2006 and 2007.

o Chicago’s Navy Pier spent $4.2 million on its camera system in 2009.

Page 6 of 6



Surveillance Use Policy
- BART CCTYV Public Video
Monitors

BART Maintenance & Engineering
~ ME-BCCTVPVM-SUP-01
21:Day BART Board Notice —~October 04,2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

A. Purpose

This section should include: The purpose(s) that the surveillance fechnology is intended to advance.

The CCTV Public Video Monitors may be deployed above the entry fare gate array at BART stations
jointly determined by the BART Police Department and BART Operations to deter fare evasion and
reduce crime in these areas by alerting the public that a CCTV system is operating in these areas.

B. Authorized Use

This section should include: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes required prior to such use, and the uses that
are prohibited, : ‘

* Public information
o Awareness of CCTV surveillance in the BART station.

C. Data Collection

This section shoutd include: The information that can be collected by the surveillance technology.

No data is collected or stored. The CCTV Public Video Monitors are passive devices incapable of Data
Collection.

D. Data Access

This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rules and
processes required prior to access or use of the information.

Access to live CCTV images are available to all persons in a viewable distance of the CCTV Public Video '
Monitors. :

E. Data ProteCtion

This section should incliude: The safequards that protect information from unauthorized access, incliding encryption and
access control mechanisins,

No Data Protection is required. No data is collected or stored. The CCTV Public Video Monitors are
passive devices incapable of Data Collection.

F. Data Retention

This section should include: The time perfod] if any, for which information collected by the surveillance technology will be
routinely retained, the reason such retention is reqularly deleted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must
be met to retain information beyond that period.

No Data Retention occurs. The CCTV Public Video Monitors are passive devices incapable of Data
Collection.

G. Public Access

This section should include: How collected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal
defendants.

Public Access occurs during viewing on Monitor in public areas.

Page 2 of 3



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

H. Third Party Data Sharing

This section should include: If and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information,
inchiding any required justification or fegal standard necessary 1o do so and any obligations imposed on the recipient of the
information.

. No Third-Party Data-Sharing occurs

I. Training

This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individual authorized to use the surveillance
technology or to access information coflected by the surveillance technology.

Training for operating the CCTV Public Video Monitors system will be provided by BART and will be
limited to staff assigned for operation and maintenance of this device.

J. Auditing and Oversight

This section should include: The mechanisins to ensure that the Surveillance Use Policy is fo//awed Including intemal
personnel assigned to ensure compliance with the policy, intemal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to
information collected by the technofogy, technical measures 1‘0 monitor for misuse, any independent p@rson or entity with
aversight authority,

The BART Maintenance and Engineering Department (M&E) shall oversee the CCTV Public Video
Monitors to ensure compliance with the Policy.

Page 3 of 3






Surveillance Impact Report
BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

BART Maintenance & Engineering
ME-BCCTVPVM-SIR-01

21 Day BART Board Notice — October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

A Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and
how it generally works.

The CCTV Public Video Monitors is a large format color LED or equivalent video monitor mounted above the
entrance to a BART station jointly determined by BART police department and BART Operations as part of the
Districts Fare Evasion and Public Safety measures.

Sample Image of CCTV Public Video Monitor

B. Information on the pfoposed purpose(s) for the surveillance
technology.

The CCTV Public Video Monitors will be deployed above the entry fare gate array at BART stations determined
by the BART Police Department and BART Operations to deter fare evasion and reduce crime in these areas by
alerting the public that a CCTV system is operating in these areas.

Page 2 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed.

BART may deploy the CCTV Public Video Monitors at the follow 95 locations and any future locations:

Station
A10 — Lake Merritt
A20 — Fruitvale
A30 — Coliseum
A40 - San Leandro
A50 - Bay Fair
A60 — Hayward
A70 - South Hayward
A80 — Union City
A90 — Fremont
L10 - Castro Valley
L20 - West Dublin
L30 - Dublin / Pleasanton
K10 — 12t Street
K20 — 19 Street
K30 — MacArthur
R10 — Ashby
R20 — Berkeley
R30 - North Berkeley
R40 - El Cerrito Plaza
R50 - El Cerrito Del Norte
R60 — Richmond
C10 - Rockridge
C20 - Orinda
C30 - Lafayette
C40 — Walnut Creek
(50 — Pleasant Hill
€60 — Concord
C70 - North Concord
C80 — Pittsburg
N10 — West Oakland
M16 — Embarcadero
M20 — Montgomery
M30 — Powell
M40 - Civic Center
M50 - 16th Street
M60 - 24th Street
M70 - Glen Park
M80 - Balboa Park
M90 - Daly City
W10 - Colma
W20 - South San Francisco’
W30 - San Bruno
W40 - Millbrae
Y10 - SFO

Number of Monitors

NMNNN 2NN NWNNWOOUIU =2 2NN S 2N a2 NN =D S NS RN NN s owa s NN

Page 3 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

$10 — Irvington (Future)
520 - Warm Springs
540 — Milpitas

S50 — Berryessa

E20 — Pittsburg City
E30 — Antioch

S LB N NN -

D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the equipment is used to deter
or detect crime.

The CCTV Public Video Monitors are intended to be passive view only devices to deter fare evasion and reduce
crime in the areas deployed by alerting the public that a CCTV system is operation. The system will target PART
1 crimes as measured by the BART Police Performance Measurements monthly report and the reported data
from the BART official monthly FBI Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program.

E. An assessment identifying ahy potential impact on privacy rights and
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public.

The CCTV Public Monitors are a passive display only device, no recording capabilities exist. BART recognizes
that all people have an inalienable right to privacy and is committed to protecting and safeguarding this right.
BART will not capture audio and still or video footage of persons in areas where there is an expectation of _
privacy without the individual’s permission, unless responding to a natural disaster or District wide ‘emergency.

F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial
purchase, personnel and other ongoing cots, and any current or
potential sources of funding.

Initial Purchase Cost _
Based.on a budget generated by BART, the cost of full implementation is approximately $285,000.

Personnel Costs _
BART personnel will provide installation for the CCTV Public Monitors at normal BART labor rates.

Ongoing Costs »

There are no ongoing costs associated with the deployment of CCTV Public Video Monitors. The anticipated
lifespan of the system is about Three'(3) years. However, with proper maintenance and lack of vandalism
staff anticipates the useful operational lifespan of the system to be 5 years.

Potential Sources of Funding

e  FTA Security Grants
e Operating Funds

o Other Grant Services
e Private Investment

Page 4 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance impact Report - BART CCTV Public Video Monitors

G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data
gathered by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party
vendor on an ongoing basis.

No Data is coIlected, and no third-party sharing occurs.

~ H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a
new technology or not) considered before deciding to use the
proposed surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits
associated with each alternative and an explanation of the reasons
why each alternative is inadequate or undesirable.

No alternative method was examined.

I. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law
- enforcement entities have had with the proposed technology,
including information about the effectiveness, any known adverse
information about the technology such as unanticipated costs,
failures, civil rights or civil liberties issues.

No known study is available at this time.

Page 50f5






Surveillance Use Policy
- BART Public Emergency
Phone Towers

BART Maintenance & Engineering

~ ME-BPEPT-SUP-01

21 Day BART Board Notice ~October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

A. Purpose

This section should include: The purpose(s) thaz‘ the survellfance fecﬁna/ogy 15 mrenc/ea’ to advance,

The primary use for the Public Emergency Phone Towers is for when police assistance is needed by a
member of the public or BART employee. The Public Emergency Phone Towers will be deployed at
every BART station throughout the District totaling 204 on 69 Platforms. There will be three units per
platform evenly distributed for maximum effectiveness. These towers are equipped with emergency
phones, blue strobes and Closed-Circuit Television. The use of the Public Emergency Phone Towers
shall be 24 hours a day, 7 days per week, and 365 days per year within all San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit District properties.

B. Authorized Use

This section should indlude: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes reguired prior to such use. and the uses that '
are prohibited.

e To alert BART Police assistance is needed
o  Platform CCTV Surveillance
e PSIM Interface for Station metrics (if adopted by the Board of Directors)

C. Data Collection
This section should include. The information that can be collected by the surveiflaince technology.

» Location of caller

e Audio of caller

e Video of caller

e Environmental Information
s Station metrics of conditions

D. Data Access

This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rules and
processes required prior to access or use of the inforimation,

e Callers location, audio and video will be available to the BART Police Department 911
dispatch system. N

¢ The audio and video of the caller will be recorded, and access will be through proper
information access requests per BART Policy 707.

E. Data Protection

This section should include: The safeguards that protect infarmation from unauthorized access, including encryption and
access control mechanisins.

BART shall maintain data collected by Public Emergency Phone Towers in a secure location where

physical access is limited to authorized individuals and includes physical access protections and/or
firewall protections from external intrusion.

Page 2 of 4



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

‘F. Data Retention

This section shoufd include: The time petiod, if any, for which information collected by the surveillance technology will be
routinely retained, the reason such retention is reqularly deleted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must
be met to retain information beyond that period.

BART shall retain/stored Video data collected from the Public Emergency Phone Towers per BART Policy
707.

707.1.5 VIDEO STORAGE CAPABILITY

Structure and facility images captured from the video surveillance system will automatlcally be
downloaded onto a secure data storage system where they will be stored based on the systems' design
and recording capabilities before being overwritten by new data; which varies from seven (7) to thirty
(30) days. The design of some legacy camera systems in District facilities will only record video when
the camera is being actively monitored by an authorized user.

BART shall retain/stored Audio collected from the Public Emergency Phone Towers per BART Policy 802.

802.7 AUDIO RECORDING OF RADIO AND TELEPHONE

The Communications Division will maintain a system for recording and immediate playback of all
telephone and radio transmissions within the Integrated Security Response Center (ISRC). The records
shall be maintained in accordance with the SF Bay Area Rapid Transit District Retention Policy unless
the communication is identified as being needed as evidence. Those recordings identified will be copied
and placed into evidence. All non-evidence audio recordings will be maintained for a minimum of 90
days. The Support Services Division Lieutenant shall assure that security measures are in place and
maintained for the digital recordings referred in this section. Review of the recordings are available for
immediate review by Department personnel for business purposes. Supervisors and managers may
review audio recording for purposes of quality control, evaluation and training. External requests for
copies of audio recordings from the Integrated Security Response Center shall be routed through the
Communications Supervisor or his/her designee. :

BART operates an existing call recording server that records 911 phone calls and retains those calls for
three years and then automatically deletes them. The Public Emergency Phone Towers will be
- integrated into this existing call recording system and retention schedule.

G. Public Access

This section should include: How collected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal
defendants.

BART shall grant Public access to Video data collected from the Public Emergency Phone Towers per
BART Policy 707.

707.1.8 RELEASE OF VIDEO IMAGES TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC

All video images/data shall be used for District operations, law enforcement or public safety purposes
only; except as required by law, subpoenas or other court process, such data will not otherwise be
disclosed/released by the BART Police Department without the consent of the Chief of Police.

Department employees shall not release any information, including capabilities regarding the Districts
CCTV systems to the public without prior authorization from the Chief of Police, or the appropriate

Page 3 of 4



Proposed Surveillance Use Policy — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

designee. Personnel shall not release the Video Recovery Personnel telephone number or email address
to members of the public.

707.1.9 REQUESTS FOR VIDEO IMAGES FROM THE MEMBERS OF T.HE PUBLIC

Persons that have a subpoena or preservation letter, and are interested in requesting video footage,
shall be directed to the Department's Records Division during normal business hours, or via fax at 510-
464-7089. :

Persons that do not have a subpoena or preservation letter and are interested in requesting video
footage are to be directed to the District Secretary s Office at 510-464-6000 or via fax at 510-464-
6011. .

H. Third Party Data Sharing

This section should indlude: if and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information,
including any required justification or legal standard necessary to do so and any obligations imposed on the recivient of the
information.

Audio recordings and Video footage or photographs may potentially be shared with the following:
* Inresponse to subpoenas issued by the defendant
» Pursuant to a Court Order
e Criminal Investigations by Law Enforcement Agencies -
o - Staff will adhere to the District’s Safe Transit Policy

I. Training
This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individial authorized to use the surveilfance
technology or to access /ﬂf()rma tion collected by the surveillance technology.

Training for access and administration of the Public Emergency Phone Towers will be provided by BART
internal staff and where necessary related service providers. Training will be limited to staff assigned to
the operation, installation, maintenance and administration of the BART Public Emergency Phone
Tower System.

J. Auditing and Oversight

This section should include: The mechanisms to ensure that the Surveillance Use Policy is followed, including intemal
personnel assigned fo ensure compliance with the policy, intemal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to
information collected by the technology, technical measures to monitor for misuse, any independent person or entity with
oversight authorily.

The BART Police Department shall oversee the Public Emérgency Phone Towers to ensure compliance
with the Policy, designate personnel who shall have access to the camera system and ensure that
access to the data complies with this Policy.

A log shall be maintained that records when access to image/video data is requested. This shall include
the date, time, data record accessed, and staff member involved.

Page 4 of 4



Surveillance Impact Report

BART Public Emergency Phone
Towers

BART Maintenance & Engineering

, ME-BPEPT-SIR-01

21 Day BART Board Notice — October 04, 2018
15 Day Public Notice — October 10, 2018
BART Board Meeting — October 25, 2018




Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

A. Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and
how it generally works.

The Public Emergency Phone Towers are intended to act as an additional security precaution in public areas. By
having these highly visible, and easily accessible blue light phones, the community is continually reassured that
they can summon police assistance immediately. The BART Police Department 911 dispatch center will

automatically know where the call is coming from and quickly dispatch an officer to the exact location. At night
a blue light atop the phone is automatically lit making them easily visible from long distances.

IImage of Public Emergncy Phone Tower

KausBiomy

B. Information on the proposed purpose(s) for the surveillance
technology.

The primary use for the Public Emergency Phone Towers is for when police assistance is needed by a member of
the public or BART employee. The Public Emergency Phone Towers will be deployed at every BART station
throughout the District totaling 204 on 69 Platforms. There will be three units per platform evenly distributed

for maximum effectiveness. These towers are equipped with emergency phones, blue strobes and Closed-Circuit
Television.

Page 2 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report - BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed.

Station

A10 — Lake Merritt
A20 - Fruitvale

A30 — Coliseum

A40 - San Leandro
A50 - Bay Fair

A60 — Hayward ,
A70 - South Hayward
A80 — Union City
A90 — Fremont

L10 - Castro Valley
L20 - West Dublin

L30 - Dublin / Pleasanton
K10 — 12 Street
K20 - 19% Street

K30 — MacArthur

R10 — Ashby

R20 — Berkeley

R30 - North Berkeley
R40 - El Cerrito Plaza
R50 - El Cerrito Del Norte
R60 — Richmond

C10 — Rockridge

C20 — Orinda

C30 — Lafayette

C40 — Walnut Creek
C50 — Pleasant Hill
€60 — Concord

C70 - North Concord
C80 - Pittsburg
M10 — West Oakland
M16 — Embarcadero
M20 — Montgomery
- M30 — Powell

M40 — Civic Center

M50 - 16th Street
M&0 - 24th Street
M70 - Glen Park

M80 - Balboa Park
M90 - Daly City
W10 — Colma
W20 - South San Francisco
W30 - San Bruno
W40 — Millbrae
Y10 - SFO
S$10 — Irvington (Future)

Number of Platforms

_:N_\_s_;NN_a_:_n_\_\_\_\_\N_‘_s_nNN_\_\_\_sNN_\_‘_\NNN._.N_a;sNNN_sN_\N_n

Number of Towers

WOHWWWwHhoOoWWwWwWwwwwwahaWwWwwohahwWwwwohadhWwWwWwwadoaWwWwWwwwoaoo Wo Wo W

Page 3 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

$20 - Warm Springs
S40 — Milpitas

S50 — Berryessa
E20 - Pittsburg City
E30 — Antioch

—_ =2 NN
wWwwoaoao o

D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the equipment is used to deter
or detect crime.

The Public Emergency Phone Towers are intended as an emergency communication system for when police
assistance is needed by a member of the public or BART employee. The system will target PART 1 crimes as
measured by the BART Police Performance Measurements monthly report and the reported data from the BART
official monthly FBI Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program.

E. An assessment identifying any potential impact on privacy rights and
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public.

BART recognizes that all people have an inalienable right to privacy and is committed to protecting and
safeguarding this right. BART will not capture audio and still or video footage of persons in areas where there is
an expectation of privacy without the individual’s permission, unless responding to a natural disaster or District
wide emergency.

F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial
purchase, personnel and other ongoing cots, and any current or
potential sources of funding.

Initial Purchase Cost
Based on a budget generated by BART, the cost is approximately $5.25 million.

- Personnel Costs
BART personnel will provide installation for the Public Emergency Phone Towers, the cost is approximately
$3.2 million at normal BART labor rates.

Ongoing Costs _
The ongoing costs associated with the deployment of Public Emergency Phone Towers are for normal

preventative and corrective maintenance.

The anticipated lifespan of the system is about Ten (10) years. However, with proper maintenance and lack
of vandalism staff anticipates the useful operational lifespan of the system could be extended.

Potential Sources of Funding
e FTA Security Grant
» - Operating Funds

Page 4 of 5



Anticipated Surveillance Impact Report — BART Public Emergency Phone Towers

G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data
gathered by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party
vendor on an ongoing basis.

“No Data is gathered or stored by third-party of this technology for use or maintenance.

H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a
new technology or not) considered before deciding to use the
proposed surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits
associated with each alternative and an explanation of the reasons
why each alternative is inadequate or undesirable.

No alternative methods examined.

I. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law
enforcement entities have had with the proposed technology,
including information about the effectiveness, any known adverse
information about the technology such as unanticipated costs,
failures, civil rights or civil liberties issues. ,

No study of unanticipated costs was available.

Page 5 of 5



DRAFT
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
- Minutes of the 1,825th Meeting
October 25, 2018
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 25, 2018, convening at 12:17 p.m.
in the Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, CA and Holiday Inn Lansdale, 1750
Sumneytown Pike, Kulpsville, PA, 19443. President Raburn presided; Patricia K. Williams,
District Secretary. ‘

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.

Director présen_t in Pennsylvania: Directér McPartland.
Absent: None.

President Raburn called for Public Comment on Item 3 Only.

Robert S. Allen addressed the Board. |

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:22 p.m.

The Board reconvened in closed session at 12:35 p.m.

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller,
. Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.

Director present in Pennsylvania: ~ Director McPartland.
Absent: None.
Director Josefowitz exited the meeting.

The Board Meeting recessed at 1:29 p.m.

The Board reconvened in open session at 1:29 p.m.
Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.

Absent: Directors Josefowitz and McPartland.



DRAFT
President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its closed session and that that there
were no announcements to be made.

The Meeting was adjourned at 1:30p.m.

Patricia K. Williams
District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: g Um 20[ 7 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
D Mok

DATE: 10/30/2018 %2 lzwf /" /} wers BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata ¢ Gen@Cp sel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
Dgi Human Resources Administration VJ\ID h

SignaMW ) .‘ 0 (W
w9 “/2—/(? LI plfg U [ ] S
7 g u,lu

Fix the Employer's Contribution to CalPERS Medical Premium for Non-Rep

PURPOSE

To obtain Board approval to adopt the resolutions which are required by the Public
Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) to implement the District and
Employee/Annuitant premium contribution amounts for the Non-Represented Group.

DISCUSSION:

The Board has previously approved the medical premium contributions for
employees/annuitants for American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees
Local 3993 (“AFSCME”), Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1555 (“ATU”) and Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU”), based on their collective bargaining
agreements (CBAs) for 2019-2021. The CBAs provide for a 3% increase in the employee
contribution from 2006 to 2034 and an additional $37 per month from 2014 to 2021. In
addition, the CBAs provide that the maximum the District will contribute for employee and
annuitant medical premiums will be based on the greater of the CalPERS Bay Area HMO
Blue Shield Access+ basic plan or the CalPERS Bay Area HMO Kaiser basic plan for the
applicable level of plan participation for the employee, less employee/annuitant new monthly
contributions of $147.14 in calendar year 2019. Employees and annuitants who choose more
costly plans will be responsible for the additional premium cost. All changes will be made
effective January 1, 2019. This schedule is also subject to the retiree medical eligibility
schedule.

For 2019, the General Manager intends to make the same change in the amount of the
medical premium contribution for non-represented employees and eligible retirees as have



Fix the Employer's Contribution to CalPERS Medical Premium for Non-Rep (cont.)

been approved for these represented groups.
FISCAL IMPACT:

For the 560 non-represented employees currently enrolled in health care coverage and 400
current retirees, the employee contribution increase (3% and additional monthly contribution
increases) is estimated to produce $463,200 in savings in 2019 for non-represented
employees. Savings are included in the FY 2019 budget.

ALTERNATIVES:

As a matter of policy, the General Manager has recommended that medical benefits for non-
represented employees be offered on the same terms as AFSCME, ATU and SEIU for 2019.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board adopts the following motion.
MOTION:

To adopt the attached resolutions pertaining to non-represented employees and eligible
retirees regarding “Fixing the Employer’s Contributions under the Public Employees’
Medical and Hospital Care Act” and authorize the Board President to sign the resolutions on
behalf of the Board.



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

'RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

2)

(3)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

RESOLUTION NO.'

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22892
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

FOR GROUP 006 NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is a contracting agency under Government
Code Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act
(the “Act”) for participation by employees who are non-represented; and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee/annuitant subject to vesting shall be
the amount necess\ary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the
enroliment of family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of the higher
of Kaiser Bay Area Basic or Blue Shield Access+ Bay Area Basic, less employee/annuitant
share of $147.14 per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund
assessments; and be it further '

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has fully complied with any and all
applicable provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth

~ above; and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or
instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to
participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal

Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. Ifitis

determined that San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District would not qualify as an
agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the District Secretary to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District all functions required
of it under-the Act.

. That coverage under the Act be effective on January 1, 2019.

Adopted at a‘regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit District at Oakland, California this 15" day of November, 2018.



Signed:

President

Attest:

District Secretary



: RESOLUTION NO. S
FIXING THE EMPLOYER VESTING CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22902
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
'FOR GROUP 006 NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES

© WHEREAS, - (1) San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is a contracting agency under Government
Code Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act .
(the “Act”) for participation by employees who are non-represented; and

- WHEREAS, (2) -~ San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is a contracting agency has filed a
resolution with the Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to
provide a postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire
for service in accordance with Government Code Section 22902; and

RESOLVED, - (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be
' the amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the
enrollment of family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of the higher
of Kaiser Bay Area Basic or Blue Shield Access+ Bay Area Basic, less annuitant share of
$147.14 per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund
_ assessments; and be it further

RESOLVED, (b) San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District has fully complied with any and all
' applicable provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth
. above; and be it further

RESOLVED, (c)  That the participation of the employees and annuitants of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
' Transit District shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or

instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to
participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal
Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. Ifitis
determined that San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District would not qualify as an
agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, the California Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and
reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct, the
District Secretary to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District all functions required of it
under the Act.

RESOLVED, (e) That coverage under the Act be effective on January 1, 2019,

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area
‘Rapid Transit District at Oakland, California this this 15 day of November, 2018.

Signed:

President



Attest:

District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: & Woy 208 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
DATE: 10232018 foa Pdanf™ M. Fowels BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Originator/Prepared by: Cristiano Torresi‘\ é‘,ener{l‘l‘q nsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
1 | >
\ i

Dept: Rolling Stock and Shops \ \/{/-;—
j ii z < \

Signature/Date:

N i
11/2/1¥ li)&l//{{ S \\K\\[%] [ ]

AWARD OF CONTRACT NUMBER 6M3418, RECONDITIONING OF TRANSIT
VEHICLE NICKEL CADMIUM BATTERIES

PURPOSE: To request Board authorization for the General Manager to award Cohtract No.
6M3418 to Industrial Battery Services (IBS) of Richmond, California in the amount of
$1,690,639.70 (including all taxes) for the reconditioning of transit vehicle nickel cadmium

batteries.

DISCUSSION: The District's revenue vehicles utilize a 36-volt (VDC) storage battery set to
provide low voltage backup power for interior lighting, door operators and other electrical
systems. These batteries require routine maintenance and bad cells need to be replaced as
necessary. This involves the reconditioning of battery sets at 5-year intervals. During
reconditioning, battery cells are restored to design capacity requirements. Battery cells that
have aged to the point that reconditioning is no longer effective must be replaced. -

District facilities are not equipped to recondition batteries and BART is not able to properly
- dispose of batteries, which are considered toxic waste. Therefore, the District's batteries are
sent to an outside contractor that is properly licensed for hazardous waste disposal.

This is a three-year estimated quantity contract for the reconditioning of revenue vehicle
batteries. During the term of the contract, the District is required to purchase a minimum
amount of 50 percent (50%) of the total dollar value of the contract. Upon Board
authorization to award this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to
purchase up to 150 percent (150%) of the total value of the contract, subject to the

availability of funding.

Advance Notice to Bidders was mailed on August 17, 2018 to four (4) prospective bidders.




AWARD OF CONTRACT NUMBER 6M3418, RECONDITIONING OF BATTERIES

Contract No. 6M3418 was advertised on August 22, 2018 as a two-step contract. With a
two-step contract, technical qualification bids are first opened and reviewed. Firms meeting
the technical qualifications are moved to the second step. A Pre-Bid meeting was held on
September 11, 2018 and was attended by a single prospective bidder, Industrial Battery
Services (IBS), which is currently providing this service for the District.

One bid was received from Industrial Battery Services (IBS), which is currently providing

this service for the District. The Technical Qualification Bid was opened on September 25,

2018. After a review of the bid by staff, it was determined that the bid was acceptable. The
~ price bid was then opened on October 9th, 2018. The results were as follows:

ncluding sales tax

Staff has determined that the bid submitted by IBS is responsive and that the bid price is fair
and reasonable based on past battery reconditioning contracts and the engineers estimate.
Additionally, a review of this bidder's business experience, which includes fifteen
consecutive years (15) of providing this service for the District, has resulted in the
determination that Industrial Battery Services is responsible.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability
Percentages for this Contract are 2.2% for Minority Business Enterprises (“MBEs”) and
1.1% for Women Business Enterprises (“WBEs”). Industrial Battery Services, Inc.
committed to 0% for both MBE and WBE participation. Industrial Battery Services, Inc. did
not meet either the MBE or WBE Availability Percentages; therefore, Industrial Battery
Services, Inc. was requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with supporting

- documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of race, national origin, color,
gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by Industrial Battery
Services, Inc. the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights
set a 5% Local Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses
certified by the California Department of General Services and verified as Local (i.e., located
in Alameda, Contra Costa or San Francisco counties) by the District. The lowest responsive
Bidder, Industrial Battery Services, Inc. is not a certified Local Small Business and,
therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference but is still the lowest

responsive Bidder.




AWARD OF CONTRACT NUMBER 6M3418, RECONDITIONING OF BATTERIES

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for Contract No. 6M3418 in the amount of $1,690,639.70 will
come from Rolling Stock and Shops (RS&S) Maintenance Contracts account 680-230.
Funding for FY 19 is included in the operating budget of department 0803622. Funding for
FY 20 and FY 21, will be requested as part of each year's operating budget cycle and is
subject to Board approval. The proposed award of this Contract will not result in any
operating costs above the current year’s adopted budget. This action is not anticipated to
have any Fiscal Impact on un-programmed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. Total
funding for this Contract is based on the following totals by year:

ALTERNATIVES: The alternative to awarding this contract would be to reject the bid and
re-advertise the contract, which staff believes would not lead to a better price or more
competition. :

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 6M3418, an
estimated quantities contract for Reconditioning Transit Vehicle Nickel-Cadmium Batteries to
Industrial Battery Services (IBS) for a total bid price of $1,690,639.70 including all taxes,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager.




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 8 Koy, 2ot § | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
% / W N/A
P
DATE: 11/1/2018 Fé—k {2 leiT s f(cwt’s BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Hal Keiner ener, ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
Dept: Performance & Audit ;) W
P

Signature/Date: " _

WS vlebe | wfie VP70 el
[ o

IStatus: Routed ‘ ‘ |Date Created: 11/1/2018 I

—

SALES TAX REVENUE COLLECTION SERVICES - 6M5131 - 2018

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Agreement No. 6M5131
with Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates (HdL) to prov1de sales and use tax (sales tax)
revenue collection services.

DISCUSSION:

This Agreement is to provide sales tax revenue collection services. The Agreement is for a
period of three (3) years, with options to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods.

BART currently does not have the capability in-house to provide these services. The
Internal Audit division of the Performance and Audit department has determined that these
services are necessary and are not duplicative of any duties performed by BART employees.

Many California jurisdictions do not receive all sales tax revenues to which they are entitled
due to both taxpayer reporting errors and processing errors. Errors occur for many
reasons, including businesses failing to correctly report their collections to the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA) or businesses misallocating tax
collections among the many cities, counties, and special districts in which they operate.

When businesses fail to correctly report their collections to the CDTFA, the CDTFA may
distribute the tax it has collected in error to other jurisdictions. Under this Agreement, HdL,

the selected Consultant will detect instances of misallocation and underreporting and correct
these reporting errors for BART. The Consultant will help maximize BART’s income and
minimize lost revenue by detecting and documenting the misallocations of “sales tax”.



SALES TAX REVENUE COLLECTION SERVICES

Since 2003, BART has contracted with Avenu Insights & Analytics (formerly MuniServices,
LLC) to provide sales tax gevenue collection services. Avenu Insights & Analytics has
recovered approximately $1.6 million in sales tax dollars for the District under its current
five-year agreement, which expires on February 24, 2019.

On July 12, 2018 the District advertised Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 6M5131 in ten
newspapers. The advance notice was posted on the Procurement Portal. The RFP was
posted on the Procurement Portal on July 12, 2018 and ten prospective proposers
downloaded the RFP. A pre-proposal meeting was held on July 25, 2018 with
representatives from Avenu Insights & Analytics, HdL and Williams Adley in attendance.
Proposals were subsequently received from Avenu Insights & Analytics and HAL on August
21, 2018. | :

The two proposals were reviewed by the Source Selection Committee, chaired by Contract
Administration and consisting of representatives from Internal Audit, Operating & Capital
Budgets, and the Office of Civil Rights. The Source Selection Committee reviewed the
technical proposals for compliance with the seven (7) minimum technical requirements set
forth in the RFP. Both proposals were determined by the Source Selection Committee to be
technically acceptable and responsive to the RFP requirements.

The two price proposals (for the 3-year base period and 2 additional options years) were
evaluated by the Source Selection Committee and ranked by price as shown below. The
proposed rate represents the percentage that will be applied to actual additional sales tax
revenue recovered for BART. The estimated fee amount represents the estimated fee that
would paid based upon an estimated $2,000,000 in additional sales tax recovered for BART
over the five-year contract period.

PROPOSER LOCATION | PROPOSED | ESTIMATED
RATE
FEE
AMOUNT
Hinderliter, de Llamas and | Diamond Bar, 18% | $360,000
Associates (HdL) CA
Avenu Insights & Analytics | Fresno, CA 20% $400,000

HdL’s proposed rate of 18% was the lowest of the two proposals when applied to the same
estimated additional sales tax revenue amount. It has also been determined upon review of -
the proposer’s business experience and financial capabilities that the proposer is responsible
and that the proposed rate submitted by HdL is fair and reasonable based on competition.



SALES TAX REVENUE COLLECTION SERVICES

Section 7056 of the State of California Revenue and Taxation Code requires, the Board.
Resolution No. = authorizing HdL to represent BART for the purpose of examining
tax records of the CDTFA.

The Office of Civil Rights determined that the District’s Small Business Program, Non-
Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Program would not apply to this Agreement since this Agreement is a revenue-generating
agreement.

The Office of General Counsel will approve the Agreement as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The subject EDD proposes a three (3) year contract, with options to renew for two (2)
additional one (1) year periods, at a total cost of $360,000 from February 2019 — February
2024. ' ‘ :

Funds will be budgeted in the Performance and Audit operating budget (Dept 1302386-
Audit, Account 681358-Sales Tax Collection Commission) as follows:

Proposed Funding
FY19* $36,000
FY20 $72,000
FY21 | $72,000
FY22 $72,000
FY23 $72,000
FY24** $36,000
Total $360,000

* Funding for FY'19 is expected to begin February 2019.
** Funding for FY24 will end February 2024.

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department’s existing operating
budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating
budget, which is subject to Board approval.

The action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves
- in the current Fiscal Year as the payments to HdL are contingent upon the amount of revenue
it collects for BART. HdL will perform this service on an 18 percent contingency fee basis.
No fee payment will be made to HdL until the associated revenue has been received by
BART. Should the District exercise the two single-year options, the cost of this Agreement



SALES TAX REVENUE COLLECTION SERVICES

~will be for an estimated amount of $360,000 in the aggregate for a five-year duration — from
February 2019 to February 2024.

It is estimated that HdL’s collection services will result in additional sales tax revenue of
approximately $400,000 over a twelve-month period. At this level of sales tax revenue
collected, BART would pay HdL $72,000 in fees resulting in “net” additional revenue to
BART of approximately $328,000 per year. For the five-year duration of the Agreement
(with both options exercised), the “net” additional revenue to BART will be approximately
$1.6 million ($2 million in collected sales tax revenue less $360,000 in fees paid to HAL).

ALTERNATIVES:

1. To initiate another Request for Proposals (RFP). Such an action is unlikely to result in
more competitive pricing.

2. To discontinue sales tax revenue collection services. This would result in BART
forgoing additional annual revenue currently estimated at $328,000.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motions.
MOTIONS:

1. The General Manager is authorized to execute Agreement No. 6M5131 with Hinderliter,
de Llamas and Associates to provide sales tax revenue collection services for an initial term
of three years with options for two additional one-year terms based upon a contingency fee
of 18% determined by the amount of tax revenue recovered for the District, pursuant to the
notice to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures.

2. The Board of Directors approves the attached Resolution No.  pursuant to Revenue
and Taxation Code Section 7056 authorizing Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates to
examine the tax records of the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration on
behalf of the District for the purpose of detecting and documentmg the mxsallocatlons of
sales tax revenue.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing - v ResolutionNo. =
Consultant Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates

to Examine Sales and Use Tax Records

at the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration on

behalf of the District

WHEREAS, the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (formerly State Board of
Equalization prior to July 2017) performs all functions incident to the administration and
collection of local sales and use taxes; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
(District) adopted Resolution 4387 on January 10, 1991, authorizing the General Manager, or
other officer or employee of the District designated by the Board, to examine sales and use tax
records of the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA) and its
predecessor agencies pertaining to sales and use taxes collected for the District by CDTFA, and

WHEREAS, Resolution 4387 did not address the authorization of the D1strlct S consultants to
examine sales and use tax records of CDTFA, and

WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code allows the District to
designate any person, other than an officer or employee, to examine sales and use tax records of
CDTFA pertaining to sales and use taxes collected for the District by CDTFA provided certain
conditions as required by Section 7056 are in the agreement (Agreement) with the des1gnated
person; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District deems it desirable and necessary to designate
Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates (Consultant) as an authorized representative of the District
to examine confidential sales and use tax records of CDTFA pertaining to sales and use taxes
collected by CDTFA for the District for the purpose of detecting and documenting the
misallocation of sales tax revenue; and

WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code sets forth certain
‘requirements and conditions for the disclosure of CDTFA records, and establishes criminal

penalties for the unlawful disclosure of information contained in, or derived from, the sales and
use tax records of CDTFA;

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Consultant is designated to examine the sales and
use tax records of CDTFA pertaining to sales and use taxes collected for the District by CDTFA.
" The Agreement between the District and Consultant shall comply with the requirements of
Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, so that all of the following
conditions are met; specifically Consultant:



1. Will have an existing Agreement with the District to examine those sales and use tax
records; and

2. Isrequired by that Agreement to d1sclose information contained i in, or derived from,
those sales and use tax records only to the District officer or employee authorized in
accordance with Board Resolution 4387; and _

3. Is prohibited by that Agreement from performing consulting services for a retailer
during the term of that Agreement; and

4. Is prohibited by that Agreement from retaining the 1nformat10n in, or derived from,
those sales and use tax records, after that Agreement has expired.

The information obtained by examination of CDTFA records shall be used only for purposes
related to the collection of District sales or use taxes by CDTFA.

H#H



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERWAGER APPROVAL: 3“, Aéy; 2or 5 | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 11/2/2018 \%ﬂ- W //" ﬂoﬂv BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata aner ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Human Resources Administration .

S’ s it "

Signaturé/Date: . \tD

Wfulzo1® 1) NN
WA L) [ ] [ ]

' ' AN !

Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension and OPEB under Consideration by the
District

PURPOSE:

To provide a report on the actuarial impacts on potential changes to retirement benefits and
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) for the BART Police Officers’ Association
(BPOA).

California Government Code 7507 requires a local legislative body, before authorizing
changes in retirement benefits or OPEB, to “secure the services of an actuary to provide a
statement of the actuarial impact upon future annual costs, including normal cost and any
additional accrued liability,” and also requires that the future cost of changes in retirement
benefits or other postemployment benefits, as determined by the actuary, “be made public at
a public meeting at least two weeks prior to the adoption of any changes.”

If the future costs of the changes exceed a certain amount, Section 7507 also requires that an
actuary be present at the public meeting at which the adoption of the benefit change is
considered. Since each of the potential changes described below will result in cost savings,
an actuary is not required to attend the public meeting.

This is an informational item. No Board action is required.
DISCUSSION:

The District is proposing to make three changes to retirement benefits and OPEB for BPOA,
which include the following:

1. Change Pension Cost Sharing



Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension and OPEB under Consideration by the District (cont.)

For Sworn Classic employees, the employee's cost share of the Employer’s pension
contribution will increase from the current level of 4% to 7% in Year 1 of the new
collective bargaining agreement (CBA) term, then increase an additional one percent a
year to 8% in Year 2, 9% in Year 3, and finally 10% in Year 4.

For Sworn Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) employees, the
employee's cost share of the Employer’s pension contribution will decrease from the
current level of 4% to 3% in Year 1 of the new CBA term, then decrease an additional
one percent a year to 2% in Year 2, 1% in Year 3, and finally 0% in Year 4. PEPRA
employees will continue to contribute half of the normal cost of their pension benefits,
as required by law.

There will be no change to pension contributions for Non-sworn BPOA employees—
Non-sworn Classic and PEPRA employees will continue to cost share 4% towards the
Employer’s pension contribution.

2. Change to'Medical Contribution for Retirees

As required by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), active
employees and eligible retirees pay the same medical contribution amount. The current
employee/retiree medical contribution is listed in the CBA and automatically increases
by 3% each year. Employees and retirees are also currently paying an additional
monthly contribution of $44. For 2018, the total monthly contribution is $150.93,
which includes the $44. The proposed change is to maintain the additional $44
contribution, and make the full contribution (i.e., the monthly contribution and the
additional contribution) subject to the annual 3% escalator. Making this change will
increase the employee/retiree annual contribution through compounding.

There is no change to the current medical cap.
3. Eliminate Retiree Life Insurance for Future Retirees

Currently, retirees receive life insurance coverage of 50% of their final base salary for
their first year of retirement. The coverage level reduces each year by 10%, so by their
fourth year of retirement, and for all subsequent years, they receive life insurance
coverage of 20% of their final base salary. This benefit is 100% paid by the District.
The proposed change would eliminate retiree life insurance for future BPOA retirees.

COST SAVINGS AND ACTUARIAL IMPACT: -

1. The change to the pension cost share by Sworn employees is estimated to save the
District $388,558 in the first year of the CBA, and a total of $1,144,354 over the 4-year
term of the CBA.



Actuarial Report on Changes to Pension and OPEB under Consideration by the District (cont.)

2. The change to the medical cost for retirees is estimated to save the District $100,751 in
the first year of the CBA, and a total of $431,890 over the 4-year term of the CBA.

3. The elimination of future retiree life insurance is estimated to the save the District
$2,074 in the first year of the CBA, and a total of $8,289 over the 4-year term of the
CBA. This figure is based on premium reductions.

These proposed changes were reviewed by the District’s actuarial firm, Bartel Associates,
LLC. Bartel Associates has concluded that there is no negative impact to normal cost,
future annual costs, or actuarial liability as these proposed changes will result in a net savings
to the District.



BARTEL
7/ ISSOCIATES, LLC

November 7, 2018

Diane M. Iwata, SPHR, SHRM-SCP _

Human Resources Program Manager (Compensation and Analytics)
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

300 Lakeside Drive, 20th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Re: CalPERS Pension Plan
Police Officers’ Association

Dear Ms. Iwata:

Section 7507 of the California Government Code requires agencies obtain a statement of actuarial
opinion regarding the cost impact of retirement plan benefit changes. The San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit District (BART) has requested that Bartel Associates, LL.C provide an actuarial opinion
regarding the actuarial impact of changes related to the CalPERS pension benefits for the BART

Police Officers’ Association (BPOA). :

Summary of Proposed Benefit Changes

The District currently provides retirement benefits to eligible BPOA employees under CalPERS, with
the District paying the CalPERS-required member contributions on behalf of Classic BPOA members.
All BPOA members contribute 4% of their pensionable pay towards the District’s required CalPERS
contribution (“cost sharing™).

Under the proposed change:

e Sworn (Safety) Classic employees would increase their cost sharing from 4% to 7% of .
pensionable pay effective for the first full pay period following the ratification of the
agreement. Cost sharing would increase to 8% of pensionable pay on the following July 1%,
9% the following year, and to 10% of pensionable pay in year 4.

¢ Sworn (Safety) PEPRA employees would reduce their cost sharing from 4% to 3% of
pensionable pay effective for the first full pay period following the ratification of the
agreement. Cost sharing would decrease to 2% of pensionable pay on the following July 1%,
1% the following year, and to 0% of pensionable pay in year 4.

e  There would be no change to cost sharing for Non-Sworn (Miscellaneous) employees.

Cost of Change

We estimated the cost impact of this change using the following assumptions:

e Census data was provided by the District as of June 30, 2017. Reported Safety headcounts
were increased by 39 positions to the full budgeted level. Census data included pensionable
and total pay.

e Pay increases were assumed to follow CalPERS 2016 actuarlal valuation assumptions,
including 3% total annual payroll growth

e Current employees were assumed to terminate and retire in accordance with CalPERS 2016

* valuation assumptions. New employees were added to provide 3% total payroll growth. The
percentage of new hires assumed to be PEPRA increased from 70% in 18/19 to 100% after 4
years. Future hires were assumed to have the same demographics as current employees.

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 @ San Matco, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 ‘fax: 650/345-8057 @ web: WWW.bz_lrtcl—associatcs.com



Diane M. Iwata ‘ :
November 7, 2018 ' B ‘
Page 2 A

e Present values were calculated using a 7% discount rate.
e We assumed the change would be effective December 1, 2018.

Because these proposed changes have no impact on CalPERS pension benefits, there is no change in
“the Normal Cost and Actuarial Accrued Liability. However, the District’s contributions to CalPERS,
net of employee contributions, will change. Therefore, the impact of the proposed changes has been

measured based on expected changes in future District contributions to CalPERS.

. The estimated cost of the change in current dollars (not a present value) over 3-7/12 years, the .
expected agreement term, is as follows.

Increase/(Decrease) in District Costs For 4 Years
(Amounts in $000°s) '
Classic - PEPRA Total

B Total increase/(decrease) in BART »
costs due to change in employee-paid
cost sharing over 3-7/12 years (current ($2,668) - $347 ($2,321)
dollars; not a present value)

B Total increase/(decrease) in BART
costs over 3-7/12 years due to change
in employee-paid cost sharing as a (3.07%) 2.04% (2.23%)
percentage of total (not pensionable)

pay

Over the anticipated term of the agreement there will be more Classic than PEPRA employees and so
this change results in a net savings to the District during the 3-7/12 anticipated years of the agreement.
However, over time the number of Classic employees will decline and the number of PEPRA
employees will grow. To measure the impact of the change in employee cost sharing, if it were to be
continued, we estimated the change over 30 years. The cost impact is shown below, as the present
value of the difference for each year.

Increase/(Decrease) in Present Value of District Costs Over 30 Years
- (Amounts in $000’s) !
Classic PEPRA Total

B Present value of the total _
increase/(c?ecrease) in BART costs due ($7,873) $7.112 ($761)
to change in employee-paid cost
sharing over 30 years

B Present value of the total
increase/(decrease) in BART costs due v
to change in employee-paid cost (3.90%) 2.81% 0.17%)
sharing as a percentage of total (not
pensionable) pay '

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 *San Mateo, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 'fax: 650/345-8057 @ web: www.bartcl-associates.com



Diane M. Iwata

November 7, 2018 ' ' B i]

Page 3

Conclusion

Our calculations show the District’s future annual costs would decrease over the next 4 years due to
the change in employee cost sharing for BART Police Officers’ Association. When evaluated as a
present value over the next 30 years, the net impact of the proposed change is a reduction in the
present value of the District’s future annual costs. Bartel Associates is not a law firm and we are not
qualified to render a legal opinion.

Information provided in this report is for the District’s management purposes. Future results may
differ significantly if the Plan or District’s experience differs from our assumptions or if there are
changes in plan design or actuarial assumptions. The project scope did not include an analysis of this
potential variation. Our calculations are based on benefit provisions, participant data, and actuarial
assumptions, and other information provided by the District and CalPERS as summarized in this

“report. This study was conducted using generally accepted actuarial principles and practices. I am a
member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Academy Qualification Standards to
issue the actuarial opinion in this report.

Please contact Mary Beth Redding (mbredding@bartel-associates.com) or Bianca Lin (blm@bartel-
associates.com) with any questions about this information.

Sincerely,

M):zjglizabeth Redding, FSA, MAAA, EA, FCA
Vice President

¢: Doug Pryor, Bianca Lin, Bartel Associates, LL.C

O\Clients\BART\Projects\CalPERS\EPMC Bargaining Study\BA BART 18-11-07 Letier - Tmpact of CalPERS Cost Sharing change for BPOA.docx

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 ® San Matco, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 @ fax 650/345-8057 @ web: www.bartel-associates.com



BARTEL
7/ ISSOCIATES, TIC

November 7, 2018

Diane M. Twata, SPHR, SHRM-SCP

Human Resources Program Manager (Compensation and Analytics)
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

300 Lakeside Drive, 20th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Re: | Retiree Healthcare Plai;
Police Officers’ Association

Dear Ms. Iwata:

. Section 7507 of the California Government Code requires agencies obtain a statement of actuarial
opinion regarding the cost impact of retiree healthcare plan benefit changes. The San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has requested that Bartel Associates, LLC provide an actuarial
opinion regarding the impact of proposed changes related to retiree healthcare benefits for the BART
Police Officers’ Association (BPOA).

Summary of Proposed Benefit Changes

The District currently provides healthcare benefits to eligible BPOA employees who retire directly
from the District under CalPERS, with the District paying monthly medical premiums up to the

‘greater of the Bay Area Blue Shield Access+ or Bay Area Kaiser basic premiums. A percentage
schedule applies for BPOA employees hired after July 10, 2014. The District participates in the
CalPERS medical program (PEMHCA).

In addition to paying premiums above the cap, retirees also pay monthly contributions. The basic
contribution for BPOA retirees is $106.93 per month in 2018 with 3% annual future increases. The '
basic contribution ceases in 2035. There is also an additional contribution of $44 per month, which
was schedule to cease in 2018 under the current BPOA MOU.

Under the proposed benefit change, the $44 monthly additional contribution for BPOA retirees would
continue through 2035, with 3% annual future increases starting in 2019.

Cost of Change

Our estimated cost impact is based on our June 30, 2017 actuarlal valuation methods, assumptions,

and data, including:

B 6.5% discount rate

B Terminations, disabilities and retirements in accordance with CalPERS 2016 valuation
assumption assumptions (1997-2011 CalPERS Experience Study)

B 226 BPOA actives and 151 BPOA retirees receiving benefits.

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 @ San Mateo, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 'fax: 650/345-8057 @ web: www.bartcl-associates.com



Diane M. Iwata
November 7, 2018
Page 2

FolloWing is the change in the District’s June 30, 2017 actuarial obligations and 2018/19 Actuarially

Determined Contribution due to the proposed benefit change.

&

Retiree Healthcare Plan
(Amounts in $000’s)
Current Plan | After BPOA :
Before any Proposed Increase/
, ; Changes Change “(Decrease)
" ;?;thgfgizeﬁfem Value of $ 762,531 $ 761,701 $ (830)
B June 30, 2017 Funded Status
e Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 573,941 573,231 (710)
® Market Value of Plan Assets 270,151 270,151 -
e Unfunded AAL 303,790 303,080 (710)
® 2018/19 ADC-$
® Normal Cost 24,580 24,562 (18)
e Amortization of Unfunded AAL 14,931 14,916 _(15)
e Total (future annual cost) 39,511 39,478 (33)

The Present Value of Projected Benefits represents the amount needed as of the valuation date to pay

“all future benefits for current members if all assumptions are met. The Actuarial Accrued Liability
represents the portion of the Present Value of Projected Benefits that participants have earned (on an
actuarial, not actual, basis) through the valuation date. The District’s Actuarially Determined
Contribution (ADC) is equal to the employer Normal Cost (the value of benefits earned during the -
year), plus an amortization payment on the unfunded liability (Actuarial Accrued Liability less Plan
assets). Consistent with the 2017 valuation changes, the decrease in the unfunded liability due to the
BPOA benefit change has been amortized over 16-years.

Conclusion

The District’s actuarial cost would decrease due to the proposed benefit change for BART Police
Officers’ Association. Bartel Associates is not a law firm and we are not qualified to render a legal
opinion.

Information provided in this report is for the District’s management purposes. Future results may
differ significantly if the Plan or District’s experience differs from our assumptions or if there are
changes in plan design or actuarial assumptions. The project scope did not include an analysis of this
potential variation. Our calculations are based on benefit provisions, participant data, and actuarial
assumptions, and other information provided by the District as summarized in this letter and our June
30, 2017 actuarial valuation report. This study was conducted using generally accepted actuarial
principles and practices. I am a member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the
Academy Qualification Standards to issue the actuarial opinion in this report

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 ® San Mateo, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 'fax: 650/345-8057 @ web: www.bartcl-associates.com



Diane M. Iwata |

November 7, 2018 , ‘ : B

Page 3

Please contact Doug Pryor (dpryor@bartel-associates.com) or Mary Beth Redding
(mbredding@bartel-associates.com) with any questions about this information.
Sincerely,

Deneg g

Doug Pryor, ASA, MAAA, EA
Vice President

¢: Mary Elizabeth Redding , Bartel Associates; LLC

O:\Clients\BART\Projects\OPEB\ 7 vall \BA BART 18-11-07 Letter - Impact of Retiree Medical Benefit Change for BPOA docx

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 @ San Mateo, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 ’fax: 650/345-8057 ® web: www.bartcl-associates.com



BARTEL
/" ISSOCIATES, LLC

November 7, 2018

Diane M. Iwata, SPHR, SHRM-SCP

Human Resources Program Manager (Compensation and Analytics)
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

300 Lakeside Drive, 20th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Ré: Retiree Life Insurance Plan
Police Officers’ Association Benefits

Dear Ms. I'wata:

Section 7507 of the California Government Code requires agencies obtain a statement of actuarial
opinion regarding the cost impact of retiree healthcare plan benefit changes. The San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has requested that Bartel Associates, LLC provide an actuarial
opinion regarding the impact of proposed changes related to retiree life insurance benefits for the
BART Police Officers’ Association (BPOA).

Summary of Proposed Benefit Changes

The District currently provides retiree life insurance benefits to eligible BPOA employees who retire
directly from the District under CalPERS. Coverage is equal to 50% of final base salary at retirement,
reduced by 10% annually until reaching 20% for year 4 and all future years.

Under the proposed benefit change, future BPOA retirees would not have life insurance benefits
provided by the District, nor would they be eligible to purchase life insurance through the District
plan. Current retirees would continue to have their life insurance coverage paid by the District.

Cost of Change

Our estimated cost impact is based on our June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation methods, assumptions,

and data, including: ' ’ :

B 3.75% discount rate .

B Terminations, disabilities and retirements in accordance with CalPERS 2016 valuation
assumption assumptions (1997-2011 CalPERS Experience Study)

M 226 BPOA actives with $19.476 million in 2016/17 payroll. Additionally, there are 162 BPOA
retirees with life insurance coverage who will not be impacted by the change.

B The value of life insurance is based on the death benefits expected to be paid to retirees. This is a
better measure than if retiree life insurance premiums were valued, since the active life insurance
premiums paid by the District subsidize retiree life insurance.

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 @ San Matco, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 ® fax: 650/345-8057 ® web: www.bartcl-associates.com



Diane M. Iwata _ '
November 7, 2018 ' B
Page 2 A

Following is the change in the District’s June 30, 2017 actuarial obligations and 2018/19 Actuarially
Determined Contribution due to the proposed benefit change.

Retiree Life Insurance Plan _
(Amounts in $000’s) : .
Current Plan | 'After BPOA
Before any Proposed Increase/
Changes Change (Decrease)
[
g,'igfez?e’dz glezl ePfffssem Value of $ 44,838 $ 43,529 $ (1,300)
B June 30, 2017 Funded Status
e Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 34,429 33,811 (618)
o Market Value of Plan Assets - - - - - -
¢ Unfunded AAL 34,429 33,811 (618)
B 2018/19 ADC-$ '
o Normal Cost 1,209 1,142 67
e Amortization of Unfunded AAL 2415 2,368 “4n
o Total (future annual cost) 3,624 3,510 (114)

The Present Value of Projected Benefits represents the amount needed as of the valuation date to pay
all future benefits for current members if all assumptions are met. The Actuarial Accrued Liability
represents the portion of the Present Value of Projected Benefits that participants have earned (on an
actuarial, not actual, basis) through the valuation date. The District’s Actuarially Determined
Contribution (ADC) is equal to the employer Normal Cost (the value of benefits earned during the
year), plus an amortization payment on the unfunded liability (equal to the Actuarial Accrued
Liability since there are no Plan assets). Consistent with the 2017 valuation changes, the decrease in
the unfunded liability due to the BPOA benefit change has been amortized over 16-years.

Conclusion

The District’s actuarial cost would decrease due to the proposed benefit change for BART Police
Officers’ Association. Bartel Associates is not a law firm and we are not qualified to render a legal
opinion. '

Information provided in this report is for the District’s management purposes. Future results may
differ significantly if the Plan or District’s experience differs from our assumptions or if there are

_ changes in plan design or actuarial assumptions. The project scope did not include an analysis of this
potential variation. Our calculations are based on benefit provisions, participant data, and actuarial
assumptions, and other information provided by the District as summarized in this letter and our June
30, 2017 actuarial valuation report. This study was conducted using generally accepted actuarial
principles and practices. I am a member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the
Academy Qualification Standards to issue the actuarial opinion in this report :

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 ®San Matco, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 'fax: 650/345-8057 @ web: www.bartcl-associates.com



Diane M. Iwata

November 7, 2018 B ]

Page 3

A
Please contact Doug Pryor (dpryor@bartel-associates.com) or Mary Beth Redding
(mbredding@bartel-associates.com) with any questions about this information.

Sincerely,
Doug Pryor, ASA, MAAA, EA
Vice President

c: Mary Elizabeth Redding , Bartel Associates, LLC

O:\Clients\BART\Projects\OPEB\1 7 val\Reports\BA BART 18-11-07 Letier - Impact of Retirec Life Insurance Benefit Change for BPOA.docx

411 Borel Avenue, Suite 101 *San Mateo, California 94402
main: 650/377-1600 @ fax 650/345-8057 ® web: Www.bartcl-associatcs.com



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

Approve and Forward to Board of Directors

GENE MANAGER ;PPROVAL: 8 Aby, 2o GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 11212018 Y qu,(fﬂ/[ Prverrs BOARD INFFIATED ITEM: No
?eneral ougsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC [&
t n ]
A ) @rzo
/ \1
/7
u/(/‘/](g[] wel® (1] [ ]

Sole Source of Procurement for Transit Vehicles (Two Thirds Vote Required)

PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization for the General Manager to negotiate and execute a contract
with Bombardier Transit Corporation for the sole source procurement of up to 425 revenue
vehicles, subject to funding availability, in accordance with California Public Contract Code
Section 20227.

DISCUSSION:

Since the initial procurement of A/B- car transit vehicles in the early 1970s, the District has
procured additional vehicles (C1 and C2) and rehabilitated the original A/B vehicles. By
2019, a number of these A, B and C cars vehicles, depending on the age of the vehicle, will
reach the end of their useful lives. The District currently has a contract for the procurement
of 775 D (cab) and E (non-cab) revenue vehicles with Bombardier Transit Corporation
(Bombardier) which will replace the afore mentioned cars over time.

This sole source vehicle procurement is for the purchase of up to 425 E cars which will
increase the overall size of the District’s next generation fleet of D and E cars to 1,200
vehicles. A sole source procurement of railcars will address the needs of the District, the
goals of the Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Program (TCCCP) and demands arising from
future rail extensions due to need for technical and functional compatibility at the individual
car level between the Bombardier vehicle fleet of D and E cars currently in use and under
production and the follow-on fleet of E cars being procured in this action.



861e Source for Procurement for Transit Vehicles

The need for compatibility between railcars arises from BART’s operating structure, which
requires that all cars in the fleet be fully compatible operationally with each other in revenue
service with all systems (vital and non-vital) functioning as designed. The BART system
operation, and BART’s yards and shops, were designed to have all vehicles in the fleet be
fully interchangeable. Unlike other transit systems, BART regularly rotates cars between
trainsets as needed for maintenance and other purposes. BART cannot keep trains semi-
permanently coupled like many other transit agencies do since BART’s shops were set up to
maintain individual cars, not coupled trainsets.

The Bombardier D and E cars now in production, and this follow-on fleet of E cars rely on a
new generation of sophisticated railcar technology that employs an Ethernet backbone for
transmission of vital and non-vital system information throughout the train. This new follow-
on fleet of E cars cannot operate as an independent fleet since the E cars are non-cab cars
that rely on D cars for operation. Therefore, this follow-on order of ‘E’ cars will have to be
fully compatible with the Bombardier-manufactured ‘D’ cars in use.

The ideal way to ensure compatibility between the current D and E car fleet and this follow-
on fleet of E cars, considering the level of on-board system complexities and the fact that the
current D and E cars utilize systems that are proprietary to Bombardier, is to purchase this
follow-on fleet of E cars from Bombardier.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4220.1F, Chapter VI, Subparagraph 3.i(1)(b)
provides that a recipient of FTA funding can make a sole source award under certain
circumstances, including where patent and data rights restrictions preclude competition or
where a competitive award would result in “Substantial Duplication Costs” to the recipient.

This sole source procurement of E cars is justified under the FTA requirements described
above based on the following;:

» Patent and Data Rights - Bombardier-owned patent and data rights with respect to on-
board vehicle systems in use on the current D and E cars preclude BART from
soliciting fully compatible railcars from another railcar manufacturer through a



Sole Source for Procurement for Transit Vehicles

competitive procurement. In addition, the technical complexities of engineering
compatibility multiply the risk that a follow-on fleet of E cars from a different
manufacturer will be operationally incompatible with the Bombardier fleet of D and E
cars.

» Substantial Duplication Costs - The District would incur significant and duplicate
expenses were it to engage in a 'follow-on' competitive procurement for "the continued
development or production of highly specialized" railcars required to be compatlble
with the D and E cars being manufactured and delivered by Bombardier.

» Unacceptable Delay - Since the typical new car development, testing and
troubleshooting processes would need to be repeated with a new vendor, Staff
estimates that a follow-on competitive procurement would delay the replacement and
expansion of BART’s fleet from the end of 2023 to the end of 2026.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board may direct the purchase of any
supply, equipment or material without observance of competitive bidding upon a finding by
two-thirds of all members of the Board that there is only a single source of procurement and
that the purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment currently in
use. \

A sole source procurement with Bombardier for E cars is justified under California Public
Contract Code Section 20227 based on the District’s necessity of procuring only duplicates
of specialized Bombardier-manufactured E cars currently in use within the BART system.

Staff is now seeking to enter into direct negotiations with Bombardier for the sole source
purchase of E cars. The scope of work for this procurement will consist of providing the
manufacture, assembly, delivery, and acceptance testing for this E car fleet order, along with
associated program management, in-service support, publications, warranty, training and
data submittals. BART anticipates that deliveries for the base order plus fundable options
would commence in mid-2022, following delivery of the last of the 775-car contract, with
final deliveries taking place in mid-2024.

BART anticipates negotiating a base order of up to 306 vehicles with options to purchase up
to 119 vehicles, based on the expected availability of funding for the procurement. Although
the final base order and option railcar quantities are subject to change pending negotiations
with Bombardier, the District intends to pursue the quantities provided below as follows:



Sole Source for Procurement for Transit Vehicles

. Base order (Commited funding sources have been identified) —~ 206 vehicles (Core
Capacity - FTA Capital Investment Grant eligible)

. Base order (unfunded) - 46 vehicles (Core Capacity - FTA Capital Investment Grant
eligible)

. Base order (unfunded) - 54 vehicles (Core Capacity —not FTA Capital Investment
Grant eligible)

. Option 1 — 60 vehicles (Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension)*

. Option 2 — 59 vehicles (BART future capacity needs)

*Option 1 would only be exercised if fully funded by the Santa Clara Valley Transportation
Authority (VTA).

The Procurement Department will review the Contract to conﬁrm compliance with the
District's procurement standards.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Contract as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The District currently has secured funding of $2,000,000 from a BART capital fund.
Funding commitment in the amount of $679 million for the purchase of 306 E cars will be
included in the total project budget for 40FD000, New Car Phase II, once the funding
sources has been secured. This $679 million will fund 150 of the 206-vehicle base order and
is anticipated to come from funding sources identified in MTC Resolution No. 4302 and
Regional Measure 3 Bay Area Traffic Relief Plan.

MTC RESOLUTION No. 4302



Sole Source for Procurement for Transit Vehicles

The MTC Commission adopted Resolution No. 4302 in September 2017, which committed
$179 million from the BART Car Replacement Exchange Account for an additional 306
railcars. The Exchange Account was established in 2006 under an agreement with BART

- authorized by MTC Resolution 3738, Revised. Under the agreement, MTC programmed
federal formula funds to BART’s preventive maintenance program, and BART deposited an
equal amount of its local funds into the Exchange Account, reserved for future expenditure
on BART’s railcar procurement program. This amount is fully available to this project.

REGIONAL MEASURE 3

Regional Measure 3 (RM 3) was passed by 55 percent of Bay Area voters in July 2018. The
ballot measure funds projects identified as “regionwide” that have an impact beyond one
county or bridge corridor. Of these projects, $500 million has been identified for the 306
additional rail cars. RM3 is subject to a lawsuit challenging the toll increase funding this
measure. ‘

The table below lists available and committed funding as of October 18,.2018, and is
included to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this
request will be expended from the following sources:

F/G 8529 FY2015 Operating Capital Allocation $2,000,000
F/G TBD MTC Exchange Account (by $179,000,000
arrangement)

F/G TBD Regional Measure 3 (voter approved) $500,000,000
Total $681,000,000

As of October 18, 2018, $2 million of BART capital funds are the total available budget for
this project. BART has expended $0, committed $0, and reserved $0 to date. The
Controller Treasurer certifies that $2 million is available for this project.

This action will commit some portion of anticipated funding, however, before a notice of
Award for the Base Contract and Options can be issued or exercised, the
Controller/Treasurer must certify that all funding is available.

The additional funds for the remaining 156 vehicles are anticipated to come from a Full-
Funding Grant Agreement (FFGA) with FTA which will be negotiated in late 2019, from
future BART Capital Allocations, and from funds provided by Bay Area regional
transportation agencies.

For option purchases additional funds are currently being negotiated with VTA for the 60
additional vehicles identified in Option 1 for the Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension (SVRT
Phase II). Option 2 for 59 vehicles for BART's future capacity needs is subject to the



Sole Source for Procurement for Transit Vehicles

availability of future funding. The full funding required for Project 40FD000, New Car Phase
IT is projected to be $1,527,843,909.

ALTERNATIVES:

Do not authorize the General Manager to negotiate a sole source procurement for vehicles
with Bombardier. A procurement with another vehicle manufacturer would result in a higher
price per railcar, bring about a number of interfacing and non-compatibility risks, increase
the need to procure more control cars, and will likely result in significant delays in meeting
the District's needs to replace legacy vehicles, increase systemwide capacity, and support
future service extensions.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board of Directors finds
that Bombardier Transit Corporation is the single source for the purchase of heavy rail transit
vehicles that will be used to duplicate equipment currently in use by the District. The Board
authorizes the General Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Bombardier for the
purchase of up to 425 E Car rail transit vehicles for an amount not to exceed
$1,167,282,284, including applicable taxes and fees, subject to funding availability.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: S Moy, 2T GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
DATE: 10/8/2018 %ﬁ W M lr)Nf‘/s BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Heather Fergus heng’?&ﬂ ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
\l H
Dept: Maintenance and Engineering oA et N
ot \
o "V W ,
ignature/Date: ; { h
: L u/7/ss g
(reeheS g Ly ol B
I Status: Approved | Date Created: 10/8/2018 I

Sole Source Procurement with Bombardier Transportation for Software Changes,
Testing and System Certfication for the West Bay Line Gealoc Track Signaling
' Circuit Boards.

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorizationto execute a contract with Bombardier Transportation to
perform W-Line train control speed code reductions.

DISCUSSION:

In anticipation of a California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) mandate, the District has
embarked upon a proactive safety enhancement project to implement speed code reductions
from 27mph to 18mph on all No. 10 Turnout switches systemwide. The reduction from
27mph to 18mph allows the vehicle to operate automatically at the next lowest available speed
code. Most of these reductions can be done with in-house personnel except the W Line
which has 6 turnouts that are controlled by the Bombardier Transportation GEALOC
system.

GEALOC is a Bombardier Transportation, Inc. (Bombardier) proprietary system which was
deployed on the West Bay Extension Project, Contract 12YC-120. Because of this, BART
does not have the capability to make the necessary speed code changes to this system, which
is on the W Line.



Sole Source Procurement with Bombardier Transportation for Software Changes, Testing and System Cert (cont.)

To implement the speed code reduction changes at the No. 10 Turnouts on the W Line,
application logic updates are required in the GEALOC system. Changes to the code are made
at Bombardier's facility, loaded into electronic memory chips (EPROMS) and sent to BART.
The EPROMS are then installed in the Bombardier Train Control Equipment, tested and certified
to effectively make the required changes to the speed codes.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4220.1F, Chapter VI, Subparagraph 3.i(1)(b)
provides that a recipient of FTA funding can make a sole source award under certain
circumstances, including where patent and data rights restrictions preclude competition.
Here, a sole source award to Bombardier is permissible since Bombardier-owned patent and
data rights with respect to the GEALOC system to be modified in this Agreement preclude
BART or any potential contractors from performing the modifications. Although this is a
sole source procurement under the FTA Circular, since this is an Agreement for professional
services, the terms of the District Annual Budget Resolution will govern the approval
process for this Agreement.

Staff is now seeking to enter into direct negotiations with Bombardier Transportation to execute
a sole source contract for the GEALOC application logic updates required for the #10
Turnout speed code reduction from 27mph to 18mph, at a cost of $133,612.00. The Office
of the General Counsel will approve the Contract as to form.

Pursuant to the District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) Program, the Office of
Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender neutral efforts for Sole Source Agreements. Therefore,
no DBE goal was set for this Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $133,612 for Bombardier Transportation Speed Code Reduction
Contract is included in the total project budget for FMS# 20L.T004 — #10 Turnout Speed
Reduction.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended
from the following source:



Sole Source Procurement with Bombardier Transportation for Software Changes, Testing and System Cert (cont.)

Proposed Funding
F/G 3605 - FY15 Capital Improvements $ 568,000
F/G 3607 - FY15 Capital Improvements $ 400,000
F/G 8526 - FY 14 Operating Allocation to Capital $ 142,000
F/G 8529 - FY'15 Operating Allocation to Capital $ 100,000
TOTAL $ 1,210,000

As of October 4, 2018, $1,210,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$539,711, committed $47,770, and reserved $0 to date. This action will encumber $133,612,
leaving an available fund balance of $488,908 in this fund source for this project.

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

Do not authorize the General Manager to negotiate with Bombardier to execute this
Agreement. The District will not be in compliance with CPUC safety requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:

The Board authorizes the General Manager to negotiate an Agreement with Bombardier
Transportation to perform W-Line train control speed code reductions in an amount not to
exceed $133,612.00.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENE NAGER APPROVAL: & M/, 2a ¥ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and Forward to Board of Directors

DATE: 8202018 Fon Dologsf i, Pm(s BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Shirley Ng Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dept: Planning, Development & '
Construction

Signature/Date:

ﬂ?o’ W/ 718 “/5 (& 1] ”F/lg [ ] []

|1

I Status: Routed I Date Created: 8/20/2018

Contract 15IF-130A, Powell St. Station Ceiling Improvement, Change Orders for a
revised lighting system

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Orders in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $3,500,000 to Contract No. 15IF-130A, Powell St. Station Ceiling Improvement
Project with Icenogle Construction Management, Inc. (Icenogle) for the procurement and

~ installation of a light-emitting diode (LED) lighting system.

DISCUSSION:

On July 14, 2016, Contract No 15IF-130A, Powell St. Station Ceiling Improvement was

- awarded to Icenogle, a DBE firm. The scope of work included the procurement and
installation of a LED lighting system. Because this Contract is funded in part by Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) funds, Federal Buy America requirements apply, which
provides that only domestically manufactured products be installed throughout this project,
thus limiting the number of qualified lighting manufacturers. The designer specified in

the contract documents a light manufacturer and model number to be purchased and
installed. Upon installation of a portion of the Buy America-compliant lighting products, it
was determined that the light levels did not meet BART’s or the manufacturer’s product
information. The industry standard is to rely on the product data supplied by the
manufacturer and validate the information through a computerized simulation test or a
physical testing lab to confirm the manufacturer's data. In this instance, the designer



15IF-130A, Powell revised lighting system

performed the simulation test based on the manufacturer's product information.

When the performance issue arose, the Contractor worked with the distributor and
manufacturer to resolve the issue. Three mockups over two months were tested. The
manufacturer's final solution included a product which required increasing the number of
lights, conduits and associated components which would result in unanticipated upgrades
to the station's emergency power supply system and associated building upgrades to meet
code. A physical test of these alternative lights had burned out in a week so these solutions
were not acceptable.

Concurrently, Staff took this opportunity to explore other manufacturer alternatives with the
following considerations: compliance with BART Facilities Standards requirements; effect
on sightlines; maintenance considerations; consistency with design intent; a wet listed
product; product efficiency; power usage; amount of re-wiring; product life cycle and cost.
Another manufacturer was identified whose product exceeded the requirements. Staff
initiated a site mock-up and lab testing which confirmed that this lighting alternative met the
design requirements. The benefits of this system is that it has a 25% higher light output, is
500% more efficient, and has more variability in light output therefore having approximately a
50% longer life cycle. This product is consistent with the original architectural design intent
and can utilize the existing station's power supply system. This is a California manufactured
product that has been installed in various public and private facilities with a successful track
record.

Staff therefore requests approval of Change Orders in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000
to implement the procurement and installation of a revised lighting system to address the
following:

Lighting hardware est. $1.000.000

New lights, driver, connections and conduits

Installation est. $1.500.000

Re-routing, removal and addition of new conduit to support the new light system.

Schedule Impacts and Delays est. § 500,000

Installation of the lights are on the critical path, ordering of materials schedule impacts,
potential mitigation and extension of the Contractor on-site will result in delay costs

Project Contingency est. $§ 500,000




15IF-130A, Powell revised lighting system

Contingency for additional work related to unanticipated obstructions or infrastructure which
interfers with the location of the drivers or lights.

The District will make its best efforts to pursue all available legal remedies in recovering
costs associated with the original lighting product through Icenogle.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders mvolvmg expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve these Change Orders as to form prior to
execution. The Procurement Department will review these Change Orders for compliance
with procurement guidelines prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:
CAPITAL FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $3,500,000 for Change Orders for Contract No. 15IF-130A is
included in the total project budget for FMS# 15IF004 — Powell Station — Ceiling & Lighting
Project.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

Proposed Funding

F/G 3002 - CA-90-Y873 FY11 CAP PRJ 5307 2,000,000
F/G 535B - FY14-15 Prop 1B - PTMISEA 4,620,000
F/G 6814 - SFMTA (Muni) 5,954,007
F/G 802A - 2017 Measure RR GOB 1,750,000
F/G 8524 - FY12 Operating Allocation to Capital 18,213
F/G 8528 - Station & Access Project Allocation 1,330,000

TOTAL 15,672,221

As of November 2, 2018, $15,672,221 is the total budget for this project. BART has



15IF-130A, Powell revised lighting system

expended $10,042,118, committed $1,735,091, and reserved $0 to date. This action will
commit $3,500,000, leaving an available fund balance of $395,011 in these fund sources for
this project.

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves.
ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the approval of Change Orders for the revised lighting
system. This will delay the Powell Ceiling contract from completion as the existing lights do
not support BART's lighting requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Orders, in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $3,500,000 to Contract No. 15IF-130A, Powell St. Station Ceiling Improvements
with Icenogle Construction Management, Inc. to provide a revised lighting system.



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
ATTACHMENT #1
CONTRACT NO. 15IF-130A
| CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor: Icenogle Construction Management, Inc.
Contract No./NTP; 15IF-130A / October 3, 2016

Contract Description: . Powell St. Station Ceiling Improvement Project
Percent Complete as of: 10/09/2018 — 65% ‘

Dollars Percent Complete as.of:  10/09/2018 — 76%

CO NO.: Various

Contract Amount .

COST "~ % of Award " Cost
Original Contract Award Amount ; $7,497,788.00
Change Orders: »
Other than Board Authorized CO's 8.40% $629.839.70
Board Authorized CO’s: , ’ :
Previous Change Orders up to: 6.67% $500,000.00
These Change Orders up to: 46.68% - - $3,500,000.00
Subtotal of All Change Orders 61.75% $4,669,839.70

- Revised Contract Amount:

'$12,127,627.70

SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration: _ 365 Days

Time Extension to Date: ' , 480 Days

Time Extension for these new Change Orders: To Be Determined

Estimated Revised Contract Duration: ‘ 845 Days +TBD

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

implement the procurement and instaliation of the revised A1 lighting system.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 8 My 4 ¥ | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
7 / 26 é >~ Approve and forward to Board of Directors

DATE: 10/29/2018 e:uﬂ W o PW BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Sonny Au :éene}:al Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary

el

Dept: Planning, Development &

. \X rv ‘p;{,/’ a\li i
Construction YY) x__,e_») ! ’ I
; ‘ .

v A W
\r!.’5'i/’[g' C1| II/J/ [ Lol

Contract No. 01RQ-150, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central
Warehouse, Change Order No. 010, for Additional Dump Fees for Hauling to Class
II Landfill

Signature/Date:

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 010 for Contract No.
01RQ-150, Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC) Project, Central Warehouse with Clark
Construction Group — California LP, for additional dump fees for hauling to a Class II
landfill, for an amount not to exceed $1,500,000.

DISCUSSION:

On March 8§, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the award of Contract No. 01RQ-150,
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse to Clark Construction Group —
California LP in the amount of $49,838,100. The Contract is for the construction of the new
Central Warehouse, which will serve as the central logistical facility for BART.

The Contract Work requires excavation and disposal of existing soil under the new Central
Warehouse facility, as well as disposal of an existing soil stockpile located approximately
900 feet north of the facility. The total amount of soil to be disposed is approximately
75,200 cubic yards. Samples were tested, as required, before local landfills would accept
the soils. The test revealed that the soils contained contaminants in concentrations that
exceed the screening levels established by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.
According to the General Conditions of the Contract, the soils represent a Differing Site
Condition and must be hauled to and disposed of only at Class II or higher landfills. A
change to the Contract is required to provide additional compensation to facilitate this
requirement. The estimated value of this Change Order is an amount not-to-exceed
$1,500,000. The final amount is contingent upon the District's review of the Contractor's




Contract No. 01RQ-150, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse, Change Order No. 010, (cont.)

submitted actual cost records and documentation of the total soil volume disposed of.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior
to execution for compliance with procurement guidelines. The Office of the General
Counsel will approve the Change Order as to form prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funding in the amount of $1,500,000 for the award of Change Order No. 010 to Contract
No. 01RQ-150 is included in the total budget for FMS# 01RQ000, HMC Program.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

Proposed Funding
F/G 3007 - FTA CA-90-X236 $26,180,332
F/G 5602 - High Speed Passenger Rail Bond $18,200,000
F/G 656K & 653E - VTA $19,850,000
F/G 8524 to 8532 - FY12 to FY'18 Operating Capital Alloc ' $74,276,377
F/G 881B - Program Income from Cap funds $254,640
TOTAL $138,761,349

As of October 31, 2018, $138,761,349 is the total budget for this project. BART has
expended $83,012,796 committed $53,655,396 to-date for other action. This action will
commit $1,500,000 leaving an available fund balance of $593,157 in these fund sources for
this project.

The Ofﬁce of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. Failure to issue
this Change Order will lead to a claim for the Contractor's costs due to Differing Site
Conditions and potential litigation costs, thus increasing the final cost to the District.

- RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:



Contract No. 01RQ-150, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse, Change Order No. 010, (cont.)

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 010, additional dump fees
for hauling to Class II landfill, for an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, for Contract No.
01RQ-150, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse, with Clark
Construction Group — California LP.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ATTACHMENT #1

CONTRACT NO. 01RQ-150 CO No: 010
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor:  Clark Construction Group — California LP

Contract No./NTP: 0IRQ-150/May 21,2018 ‘

Contract Description: ~Hayward Maintenance Complex Project, Central Warehouse

Percent Complete as of: 10/31/2018 — 14.00%

Dollars Percent Complete as of: 10/31/2018 — 15 25%

COST % of Award m Contract Amount

Original Contract Award Amount $49,838,100.00

Change Orders:

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s: 0.02% $ 10,000.00

Board Authorized Change Orders: 0% - § 0.00

This Change Order No. 010: 3.01% $1,500,000.00

Subtotal of all Change Order 3.03% $1,510,000.00

Revised Contract Amount: $51,348,100.00

SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration: 550 Days

Time Extension to Date: 0 Days

Time Extension Due to Approved COs: 0 Days

Revised Contract Duration: 550 Days

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER
Additional Dump Fees for Hauling to Class II Landfill

The Contract Work requires disposal of approximately 75,200 cubic yards of soil. Testing of the soil
determined that it contains contaminants in concentrations that exceed the screening levels established by
the Regional Water Quality Control Board. According to the General Conditions of the Contract, the soils
represent a Differing Site Condition and must be hauled to and disposed of only at Class II or higher

landfills. This change order provides additional compensation to facilitate this requirement.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERA NAGER APPROVAL: % 4das 2t ¥ | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to November 15th Board Meeting
i/
DATE: 1032018 {oh et M, Pavess BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Hamed Tafaghodi ner ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dept: Maintenance and Engjyeerin - [/
ignature/DaW/ \] ‘W‘/ d
14-424. 2018 /30 (3 L] 7017"/’ [ [
[

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER
NO.1, SCHEDULE ACCELERATION TO MITIGATE CONFLICTS WITH
CONCURRENT PROJECTS, TO CONTRACT NO. 09AF-111A, TBT CROSS
PASSAGE DOORS REPLACEMENT.

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 1,
‘Schedule Acceleration to Mitigate Conflicts with Concurrent Projects for Contract No.
09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement, for an amount not to exceed
$290,000. “

DISCUSSION:

On June 14, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to award Contract
No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement, to DMZ Builders of Concord,
CA, for the Base Bid Price of $6,388,000 and authorized the General Manager to exercise
Option A for the Bid Price of $300,000 and Option B for the Bid Price of $200,000. This
action seeks to authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No.1, Schedule
Acceleration to Mitigate Conflicts with Concurrent Projects, in the amount not to exceed
$290,000, to decrease the Contract duration by an aggregate of 90 calendar days. The scope
of work remains unchanged. Currently, the $313 Million Transbay Tube (TBT) Seismic
retrofit Contract No. 09AU-120 is in progress. In order to mitigate costly delays to the
- TBT seismic retrofit project, and to coordinate the efficient performance of both
Contracts, staff determined that it is in the District’s best interest to accelerate the duration
of the TBT Cross-Passage Doors Replacement Contract from 420 calendar days, plus 60
additional calendar days upon Contractor’s request, to no more than 390 calendar days with
the start date of October 9, 2018. As part of the acceleration mitigations, this Change



AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO.1, SCHEDULE ACCELERATION
TO MITIGATE CONFLI (cont.)

Order includes additional measures to remove restrictions and create flexibility for the
Contractor in planning and executing the work. The original scope of work remains
unchanged. The cost of Change Order No.1 is not to exceed $290,000.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board Approval. The Office of General Counsel will review and approve the Change
Order as to form prior to execution. The Procurement Department will review the Change
Order prior to execution for compliance with Procurement guidelines.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $290,000 for the award of Change Order No. 1, to Contract No. 09AF-111A is
included in the total project budget for 09AF002, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement.
The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project, and is
included in its totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to
meet this request will be expended from the sources listed.

As of October 8, 2018, $10,943,216 is available for this project from the following source:

“802A 2017 A Measure RR GOB Measure | $10,943 216

- BART has expended $137,108, committed $1,221,235 and reserved $6,485,194 to date for
other action. This action will commit an additional $290,000 leaving an uncommitted balance
of $2,809,678 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

Do not authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No.1, Schedule
Acceleration to Mitigate Conflicts with Concurrent Projects, in the amount not to exceed
$290,000 to reduce the duration of the Contract. This will potentially conflict with and result
in delays to the work of seismic retrofit project in the TBT and will cost the District
considerably more in terms of claims filed by the Contractor for the TBT Retrofit Contract.



AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO.1, SCHEDULE ACCELERATION
TO MITIGATE CONFLI (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No.1, Schedule Acceleration to
Mitigate Conflicts with Concurrent Projects, in the amount of not to exceed $290,000 for
Contract No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: November 8§, 2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: BART Wheel/ Rail Optimization

Attached is the “BART Wheel/ Rail Optifnization” presentation that will be presented to the
Board at the November 15, 2018 meeting as an information item.

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Tamar Allen, Assistant General
Manager, Operations, at (510) 464-7513.

Vil Mo

fh Grace Crunican

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff ’



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: November 8, 2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: Quarterly Service Performance Review — First Quarter FY 2019

Attached is the “Quarterly Service Performance Review — First Quarter FY 2019” presentation
that will be presented to the Board at the November 15, 2018 meeting as an information item.

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Tamar Allen, Assistant General
Manager, Operations, at (510) 464-7513.

74 tads™

' (f"\ Grace Crunican

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT |

MEMORANDUM

TO: | Board of Directors DATE: Noverhber 8,2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: New Transbay Rail Crossing Project Briefing

At the November 15, 2018 Board meeting, staff will provide an informational briefing on the New
Transbay Rail Crossing Project, including a program overview and the project contracting plan.

If you have any questions, please contact Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Planning,
Development & Construction, at (510) 464-7592.

7/~

6,.4 Grace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers -
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



AR Y

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL WER PROVAL: “ /I/o‘/ 2A5 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 10/31/2018 Fot. Rfeft M Poves BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
- | Originator/Prepared by: Steve Beroldo ner:@unsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Systems D o ment e /

Slgnaure/D// ?...ZO/B ' \‘/:}/,("4 [ ] ”{6 !Eé L1 ( -
. T o ' -

l Status: Approved . | Date Created: 10/31/2018

Recommendation for deployment of Ford GoBikes at 24th St. Mission BART

PURPOSE:

To request Board support for the deployment of Ford GoBike station(s) at the 24th Street
Mission BART Station. ,

DISCUSSION:

Bay Area bike share background:

In 2015, the Bay Area began transitioning the Bay Area Bike Share program from one that
was publicly owned and operated to a public-private partnership. Motivate International Inc.
("Motivate") approached the Metropolitan Transportation Commission ("MTC") and
proposed assuming ownership and operation of the system and becoming the exclusive
supplier and operator of bike share in the Bay Area. The proposal called for a major
program expansion from a 700-bike pilot program to a 7,000-bike program in the cities of
Berkeley, Emeryville, Oakland, San Francisco and San Jose at no capital or operational cost
to the public. In exchange for providing this major expansion and all required operations
and maintenance, Motivate retained all sponsorship rights. :

MTC accepted the proposal and entered into an agreement with Motivate. The agreement is
for a 10-year term and includes a timeline for implementation, the option for other cities to
buy in, requirements for community input, and a discounted membership program for low
income individuals (offering the first year for $5 and $5/month thereafier; 20% of members
are part of the discounted program--the highest of any bike share program in the U.S.).
Ford is the title sponsor of the program and the program is called “Ford GoBike.”



GoBike @ 24th St. Missioin

BART Station Access Policy:
In June 2016, the Board adopted the Station Access Policy. The policy is intended to:

 Promote and invest in active transportation access modes to improve public health

» Prioritize the most sustainable access modes with focus on lowest greenhouse gases

e Ensure disadvantaged communities share the benefits of BART accessibility

» Develop partnership with municipalities, transit operators, . . . bike share operators to
best meet access goals

Ford GoBike roll out at BART:

BART has also entered into an agreement with Motivate that specifies requirements for bike
share stations on BART property. The site selection is a collaborative effort between BART,
~ city and Motivate staff with the goal of locating bikes in close proximity to BART faregates
to encourage use. Depending on available space at each station, bikes can either be sited on
BART property or on adjacent city property. Prior to installation on BART property
drawings are circulated internally for approval.

To date GoBike docks are installed and operating on BART property at the following BART
stations: 16th St. Mission, Lake Merritt, MacArthur, Fruitvale, Ashby, North Berkeley
and Rockridge. '

Additional GoBike station installations are planned on BART property at Balboa Park and
Glen Park. At the downtown San Francisco, Oakland and Berkeley stations, as well as West
Oakland, the GoBike stations are located near station entrances on city property.

24th Street Mission Context:

The sole remaining unserved BART station in the GoBike service area is 24thStreet Mission.
Staff has identified locations on the southwest plaza for a 17-dock station and on the
northeast plaza for a 16-dock station and obtained internal approval for the installations.
There is currently opposition from some community organizations to this and other
proposed GoBike stations in the vicinity. The community concerns included: 1) lack of
opportunity for community participation in the program design, 2) a sense that the GoBike
program would not serve the Mission District’s lower income residents, and 3) a limitation
of opportunities for community use of the plaza where the bikes occupy space.

In response to these concerns, BART, SFMTA and Motivate halted implementation of the
program in the central Mission and began to develop a number of options to address the
concerns voiced by some community organizations, including: Spanish language marketing
materials, outreach materials, map panels, mobile app; station kiosks and outreach staff:
alternate affordable membership pricing options; free trials for community-based
organization membership; small business promotion; workforce development opportunities;
art/cultural organization collaboration for station design or art-bikes; and partnership with
community business organizations to manage memberships for the undocumented



GoBike @ 24th St. Missioin

population without federal income verification requirements.

This issue is now before the Board to provide staff with direction on selecting a
recommended option for deployment of a Ford GoBike station(s) at the 24th St. Mission
BART station.

FISCAL IMPACT

There are no fiscal obligations associated with the installation of Ford GoBikes on the 24th
St. Mission BART plazas or the alternatives, other than staff oversight of installation, which
is included in FY 19 budget.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommendation is to proceed with approximately half the originally proposed
installation on the southwest plaza and the other half of the installation adjacent to the library
on the sidewalk. While open plaza space in the Mission is clearly a precious commodity,
prioritizing a portion of the plaza for bike sharing is consistent with the plazas' role asa -
transportation hub and consistent with the BART Station Access Policy which prioritizes
active access modes to stations. The area on the southwest plaza where the bikes would be
docked is currently underutilized and the bike share station would activate this space. The
areas of the plaza most commonly engaged for community activities would not be impacted.

 ALTERNATIVES:
Both BART Plazas Alternative:

" Locate approximately half the bikes on the southwest plaza and the other half on the
northeast plaza of the 24th St. Mission BART Station as originally proposed.

Library Only Alternative: -

Locate all the bikes on City sidewalk as close to BART as possible. A potential site has
been identified at the corner of 24th Street and Bartlett Street adjacent to the Mission branch
library. This location is approximately 180’ from the closest corner of the southwest BART
plaza. ‘ ‘

MOTION:

The Board recommends installing approximately half the Ford GoBike docks on
the southwest plaza at 24th St. Mission BART and the other half of the originally proposed
‘installation on City sidewalk adjacent to the Mission branch library. .



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors | DATE: November 8, 2018
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: BART Advertising Content Guidelines

Attached are slides regarding BART Advertising Content Guidelines for presentation and

- discussion at the November 15, 2018 Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee meeting. Also attached are:

o Two versions of potential new guidelines for discussion (labeled Option A and Option B)
and;

e The existing guidelines adopted by the Board in 2007 (labeled attachment E)

| ﬁ/l Grace Crunican

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff




Procurement of Additional

Transit Vehicles






Rail Vehicle Strategy

: No. of Running
Contract Project Cars Total
Bombardier Replace Current Fleet 669 669

Bombardier s o Capacity — train length 13 682

L _QE b [ i

Bombardier Y- WSX 33 715
Bombardier VTA - SVBX 60 775
New Procurement Core Capacity 306 1081
New Procurement Option VTA Phase 2 60 1141
New Procurement Option Additional Capacity 59 1200






Ralil Vehicle Procurement Strategy tx]

 California Public Contract Code Section 20227

v" Allows single-source of supply for procuring duplicates of
equipment already in use.

J Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4220.1F,
Chapter VI, Subparagraph 3.i(1)(b) allows a sole source award
under certain circumstances:

L The item is a unique or innovative concept that has not been
previously available

v" Where patent and data rights restrictions preclude competition

v" Where a competitive award would result in “substantial
duplication of costs” to the recipient.

v Where award to another contractor would result in
“unacceptable delay”.





Rall Vehicle Procurement Strategy tx]

 BART has already conducted a full and open competition to
establish the basic product being procured:

[ Contract 40FA-110 (775 vehicles) — awarded to Bombardier in
2012 following a competitive negotiated procurement

JRFP publicly advertised and sent to 12 manufacturers in 8
countries

166 firms purchased solicitation documents
(15 proposals received from carbuilders
3 firms competed in the BAFO process





Rail Vehicle Procurement -

Price Differential

BART’s Core Capacity Project has done an analysis of the cost differential for
the two procurement methods for the 306 railcars needed for Core Capacity
and for the larger order of 425 cars.

[ BART staff engineer’s estimate for full cost for 306 cars for Core Capacity,
including all soft costs:

 Competitive procurement - $1,618 million
[ Single source of supply - $1,289 million

[ Savings of approximately $328 million — contract + soft costs.

L Approximately 2 years+ time savings. No need to do design, prototyping
and testing.

] Additional savings of $238 million for additional 119 cars up to 425 car
($566 million total).





Justification

 BART needs only ‘E’ (non-cab) cars with this procurement, so cars
must function flawlessly with the Bombardier ‘D’ (cab) cars.

 BART's operating plan and system design requires compatible
vehicles due to the way BART stores and maintains cars, and “makes
and breaks” trains.

O Current generation of Ethernet backbone cars being delivered by
Bombardier are much more technologically complex than prior
generations of cars and rely on proprietary systems for communication
of vital and non-vital information for operation.

J BART estimates savings of $566 million for the sole source
procurement for up to 425 cars.

J BART estimates savings of over 2 years in car deliveries for the sole
source procurement.





Rail Vehicle Procurement - Funding m

Funds Allocated:

FY 2015 Capital Allocations - $ 2,000,000
Committed:

MTC Exchange Account (by resolution) - $179,000,000
Regional Measure 3 - $500,000,000
Planned:

FTA Capital Investment Grant $483,000,000
State of California TIRCP $ 63,000,000
Local Sources $300,000,000

BART Capital Allocations (future) $121,000,000





Rail Vehicle Procurement - Motion tx]

BART staff requests that the Board adopt the following motion:

Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20227,
the Board of Directors finds that Bombardier Transit
Corporation is the single source for the purchase of heavy
rail transit vehicles that will be used to duplicate equipment
currently in use by the District. The Board authorizes the
General Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Bombardier for the purchase of up to 425 E Car rail transit
vehicles for an amount not to exceed $1,167,282,284,
including applicable taxes and fees, subject to funding

availability.





		�� Procurement of Additional Transit Vehicles�

		Rail Vehicle Strategy

		�Rail Vehicle Procurement Strategy

		�Rail Vehicle Procurement Strategy

		�Rail Vehicle Procurement -   �Price Differential

		�Justification

		�Rail Vehicle Procurement  - Funding

		�Rail Vehicle Procurement  - Motion




Quarterly Service Performance
Review
First Quarter, FY 2019
July - September, 2018

Operations & Safety Committee
November 15, 2018










SUMMARY CHART 1st QUARTER FY 2019

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTR ACTUALS YEAR TO DATE
LAST THIS QTR
ACTUAL [ STANDARD STATUS QUARTER LAST YEAR ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS

Average Ridership - Weekday 419,692 420,057 NOTMET | | 416,706 419,978 419,692 420,057 NOT MET
Customers on Time

Peak 92.27% 94.00% NOT MET : 93.29% 86.95% 92.27% 94.00%| NOT MET

Daily 93.59% 94.00% NOTMET | | 94.18% 90.04% 93.59% 94.00%| NOT MET
Trains on Time ||

Peak 89.26% N/A N/A 90.28% 79.68% 89.26% N/A N/A

Daily 91.27% 91.00% MET - 91.20% 83.14% 91.27% 91.0% MET
Peak Period Transbay Car Throughput

AM Peak 92.87% 97.50% NOT MET : 95.95% 96.68% 92.87% 97.50%| NOT MET

PM Peak 95.22% 97.50% NOTMET | | 96.60% 95.38% 95.22% 97.50%| NOT MET
Car Availability at 4 AM (0400) 585 595( NOT MET 589 575 585 595( NOT MET
Mean Time Between Service Delays 5,032 4,000 MET 4,663 3,810 5,032 4,000 MET
Elevators in Service [ ]

Station 99.03% 98.00% MET 98.40% 98.10% 99.03% 98.00% MET

Garage 92.27% 97.00% NOTMET [ | 93.57% 96.40% 92.27% 97.00%| NOT MET
Escalators in Service ||

Street 89.83% 93.00%(| NOT MET 86.70% 92.10% 89.83% 93.00%| NOT MET

Platform 96.93% 96.00% MET 95.33% 96.50% 96.93% 96.00% MET
Automatic Fare Collection [ | [ ]

Gates 99.57% 99.00% MET 99.57% 99.51% 99.57% 99.00% MET

Vendors 98.67% 95.00% MET 98.22% 95.79% 98.67% 95.00% MET
Wayside Train Control System 0.76 1.00 MET 0.78 2.00 0.76 1.00 MET
Computer Control System 0.03 0.08 MET 0.027 0.063 0.027 0.08 MET
Traction Power 0.04 0.20 MET 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.20 MET
Track 0.14 0.30 MET 0.01 0.13 0.14 0.30 MET
Transportation 0.50 0.50 MET 0.54 0.69 0.50 0.50 MET
Environment Outside Stations 0.00 0.00 [ ] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 [ ]
Environment Inside Stations 0.00 0.00 [ ] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 [ ]
Station Vandalism 71.60% NA [ ] 74.20% 74.10% 71.60% NA [ ]
Train Interior Cleanliness 70.80% N/A [ ] 70.80% 69.50% 70.80% N/A [ ]
Train Temperature 79.70% N/A [ ] 82.90% 79.90% 79.70% N/A [ ]
Customer Service 0.00% 0.00 [ ] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00 [ ]
Homelessness & Fare Evasion 0.00% 0.00 [ ] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00 [ ]
Customer Complaints [ ] [ ]

Complaints per 100,000 Passenger Trips 10.05 5.07| NOT MET 7.80 7.74 10.05 5.07| NOT MET
Safety . .

Station Incidents/Million Patrons 1.73 5.50 MET 1.20 1.56 1.73 5.50 MET

Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons 0.46 1.30 MET 0.36 0.62 0.46 1.30 MET

Lost Time Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 5.74 7.50 MET 5.88 7.24 5.74 7.50 MET

OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 11.21 13.30 MET 8.34 12.99 11.21 13.30 MET

Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles 0.100 0.300 MET 0.200 0.050 0.100 0.300 MET

Rule Violations Summary/Million Car Miles 0.300 0.500 MET 0.200 0.150 0.300 0.500 MET
Police .

BART Police Presence 11.0% 11.9% NOT MET 10.0% 10.8% 11.0% 11.9%( NOT MET

Quality of Life per million riders 40.38 NA NA [ ] 44.59 99.45 40.38 NA NA

Crimes Against Persons per million riders 3.83 2.00 NOT MET 3.87 3.15 3.83 2.00| NOT MET

Auto Burglaries per 1,000 parking spaces 4.39 8.00 MET 5.88 6.26 4.39 8.00 MET

Auto Thefts per 1,000 parking spaces 1.66 6.00 MET 1.95 2.24 1.66 6.00 MET

Police Response Time per Emergency Incident (Minutes) 5.31 5.00f NOT MET 4.36 5.30 5.31 5.00] NOT MET

Bike Thefts (Quarterly Total and YTD Quarterly Average) 122 150.00 MET 99 125 122 150.00 MET

L EGEND:

Goal met|

Goal not met but within 5%

Goal not met by more than 5











v’ Ridership by decreased 0.9% compared to same quarter last
year, primarily on weekends

v’ Continued gains in train service reliability, Ops and BPD working
together to improve further

v Equipment Reliability: Car, Track and Traction Power, Computer
Control System and Train Control all met goal

v  Equipment Availability: Station Elevators, Platform Escalators,
Ticket Machines and Fare Gates met goal; Street Escalators,
Garage Elevators and Cars, none met goal

v’ Passenger Environment: 2 of 4 Station indicators improved,
none met goal; 3 of 4 Train indicators improved, none met goal

v’ Complaints increased with inclusion of social media





v' Environment Inside the Station

Cleanliness of Station Platform (weight 40%)
Restroom Cleanliness (weight 7.5%)
Elevator Cleanliness (weight 10%)
Cleanliness of Concourse (weight 25%
Escalator Cleanliness (weight 10%)

Stairwell Cleanliness (weight 7.5%)

v' Homelessness: How Well is BART addressing homelessness

v’ Fare Evasion: Customer observed someone not pay their fare

v' Environment Outside the Station

BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (33%)
Combines landscaping, walkways & Entry Plaza (weight 67%)





v’ Customer Service (all items weighted equally)

* Quality of customer service from Station Agent

" Onboard next stop, destination and transfer
announcements

" Onboard delay announcements





N S N XX

480,000
470,000
460,000
450,000
440,000
430,000
420,000
410,000
400,000
390,000
380,000
370,000

Average Weekday Trips

/;—\\ _
= N

Nl

*
*/’//@Z

N—"F

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apri May June July Aug Sept

—&— Results

e G oal

Total ridership decreased by 0.9% compared to same quarter last year

Average weekday ridership (419,692) down by 0.1% from same quarter last year

Core weekday ridership up by 0.3% from same quarter last year

SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 3.0% from same quarter last year

Average peak ridership up by 1.1% compared to same quarter last year

Saturday and Sunday down by 9.0% and 7.8%, respectively, from same quarter
last year mainly due to M0O3 closures in August and September






Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


419947


422691


418070


424649


422201


437728


426492


439970


423264


430308


391219


405048


395222


411761


413949


426281


408861


424036


413031


425647


416795


425218


420286


426130


412411


416977


415370


416829


432972


427370





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			419947			422691


			Aug			418070			424649


			Sept			422201			437728


			Oct			426492			439970


			Nov			423264			430308


			Dec			391219			405048


			Jan			395222			411761


			Feb			413949			426281


			Mar			408861			424036


			April			413031			425647


			May			416795			425218


			June			420286			426130


			July			412411			416977


			Aug			415370			416829


			Sept			432972			427370










100%

90%

80%

70%

On-Time Service- Customer

60%

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

I Results

— Goal

v" Goal not met — Actual 93.6% / Goal 94.00% down, 0.59% from prior quarter

1 |7-Aug-18 |Montgomery MUX (Short in Power Line/Second Day) Equip [83
2 |16-Aug-18 |B.F. Merge llock [Track (Cracked Rail) Equip [73
3 |6-Aug-18 |W. Oak/Emb Multi-Cause (BPD & Medical) People (45
4 [22-Jul-18 |MacArthur BPD (Fatal Stabbing) People (36
5 |[6-Jul-18 Richmond Yard [Routing (Switch) Equip |34
6 |26-Sep-18 |Bay Fair Debris on Trackway (Mylar Balloon/F.O.) Debris |30
7 |[17-Jul-18 |A.L.M-lines Congestion (Overlapping Delays) Multi |30
8 |[6-Aug-18 |Montgomery MUX (First Day-See Item 1) Equip [29
9 [14-Aug-18 |Daly City False Occupancy (Loose Jumper Wire) Equip (27
10 [22-Sep-18 |Civic Center Debris on Trackway (Insulator Damage/Smoke) |Debris [24






Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


0.9110322581


0.95


0.8950322581


0.95


0.8949


0.95


0.9147419355


0.95


0.9161724138


0.95


0.921516129


0.95


0.9297419355


0.95


0.9372857143


0.95


0.9362903226


0.95


0.9478333333


0.95


0.9501935484


0.95


0.9271333333


0.95


0.9423870968


0.94


0.9281034483


0.94


0.9368076923


0.94





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			0.9110322581			0.95


			Aug			0.8950322581			0.95


			Sept			0.8949			0.95


			Oct			0.9147419355			0.95


			Nov			0.9161724138			0.95


			Dec			0.921516129			0.95


			Jan			0.9297419355			0.95


			Feb			0.9372857143			0.95


			Mar			0.9362903226			0.95


			April			0.9478333333			0.95


			May			0.9501935484			0.95


			June			0.9271333333			0.95


			July			0.9423870968			0.94


			Aug			0.9281034483			0.94


			Sept			0.9368076923			0.94










On-Time Service - Train

100%

90%

80% -

70% A

60%
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

JResults =—Goal

Goal Met — Actual 91.3% / 91% Goal, up 0.07% from prior quarter

37.7% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each

under 5 minutes

POLICE ACTIONS

TRAIN CONTROL
RAILCAR

PATRON ILL
OPERATIONS
VANDALISM
CONGESTION
MULTIPLE CAUSE
PERSON ON TRACKWAY
OBJECT ON TRACKWAY

29.2%of delayed trains
10.8%of delayed trains
8.5%o0f delayed trains
7.8%of delayed trains
7.0%of delayed trains
5.8%of delayed trains
5.5%of delayed trains
4.0%of delayed trains
3.9%of delayed trains
3.3%of delayed trains

10





Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


0.8477472527


0.92


0.8250674414


0.92


0.821452514


0.92


0.8471486114


0.92


0.8650103752


0.92


0.8723076923


0.92


0.8767196905


0.92


0.8940097516


0.92


0.8924205379


0.92


0.9164177512


0.92


0.9220899199


0.92


0.8973327688


0.92


0.9157916842


0.91


0.9021055783


0.91


0.921260274


0.91





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			0.8477472527			0.92


			Aug			0.8250674414			0.92


			Sept			0.821452514			0.92


			Oct			0.8471486114			0.92


			Nov			0.8650103752			0.92


			Dec			0.8723076923			0.92


			Jan			0.8767196905			0.92


			Feb			0.8940097516			0.92


			Mar			0.8924205379			0.92


			April			0.9164177512			0.92


			May			0.9220899199			0.92


			June			0.8973327688			0.92


			July			0.9157916842			0.91


			Aug			0.9021055783			0.91


			Sept			0.921260274			0.91










Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

AN

5.0

4.5

4.0

3.5

3.0

25

2.0 1

1.5

1.0

05 1 M
0.0 ! ! ! !

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

Goal met — Actual 0.76 / Goal 1.00

Train Control is continuing to improve plant conditions and Wayside
equipment to enhance proficiency and reliability.

Two events in August related to Montgomery Train Control Cabling
drove number

11





Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs

1.0
0.9

0.8

0.7
0.6

C—3JResults

0.5

0.4
0.3

0.2

/N\

0.1

0.0

%; \\

July Aug Sept Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb Mar  Aprii  May June July Aug

v
v

Goal met — Actual 0.03 / Goal 0.08

Expedited and aggressive data analytics along with additional
monitoring enables quick resolution to computer control problems
as they occur.

Sept

e G0al

12





Traction Power

Includes Coverboards, Insulators, Third Rail Trips, Substations, Delays Per 100 Train Runs

2.5

2.0

1.5

CJResults

1.0 —Goal

0.5

0.0\|/|/ >~ —71 |~ . |

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

v" Goal met — Actual .04 / Goal .2
v RR Projects continuing to improve reliability
v’ Replacing Insulators Downtown SF Stations (FY19)

v' M-Line and K-Line 34.5 kv cable replacements
underway

v’ K-Line 34.5kv Redundancy restored (from A-Line)

13





Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


0.14


0.2


0.08


0.2


0.12


0.2


0.26


0.2


0.04


0.2


0.07


0.2


0.11


0.2


0.27


0.2


0.02


0.2


0.05


0.2


0.01


0.2


0.11


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.01


0.2





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			0.14			0.2


			Aug			0.08			0.2


			Sept			0.12			0.2


			Oct			0.26			0.2


			Nov			0.04			0.2


			Dec			0.07			0.2


			Jan			0.11			0.2


			Feb			0.27			0.2


			Mar			0.02			0.2


			April			0.05			0.2


			May			0.01			0.2


			June			0.11			0.2


			July			0.06			0.2


			Aug			0.06			0.2


			Sept			0.01			0.2










Transportation

Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train Operator-Tower Procedures and Other Operational Delays
Per 100 Train Runs

c—Results

— Goal

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

0.0 + + +
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met — Actual .5/ Goal .5

v Continued emphasis on delay monitoring and
coordination with Lines to ensure on-time dispatches

14





Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


0.63


0.5


0.8


0.5


0.65


0.5


0.52


0.5


0.23


0.5


0.48


0.5


0.6


0.5


0.36


0.5


0.7


0.5


0.73


0.5


0.49


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.51


0.5


0.59


0.5





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			0.63			0.5


			Aug			0.8			0.5


			Sept			0.65			0.5


			Oct			0.52			0.5


			Nov			0.23			0.5


			Dec			0.48			0.5


			Jan			0.6			0.5


			Feb			0.36			0.5


			Mar			0.7			0.5


			April			0.73			0.5


			May			0.49			0.5


			June			0.4			0.5


			July			0.4			0.5


			Aug			0.51			0.5


			Sept			0.59			0.5










Includes Rail, Track Tie, Misalignment, Switch, Delays Per 100 Train Runs

CJResults

—Goal

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

0.0 /l/l\./l/r\l\

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met — Actual .01 / Goal .30
v" One broken rail incident in August

15





Chart1


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			0.3


			May			0.3


			June			0.3


			July			0.3


			Aug			0.3


			Sept			0.3





Results


Goal


0.039


0.3


0.125


0.3


0.24


0.3


0.04


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.16


0.3


0.13


0.3


0


0.3


0


0.3


0.03


0.01


0


0.03


0.37


0.01





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			July			0.039			0.3


			Aug			0.125			0.3


			Sept			0.24			0.3


			Oct			0.04			0.3


			Nov			0.1			0.3


			Dec			0.16			0.3


			Jan			0.13			0.3


			Feb			0.00			0.3


			Mar			0.00			0.3


			April			0.03			0.3


			May			0.01			0.3


			June			0.00			0.3


			July			0.03			0.3


			Aug			0.37			0.3


			Sept			0.01			0.3










Mean Time Between Service Delays (Hours)

7500
7000
6500
6000
5500
5000
4500
4000
3500
3000
2500

July Aug Sept Oct

/] / \ C—JResults

N T N T | =

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met — MTBSD Goal 4,000 hours / Actual 5,032 hours
v’ Focused on reliability- suffered a little on car availability

v’ Close attention to corrective maintenance and repeaters

16





Number of Cars

625

600 —— —

575 L—| 1|

550 A

525 A

500 A

475 A

450 A

425 A

400

Juy Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July

Aug

Sept

C—Results

e Goal

v' Goal not met — 585 Actual vs. 595 Required (Changed to 603 in Sept.)

v" Availability C-Car 82%, A/B= 95%
v’ Vehicles are requiring more troubleshooting
v" Some relief with Fleet of the Future in service

17





100%

95% ~

C—JActive

e Goal

90% - —All

85% -

80%
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met - Actual 99.03% / Goal 98%
v' Team is doing a fantastic job staying on top of station elevators

v" There were 10 elevators throughout the quarter that were responsible
for excessive out-of-service time — 7 were Garage & 3 were Stations.

18





Chart1


			July			July			0.984


			Aug			Aug			0.973


			Sept			Sept			0.986


			Oct			Oct			0.987


			Nov			Nov			0.987


			Dec			Dec			0.988


			Jan			Jan			0.977


			Feb			Feb			0.979


			Mar			Mar			0.982


			April			April			0.987


			May			May			0.98


			June			June			0.985


			July			July			0.991


			Aug			Aug			0.992


			Sept			Sept			0.988





Active


Goal


All


0.984


0.98


0.973


0.98


0.986


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.977


0.98


0.979


0.98


0.982


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.98


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.991


0.98


0.992


0.98


0.988


0.98





Sheet1


			Month			Active			Goal			All


			July			0.984			0.98			0.984


			Aug			0.973			0.98			0.973


			Sept			0.986			0.98			0.986


			Oct			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Nov			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Dec			0.988			0.98			0.988


			Jan			0.977			0.98			0.977


			Feb			0.979			0.98			0.979


			Mar			0.982			0.98			0.982


			April			0.987			0.98			0.987


			May			0.98			0.98			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98			0.985


			July			0.991			0.98			0.991


			Aug			0.992			0.98			0.992


			Sept			0.988			0.98			0.988










100%

95% -

C—J Active
= Goal

90% A —All

85% -

80%
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

v' Goal not met — Actual 92.3% / Goal 97%.
v’ Garage elevators lower priority due to redundancy

19





Chart1


			July			July			0.984


			Aug			Aug			0.973


			Sept			Sept			0.986


			Oct			Oct			0.987


			Nov			Nov			0.987


			Dec			Dec			0.988


			Jan			Jan			0.977


			Feb			Feb			0.979


			Mar			Mar			0.982


			April			April			0.987


			May			May			0.98


			June			June			0.985


			July			July			0.991


			Aug			Aug			0.992


			Sept			Sept			0.988





Active


Goal


All


0.984


0.98


0.973


0.98


0.986


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.977


0.98


0.979


0.98


0.982


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.98


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.991


0.98


0.992


0.98


0.988


0.98





Sheet1


			Month			Active			Goal			All


			July			0.984			0.98			0.984


			Aug			0.973			0.98			0.973


			Sept			0.986			0.98			0.986


			Oct			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Nov			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Dec			0.988			0.98			0.988


			Jan			0.977			0.98			0.977


			Feb			0.979			0.98			0.979


			Mar			0.982			0.98			0.982


			April			0.987			0.98			0.987


			May			0.98			0.98			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98			0.985


			July			0.991			0.98			0.991


			Aug			0.992			0.98			0.992


			Sept			0.988			0.98			0.988










\

- :\/

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  April  May June July

v" Goal not met — Actual 89.9% / Goal 93%

v" Up 3.2% from prior quarter
v' 19t Street Escalator — bull gear replacement

20





Chart1


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.907


0.95


0.8907


0.934


0.95


0.8996


0.922


0.95


0.8693


0.886


0.95


0.8216


0.926


0.95


0.8307


0.938


0.95


0.8729


0.87


0.95


0.8096


0.868


0.95


0.8317


0.787


0.95


0.7511


0.873


0.95


0.86


0.849


0.95


0.8159


0.879


0.95


0.8515


0.89


0.93


0.8678


0.904


0.93


0.8723


0.901


0.93


0.8699





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			July			0.907			0.95			0.8907


			Aug			0.934			0.95			0.8996


			Sept			0.922			0.95			0.8693


			Oct			0.886			0.95			0.8216


			Nov			0.926			0.95			0.8307


			Dec			0.938			0.95			0.8729


			Jan			0.87			0.95			0.8096


			Feb			0.868			0.95			0.8317


			Mar			0.787			0.95			0.7511


			April			0.873			0.95			0.86


			May			0.849			0.95			0.8159


			June			0.879			0.95			0.8515


			July			0.89			0.93			0.8678


			Aug			0.904			0.93			0.8723


			Sept			0.901			0.93			0.8699










100%

90% -

80% -

70% A

60%
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met — Actual 96.9% / Goal 96%
v’ Preventative maintenance continues to improve

v' Performed two planned / scheduled large step chain
replacement jobs

v' Five planned / scheduled handrail replacements

21





Chart1


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.961


0.96


0.9495


0.967


0.96


0.9571


0.967


0.96


0.9503


0.958


0.96


0.9465


0.95


0.96


0.9424


0.966


0.96


0.9657


0.949


0.96


0.9485


0.952


0.96


0.9595


0.958


0.96


0.9619


0.968


0.96


0.9736


0.944


0.96


0.9583


0.948


0.96


0.9556


0.961


0.96


0.9623


0.986


0.96


0.9747


0.961


0.96


0.9584





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			July			0.9610			0.9600			0.9495


			Aug			0.9670			0.9600			0.9571


			Sept			0.9670			0.9600			0.9503


			Oct			0.9580			0.9600			0.9465


			Nov			0.9500			0.9600			0.9424


			Dec			0.9660			0.9600			0.9657


			Jan			0.9490			0.9600			0.9485


			Feb			0.9520			0.9600			0.9595


			Mar			0.9580			0.9600			0.9619


			April			0.9680			0.9600			0.9736


			May			0.9440			0.9600			0.9583


			June			0.9480			0.9600			0.9556


			July			0.9610			0.9600			0.9623


			Aug			0.9860			0.9600			0.9747


			Sept			0.9610			0.9600			0.9584










100%

90% A

80% A

70% A

60%

July Aug Sept Oct

v" Goal met - Actual 99.6% / Goal 99.0%
v’ Proactive maintenance continues to improve gate

performance

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

April

May

June

July

Aug

Sept

C—Results

e G 0al

22





100%

90% A

80% A

70% A

60%
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprili May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal met - Actual 98.7% / Goal 95.0%
v’ Parking Validation Machines Availability — 99.0%

—Results

e G 0al






Ratings guide: e Changes in the PES questionnaire: Appearance of BART

Scale:

. Excellent Landscaping was combined with Walkways and Entry Plaza
* Good
; Only Fair * Building historical data for all of the elements

* Rating=% Excellent and Good

* Will establish goal for FY20

FY18Ql FY18Q2 FY18Q3 FY18Q4 FY19Ql

BART Parking Lot Cleanliness 71.4% 70.2% 71.4% 74.2% 71.7%

Appearance Of BART Landscaping, Walkways &
Entry Plaza Just Outside Station* 58.1%

* New or modified attributes

24





[‘atis'zgfe"f“‘de’ * Changes in the PES questionnaire: added Cleanliness of Concourse,
; Dxcellent Escalator Cleanliness, Stairwell Cleanliness; dropped Cleanliness of Other
* Only Fair Areas
: FR’ggL?% Excellent and Good e Building historical data for the all of the elements
e Will establish goal for FY20
FY18 Q1 FY18 Q2 FY18 Q3 FY18 Q4 FY19Ql
Cleanliness Of Station Platform 62.4% 63.1% 63.9% 63.3% 67.6% T
Restroom Cleanliness 329% 34.7% 32.9% 35.2% 43.4% 1
Elevator Cleanliness 43.8% 46.7% 45.7% 42.8% 55.5% T

Cleanliness Of Concourse *
Escalator Cleanliness *
Stairwell Cleanliness *

* New or modified attributes

Tindicates a statistically significant increase from the prior quarter

62.7%
63.7%
56.8%

25





Rat

ings guide:
Scale:

e Excellent

e Good

e Only Fair

* Poor

e Rating=% Excellent and Good

Station Vandalism

Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and
Good

Building historical data for all of the elements
Will establish goal for FY20

FY19 Q1

Station kept free of graffiti 71.6%

v' 71.6% of those surveyed rated this category as either Excellent or Good

26





Ratings guide:  Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and
L Ereslent Good
* Good
 Only Fair * Building historical data for all of the elements
" Rating=% Excellent and Good  Will establish goal for FY20
FY19 Q1
Train Interior Cleanliness (65%) 61.7%
Train Interior kept free of graffiti (35%) 87.7%
Composite score 70.8%

v’ Train interior cleanliness 61.7%
v’ Train interior kept free of graffiti 87.7%

27





Ra

tings guide:
Scale:

e Excellent

* Good

e Only Fair

* Poor

¢ Rating=% Excellent and Good

Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and
Good

Building historical data for all of the elements
Will establish goal for FY20

FY19 Q1

Comfortable Temperature on board train 79.7%

v 79.7 % of those surveyed rated this category as either Excellent or Good

28





Ratings guide:
* Scale:

e Excellent

* Good

e Only Fair

* Poor

* Rating=% Excellent and Good

New Performance Indicator

Customer service from Station Agent replaces Availability of
Brochures and Availability of Station Agents

PA Announcements for Transfer, Next Station and Destination
combined into one attribute

Building historical data for the all of the elements
Will establish goal for FY20

FY19 Q1
Customer service from Station Agent (if used today)* 69.8%
Onboard next stop, destination and transfer announcements* 76.5%
Onboard delay announcements (if this train was delayed today)* 78.5%

* New or modified attributes

29





T e e New Performance Indicator
e Excellent
L e * Building historical data for the all of the elements
\ hoong% xcellentandcood | ® Wil establish goal for FY20
* Yes/No
FY19 Q1
How well BART is addressing homelessness * 23.7% (Excellent and Good)
Rider saw someone not pay their fare* 18.1% (Yes)

* New or modified attributes

30





Complaints Per 100,000 Customers

14
w 12
€10 //
% C—IResults
S 87 —
S 6 -
=1 e Goal
S 4
$ 2
O I 1 1 1 1
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept
v Total complaints increased by 674 (28.1%) from last quarter, up 687 (28.8%) over
the first quarter FY18.
v Includes 280 transmitted via social media (not previously accounted for)
v" New Category Biohazard accounted for 15 complaints
v" 303 Complaints for Policy, Advertising
v' Compliments were up 109 over last quarter and 127 from same quarter FY18

31





Patron Safety

Station Incidents per Million Patrons

10
9
<
o 8
-
)
&L 7
C— Results
C
S
E 5 e Benchmark
)
+=
C
()] 4
S
O
£ 3
S
.'.: 2
©
&
1 u
0
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1
v' Goal met

32





Patron Safety

Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons

4
(%]

c

o

i

© 3

o

c

.2
= C—Results
=
A

= 2

c

(]

he] @ Benchmark
KS)

£

Q

(s}

c 1

[J]

>

0
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v" Goal met

33





Employee Safety

Lost Time Injuries/llinesses per OSHA Incidence Rate

16

14

12

10 C—Results

—_—
\ e Benichmark
6 4

Lost Time Injuries/lliness per OSHA rate

2 i

0
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v Goal met

34





OSHA Recordable Injuries/llinesses/OSHA rate

Employee Safety

OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llinesses per OSHA Incidence Rate

24

20

16

12

C— Results

Benchmark

0
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v Goal met

35





Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles

Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles

1.000

0.900

0.800

0.700

0.600

0.500

0.400

0.300

0.200

0.100

0.000

C— Results

Benchmark

FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4

v Goal met

FY2019 Qtr 1

36





Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

15

1.0

C— Results

e Benchmark

o
3

0.0 ! ! !
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4

v Goal met

FY2019 Qtr 1

37





BART Police Presence

20%

Ratings Guide: C—Results
Yes
No
| Do‘n t Know @ Goal (11.9%
Rating = % Yes Avg.)

10% 10.8% 10.6% 10.5% LB

10.5%
0%
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v" Goal not met (Goal Set FY18 Quarter 2)

Police seen on train 5.9%
Police seen outside the station 15.2%
Police seen in the station 9.8%
Police seen on train after 7:00PM 6.6%
Police seen outside the station after 7:00PM 17.2%
Police seen in the station after 7:00PM 11.3% 38






*Quality of Life Violations: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration

250

200

150

\ O Results

e \

50 -

Crimes per Million Trips

O T
FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr2 FY2018Qtr3 FY2018Qtr4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v’ Quality of Life incidents are down from the last quarter and
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

39





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


99.4500954653


67.7868499551


134.4125758862


44.5903126896


40.3755237816





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 1			99.4500954653			0


			FY2018 Qtr 2			67.7868499551			0


			FY2018 Qtr 3			134.4125758862			0


			FY2018 Qtr 4			44.5903126896			0


			FY2019 Qtr 1			40.3755237816			0










Crimes Against Persons include: Homicide, Rape, Robbery and Aggravated Assaults

a
I
" /
o
— 3
-
[
9 C—Results
S 2
CIL) — Goal
o
[%]
(]
e 17
-
o
(0]
FY2018 OQtr 1 FY2018 OQtr 2 FY2018 OQtr 3 FY2018 OQtr 4 FY2019 OQtr 1

v" Goal not met

v Crimes against persons are down from the last quarter but up from
the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

40






Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


Goal


3.1463337443


2


3.4900160373


2


3.6012555417


2


3.867527121


2


3.8281493375


2





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 1			3.1463337443			2


			FY2018 Qtr 2			3.4900160373			2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			3.6012555417			2


			FY2018 Qtr 4			3.867527121			2


			FY2019 Qtr 1			3.8281493375			2










Crimes per 1000 Parking Spaces

Auto Burglary

12

10

C—Results

—Goal

/\

0
FY2018 Q1 FY2018 Q2 FY2018 Q3 FY2018 Q4 FY2019 Q1

v' Goal met

v" The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from
last quarter and from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

41





Chart1


			FY2018 Q1			FY2018 Q1


			FY2018 Q2			FY2018 Q2


			FY2018 Q3			FY2018 Q3


			FY2018 Q4			FY2018 Q4


			FY2019 Q1			FY2019 Q1





Results


Goal


6.26


8


6.26


8


4.41


8


5.88


8


4.39


8





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Q1			6.26			8


			FY2018 Q2			6.26			8


			FY2018 Q3			4.41			8


			FY2018 Q4			5.88			8


			FY2019 Q1			4.39			8










Auto Theft

12

10

JResults

—Goal

Crimes per 1000 Parking Spaces
0]

0
Fy2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1

v' Goal met

v" The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from
last quarter and from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

42





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


Goal


2.04


6


2.29


6


2.24


6


1.95


6


1.66


6





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 1			2.04			6


			FY2018 Qtr 2			2.29			6


			FY2018 Qtr 3			2.24			6


			FY2018 Qtr 4			1.95			6


			FY2019 Qtr 1			1.66			6










Average Emergency Response Time

6 I Results

- Goal

Response Time (in Minutes)
N
|

2 _

o

FY2018 FY2018 FY2018 FY2018 FY2019
Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1

v Goal not met

v" The average Emergency Response Time goal was up from the prior
qguarter and equivalent to the corresponding quarter of the prior
fiscal year.

43





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


Goal


5.3


5


5.18


5


4.96


5


4.36


5


5.31


5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 1			5.3			5


			FY2018 Qtr 2			5.18			5


			FY2018 Qtr 3			4.96			5


			FY2018 Qtr 4			4.36			5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			5.31			5










Total Quarterly Bike Thefts

Bike Theft

300

250

200 C—Results

150

100 -

— Goal
50 -

(@) . .
FY2018 FY2018 FY2018 FY2018 FY2019

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1

v' Goal met
v’ 122 bike thefts for current quarter, up 23 from last quarter.

44





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


Goal


125


150


88


150


71


150


99


150


122


150





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 1			125			150


			FY2018 Qtr 2			88			150


			FY2018 Qtr 3			71			150


			FY2018 Qtr 4			99			150


			FY2019 Qtr 1			122			150










		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		New Customer Service Indicators

		Customer Ridership

		�On-Time Service - Customer�

		�On-Time Service - Train�

		Wayside Train Control System

		Computer Control System

		Traction Power 

		Transportation

		Track

		Car Equipment - Reliability

		Car Equipment – Availability @ 0400 hours

		Elevator Availability - Stations

		Elevator Availability - Garage

		Escalator Availability - Street

		Escalator Availability - Platform

		AFC Gate Availability

		AFC Vendor Availability

		�Environment - Outside Stations�

		Environment - Inside Stations

		Station Vandalism

		Train Interior Cleanliness

		Train Temperature

		Customer Service

		Homelessness and Fare Evasion

		Customer Complaints

		Patron Safety

		Patron Safety

		Employee Safety

		Employee Safety

		Operating Safety

		Operating Safety

		BART Police Presence

		�Quality of Life*�

		�Crimes Against Persons�

		�Auto Burglary�

		Auto Theft

		Average Emergency Response Time

		Bike Theft




CAPITOL
CORRIDOR 7

New Transbay Rail Crossing:
Program Overview + Project Contracting Plan

Presentation to BART Board
November 15, 2018






W New Transbay Rail Crossing: S
goho o=

Today

New Transbay Rail Crossing program overview
Opportunities for rail to serve our megaregion
| Project advancement plan
. Agreerﬁent patkages

Next steps





New Transbay Rail Crossing:

x L .
Recent regional work

CAPITOL |
CORRIDOR

2017 MTC-led Core Capacity study

fierl_.

San-in
Francisco






Strategic Advising and Program Management

Program overview

Community engagement and partnering

Project Initiation

Many Alternatives

v

Feasibility Study

2-4 Alternatives

v

Environmental Analysis

1 Alternative

v

Design

v

Construction






New Transbay Rail Crossing: @"..'

CAPITOL |

Casting a wide net SARIL

= Megaregion

N
Mendocing)

= BART + CCJPA partnership
= 2050 horizon

= Holistic approach to
Transportation + Land Use

Source: Dash Nelson G, Rae A (2016) An Economic Geography of the United States: From Commutes to megaregions.





Peak-Hour Person Trip Capacity, all modes

New Transbay Rail Crossing: é"‘

k—:——_

1 : CAPITOL
rOJECte eman or capaCIty CORRIDOR
80k — PROJECTED TRANSBAY TRAVEL DEMAND AND CAPACITY
gunst® CONSTRAINED CAPACITY
5 ot ss® Demand exceeds capacity;
i el gns® more people want to cross
7] “Gao“r‘ﬂ" the bay than are able to
50k PLANNED CAPACITY
Planned transit
Improvements e.g. new
40K trains, buses, and ferrles
30k
20k CURRENT CAPACITY
Person Trips
(all modes, during the
peak hour)
10k
0 5

2020 2025 2030 2035





Toe New Transbay Rail Crossing: @_'.."

Adding 4 million residents by 2040

% 8
(o=
S
E 6
c
0
c 4 , ; z ,
= .
Qo
@)
i | I I l
Bay Area Sacramento San Joaquin, Monterey Bay
Region Stanislaus, Area
Merced

W 1970 = 2010 ®m2040 (estimate)





g—————___

Standard-gauge rail opportunities

1. Tie together the megaregion, one-seat ride connecting the
Peninsula/Silicon Valley/SF with East Bay/ Sacramento/Central
Valley communities

2.Better connect the Bay Area’s strong economy with projected
housing growth in Sacramento/Central Valley communities

3.Support economic development in Sacramento and the
Northern San Joaquin Valley

4. Fully leverage Caltrain modernization, High Speed Rail, other
Capitol Corridor and Transbay Terminal investments to maximize
their utility

Service to be provided by any existing or

future new standard-gauge rail operator





BART objectives

o . - F"ﬁ
T New Transbay Rail Crossing: ==

1. Capacity: Double BART bay crossing capacity, and provide
crowding relief for Market Street stations

2. Land use: Access new markets and growth opportunities

3. Redundancy and reliability: Create robust system to
respond to disruptions or failure points, increase mamtenance
window, create potential for 24-hour service

4. Rail connectivity: Create seamless connections between
BART and other rail systems

5. Do no harm: Do not degrade safety, throughput or reliability
in the core of the existing system — Market Street

6. Constructability: Consider constructability, especially on
Market Street, and the cost effectiveness of investment





=

CAPITOL
CORRIDOR

Funding





W New Transbay Rail Crossing: =
e 22

Partnerships

BART + Capitol Corridor core team today

Public
Jurisdictions

Transit agencies, particularly other rail operators
Funding partners
Private sector

Will define a phased engagement plan

10





W New Transbay Rail Crossing: =
b y 8 —

Considerations

To be evaluated:
Public benefit
Environmental benefits
Environmental impacts
ROIl/cost effectiveness
Land use opportunities
Project delivery methods

Other issues:
Governance structure
Construction management
Operations management

CAPITOL |
CORRIDOR

Functionality

Equity

Regional economy
User experience
Revenue generation -

Approval processes
Funding

11





=

Related efforts

Plan Bay Area 2050, MTC -
= Adoption 2021
Bay Crossings Study, MTC

= Update to 1991, 2002, 2012 studies

= Results inform Plan Ba;/ Area 2050
= Completion early 2019
South Alameda County Rail Study, ACTC + MTC
= To evaluate rail alternatives in South Alameda County

= Starting December 2018, completion 2020





W New Transbay Rail Crossing: @_""'

Complete:
Contract 1:
Agreement Package 2:

Agreement Package 3:

Agreement Package 4:

Agreement Package 5:

Agreement Package 6+:

Agreement packages

Project Brochure and Pre-environmental approach
Economic Impacts report, Bay Area Council + CCJPA
Strategic Advising + Program Management

Feasibility Study + Community Engagement +
Environmental Analysis

Design Development + Bid Packages + Design Services
During Construction

Construction Management

Construction (1)

1) Number and format of construction agreements tbd

13





. . . ﬂ
K New Transbay Rail Crossing: =

Next Steps

2018

November Industry engagement on overall program

RFP for Agreement Package 2

December Agreement Package 2 pre-proposal meeting
2019

February Proposals due on Agreement Package 2

April Notice of short list to proposers

May Interviews with short-list proposers

June BART Board consideration of contract award

CCJPA Board update






GoBikes at BART

Update: November 2018

GoBike Deployment at 19" Street Oakland

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018






Ford GoBike Background

Program Structure

Regional-level agreement between MTC and
Motivate (operator of Ford GoBike) enables privately
funded expansion of Bay Area bike share:

« 10 year, exclusive agreement (+ options) for
dock-based, pedal bikes

« launched July 2017

* includes: San Francisco, Oakland, Berkeley,
San Jose and Emeryville (option for other
cities to participate)

BART’s Role: enter into agreement, approve/permit
siting of equipment of BART property, co-promotion
Motivate’s role: maintain equipment (bikes and
docks), all aspects of program operation

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 1





Ford GoBike Background
Rollout to date

Bikes deployed: 3,500+
« Stations/Docks 317
» Trips since inception: 2,100,000
« Members: 16,000+
* Low income members: 3,500 (20%)
* Program area: Berkeley, Emeryuville,
Oakland, San Francisco and San Jose

 eBikes: 300 in SF

* Dockless Demonstration: 200 hikes in
San Jose

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 2





Bike Sharing at BART Background

BART Access Hierarchy

« At the station-level, project design should consider the
Station Access Design Hierarchy. ﬂ
« When space is constrained: -

* ensure safe access for most vulnerable modes c%é)
» trade-offs made to benefit modes higher on scale

=

TRANSIT AND
SHUTTLE

o

DROP-OFF AND
PICK-UP

AUTO
PARKING

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 3





Bike Sharing at BART Background

Stations with GoBikes

, San Francisco

4 Embarcadero, Montgomery, Powell,
L Civic Center, 16" Street
7 < Oakland

B 12" Street, 19" Street, Fruitvale,
sl Lake Merritt, MacArthur, Rockridge,
" West Oakland

2 Berkeley

| Ashby, Downtown Berkeley, North
" Berkeley

Planned: 24t Street, Glen Park,
Balboa Park

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 4





Bike Sharing at BART Background

GoBike Trips to/from BART b

September 2018

STATION Total GoBike Trips Avg. Weekday

(0&D) GoBike Trips
Powell St BART 11,395 450
Montgomery BART 6,298 249
Embarcadero BART 4,413 174
Civic Center BART 3,967 157
19th Street BART 3,046 120
16th Street BART* 3,022 119
Downtown Berkeley BART 2,021 80 Total September trips:
MacArthur 1,975 78
West Oakland 1,902 75 18.6 ’?18 0
Ashby 1539 - BART pro>_<|m|ty ~ 25% of
Lake Merritt 1,513 60 this total
Rockridge BART 1,439 57
12th Strret (Frank Ogawa) 1,390 55
North Berkeley BART 681 27
Fruitvale BART 224 9
TOTAL 44,825 1,771

* August data for 16t St. because of September closure

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 5





Bike Sharing at BART Background
MacArthur Example

poke” !;rip pa“tt"‘erp

TEMESCAL

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 6





24t Street Plaza
Original Proposal

t Plaza—16 docks ” Southwest Plaza—17 docks

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 7





24t Street / Mission Cultural |

District —Concerns

« Lack of opportunity for community participation in
the initial program design

« Another aspect of gentrification/displacement
* Does not serve low-income community members

 Limits opportunities for community use of the plaza
where the bikes occupy space

» Loss of on-street parking

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018 8





* The edges of the plazas are
the areas primarily used for
community activities

« The proposed bike share

docks are in underutilized
areas of the plazas

BART Department responsible for this report goes here

T A .

/‘ —171,

4 Stuffed’

Bank of-theaW.est wmmmm—
3 Bankiofi the West- ATM

g
0}
7).
=
S)
=
=

)

{
f

1

S——Tes
j———_
—_® 24thist Missig

24thiSta MISSIOn

1SIUOISSINE ===

-

-'24th St

R X
ald

L ebenald’s !
Ry

- ¥ 5
- )

. l'alSantaneca b
De La Mlssmn 'n

A 1
. ,Mr Pol

o)

- *\
=Y

_' . y
'-._.

N .
. A g
:

"M A es” nld





Street—Installation Options

Z
@ Ford GoBike
2,
=)
@ Recommended
] .
n Locations
v
o
{T=]
o
6] .
Alternate Location
24th St
3]
24th St (--"""||Ill!ll!ll)
o 180’
o
= E
>
g =)
Mission Branch Library -
. ] Eg
@
<
(%2}
@,
w o
) 2
2 @
P

@

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018

10





Questions / Discussion

n i \‘

‘“H\\IH‘ -

R
i W —

GoBikes @ BART, November 2018







ATTACHMENT E
BART ADVERTISING CONTENT GUIDELINES

OBJECTIVE

Through this policy, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) intends
to establish uniform, viewpoint-neutral standards for the display of advertising within all
BART facilities (including, but not limited to, stations, track ways, and railcars). In
setting its advertising standards, BART seeks to meet the following goals and
objectives:

(a) Maintain a secure and orderly operating environment.

(o)  Maintain a safe and welcoming environment for all BART passengers, including
minors who travel on or come in contact with the BART system.

(c) Maximize advertising and fare revenue. In no event shall any advertising be
installed without payment of the prevailing commercial rate.

(d)  Avoid identifying or associating BART, its employees, board members, or its
contractors with the advertisements or the viewpoints of advertisers.

BART reserves the right, from time to time, to suspend, modify, or revoke the
application of any or all of these Guidelines as it deems necessary to comply with legal
mandates, or to facilitate its primary transportation function, or to fulfill the goals and
objectives referred to herein. All provisions of these Guidelines shall be deemed
severable.

BART is committed to providing an environment free of discrimination. It is also the
District’s policy and practice to assure equal application of these guidelines without
regard to race, color, marital status, sexual orientation, religion, national origin,
ancestry, age, sex, gender identity, disability, medical condition, or Vietham Era
veterans’ status.

ADVERTISING PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

(a)  BART shall, from time to time, select “Advertising Contractors” who shall be
responsible for the daily administration of BART’s advertising programs, in a
manner consistent with these Guidelines and with the terms and conditions of
their agreements with BART. The advertising program shall include, but not be
limited to, promotion, solicitation, sales, accounting, billing, collections, and
posting of advertising displays on or in all BART facilities including, but not
limited to, stations, track ways, and railcars.

(b) BART shall designate an employee as its “Contract Administrator” to be the
primary contact for the Advertising Contractors on issues related to advertising

6M7066 Exhibit 1, Attachment E
2008 Page 1 of 4





content. Questions regarding the terms, provisions, and requirements of these
Guidelines shall be addressed initially to the Contract Administrator.

(c) The Advertising Contractors shall comply with these Guidelines, and shall review all
advertising with reference to them. If there is any question as to whether a proposed
advertisement falls into a prohibited category--as outlined in these Guidelines--the
Advertising Contractors shall refer that advertisement to the Contract Administrator
for review and consideration. The Contract Administrator, together with the
Department Manager of Marketing & Research, shall determine whether the
proposed advertising will be accepted. In the event that the advertising is rejected,
the party or parties proposing the advertising may request in writing that the decision
be reconsidered. Upon such request, the Department Manager of Marketing &
Research shall consult with BART’s Office of the General Counsel and with the
Executive Manager — External Affairs Office or the officer designated by the General
Manager for this purpose. The Executive Manager — External Affairs Office or
General Manager designee, on the basis of such consultation, shall determine
whether the proposed advertising will be accepted or rejected.

BART OPERATIONS and PROMOTIONS

BART has the unqualified right to display, on or in its facilities, advertisements and
notices that pertain to BART operations and promotions, consistent with the provisions
of its agreement with the Advertising Contractors. Promotional materials shall include,
but not be limited to, internal marketing collateral, BART branding campaigns, and
co-promotional campaigns with third parties.

DISCLAIMERS

BART reserves the right, in all circumstances, to require that an advertisement on BART
property, its stations, its railcars or other facilities include a disclaimer indicating that
such advertising is paid for by the advertiser. BART may require the Advertising
Contractors to maintain a supply of decals imprinted with a disclaimer to this effect to
apply to ads that state a point of view. The Advertising Contractors will apply these
decals in a viewpoint-neutral manner.

ADVERTISING STANDARDS

(@) BART intends that its facilities constitute nonpublic forums that are subject to the
viewpoint-neutral restrictions set forth below. Certain forms of paid advertising
will not be permitted for placement or display on or in BART facilities. Unpaid
advertisements will not be permitted.

(b) BART shall not display or maintain any advertisement that falls within one or
more of the following categories:

() Demeaning or Disparaging. The advertisement contains material that
demeans or disparages an individual or group of individuals. For

6M7066 Exhibit 1, Attachment E
2008 Page 2 of 4





6M7066
2008

(ii)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

purposes of determining whether an advertisement contains such
material, BART will determine whether a reasonably prudent person,
knowledgeable of BART’s customer profile and using prevailing
community standards, would believe that the advertisement contains
material that ridicules or mocks, is abusive or hostile to, or debases the
dignity or stature of, an individual or group of individuals.

Tobacco. The advertisement promotes the sale or use of tobacco or
tobacco-related products, or depicts such products.

Alcoholic Beverages. The advertisement promotes or encourages the
consumption of alcoholic beverages including, but not limited to beer,
wine, and distilled spirits, or depicts such products.

Profanity. The advertisement contains words recognized by the
community as vulgar, indecent or profane for display in a public setting
that includes minors.

Graffiti. The advertisement contains graphics or language that promotes,
resembles or otherwise encourages graffiti or vandalism

Inappropriate Graphics. The advertisement contains graphics recognized
by the community as inappropriate including, but not limited to, the
depiction of human or animal bodies or body parts, or fetuses, in states of
mutilation, dismemberment, decomposition, or disfigurement.

Firearms. The advertisement either (a) contains an image of a firearm in
the foreground of the main visual or (b) contains image(s) of firearms that
occupy 15% or more of the overall advertisement.

Violence. The advertisement either (a) contains an image or description
of graphic violence, including, but not limited to, the depiction of weapons
or other implements or devices used in the advertisement in an act or acts
of violence or harm on a person or animal or (b) the advertisement, or any
material contained in it, incites or encourages, or appears to incite or
encourage, violence or violent behavior.

Unlawful Goods or Services. The advertisement, or any material
contained in it, promotes or encourages, or appears to promote or
encourage, the use or possession of unlawful or illegal goods or services.

Unlawful or Detrimental Conduct. The advertisement, or any material
contained in it, promotes or encourages, or appears to promote or
encourage, unlawful or illegal behavior or activities, or behavior that
promotes activities which are detrimental to the maintenance and safe
operation of the BART system.

Exhibit 1, Attachment E
Page 3 of 4





(xi)  False, Misleading, or Deceptive Commercial Speech. The advertisement
proposes a commercial transaction, and the advertisement, or any material
contained in it, is clearly false, misleading, or deceptive.

(xii)  Libelous Speech, Copyright Infringement, etc. The advertisement, or any
material contained in it, is libelous or an infringement of copyright, or is
otherwise unlawful or illegal or likely to subject BART to litigation.

(xiii)  Obscenity or Nudity. The advertisement contains obscene material or
images of nudity. For purposes of these Guidelines, the term “obscene
matter” shall have the meaning set forth in the California Penal Code
Section 311.

(xiv)  Prurient Interest. The advertisement contains material that describes,
depicts, or represents sexual activities, or aspects of the human anatomy in a
way that the average adult, applying contemporary community standards,
would find appeals to the prurient interest of minors or adults. For purposes
of these Guidelines, the term “minor” shall have the meaning contained in
California Penal Code Section 313.

(xv)  “Adult’-oriented Goods or Services. The advertisement promotes or
encourages, or appears to promote or encourage, a transaction related to,
or uses brand names, trademarks, slogans or other materials which are
identifiable with, films rated “X” or “NC-17,” adult book stores, adult video
stores, nude dance clubs and other adult entertainment establishments,
adult telephone services, adult internet sites, and escort services.

(xvi) Endorsement. The advertisement, or any material contained in it, implies or
declares an endorsement by BART, its directors, management, or employees,
of any service, product, or point of view, without prior written authorization of
the Contract Administrator.

(xvii) Injurious to BART and its Mission. The advertisement proposes a commercial
transaction, and the advertisement, or any material contained in it, denigrates
BART or promotes alternatives to BART in a manner that directly impairs BART
ridership and/or revenue.

6M7066 Exhibit 1, Attachment E
2008 Page 4 of 4






BART ADVERTISING CONTENT GUIDELINES - OPTION A

OBJECTIVE

Through these guidelines, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”), in keeping
with its primary function as a provider of public transportation, does not intend to convert its
property into an open public forum for public discourse, debate, or expressive activity. In furtherance
of the discrete and limited objectives described below, BART shall retain control over the nature of
advertisements accepted for posting in the BART system, and maintain its advertising space as a
nonpublic forum with limited content neutral subject matter restrictions. In setting its advertising
standards, BART seeks to meet the following goals and objectives:

(a) Maintain a secure and orderly operating environment;

(b) Maintain a safe and welcoming environment for all BART passengers, including minors
who use the BART system, without regard to race, color, marital status, sexual
orientation, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, gender identity, disability,
medical condition, or veterans’ status, and avoid claims of discrimination from the
public;

(c) Maintain and increase ridership and fare revenue;

(d) Avoiding unintentional appearance of favoritism, association with, or bias towards any
group, movement, or viewpoint;

(e) Preserve the marketing potential of the advertising space by avoiding content that the
community could view as inappropriate or harmful to the public;

(F) Increase advertising revenue to help support BART service to the public;
(9) Avoid imposing demeaning or disparaging messages on a captive audience;

(h) Reduce the diversion of resources from BART objectives caused by controversy
surrounding advertisements.

BART retains the unqualified right to display, on or in its facilities, advertisements and notices that
pertain to BART operations and promotions, consistent with the provisions of its agreement with the
Advertising Contractors. Promotional materials shall include, but not be limited to, internal
marketing collateral, BART branding campaigns, and co-promotional campaigns with third parties.
Consistent with the status of the BART premises to which this policy pertains as a nonpublic forum,
BART does not accept free public service announcements. These Guidelines shall be effective upon
adoption and shall be enforced to the degree that it does not impair the obligations of any executed
contract. BART reserves the right, from time to time, to suspend, modify, or revoke the application
of any or all of these Guidelines as it deems necessary to comply with legal mandates, facilitate its
primary transportation function, to ensure the safety or security of BART customers and BART
facilities, or to fulfill the goals and objectives referred to herein. All provisions of these Guidelines
shall be deemed severable.

For purposes of understanding the meaning of advertisements, BART may refer to information
beyond the advertisement including, but not limited to, dictionaries, reviews by authoritative bodies,
or public information regarding the advertiser. BART shall assess whether an independent,

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
1|Page





reasonably prudent person, knowledgeable of BART’s customer profile and using prevailing
community standards, would believe that the advertisement complies with the provisions of these
Guidelines. In the case of advertisements that use double entendres or multiple interpretations, all
meanings of the advertisement must comply with these Guidelines. BART reserves the right, in all
circumstances, to require that an advertisement in the BART system include a disclaimer indicating
that such advertising is paid for by the advertiser, stating that "The views expressed in this
advertisement do not reflect the views of BART," or a similar statement, and BART may set
minimum size standards for the disclaimer to ensure legibility.

ADVERTISING STANDARDS

A. Permitted Advertising Categories
The BART system is limited to only the following categories of advertising:

1. Commercial Advertising. Paid communications from a for-profit entity or entities.

2. Governmental Advertising. Paid communications from public entities created by
government action with the intent to advance a specific government purpose as well as
communications from BART that promote BART or any function of BART.

3. Public Service Announcements. Paid communications from any entity not described under
Sections Al or A2 of these guidelines which promotes or furnishes any of the following
goods or services:

a. The prevention or treatment of an illness, injury, condition, or syndrome recognized
by the most recent Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (“DSM") or the Centers for
Disease Control (“CDC”);
b. The recruitment or solicitation of participants for medical, psychological, or
behavioral studies;
Exhibits or events associated with a member of the American Alliance of Museums;
Licensed or accredited pre-K through 12 education programs or services;
Colleges or universities that have received regional or statewide accreditation;
Vocational or trade programs;
Theaters or performing arts;
Environmental matters;
Provision of services and programs that provide support to low income citizens,
victims of abuse, families, youth, immigrants, historically disadvantaged populations,
senior citizens, veterans, people identifying as LGBT, or people with disabilities;
Solicitation by broad-based contribution campaigns which provide funds to
multiple charitable organizations;
Diet or nutrition;
Sporting events, sporting activities, or services related to sports;
. Travel services, information, or promotion;
Licensed farmers markets, public botanical gardens, or public parks;
Commercial or professional trade organizations;
Credit unions, investment entities, or financial services;
Z0o0s or aquariums;
Governmentally funded public broadcast entities.

- o Q MDD oo

TLewvos3TX

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
2|Page





B. Prohibited Advertising Categories

Notwithstanding any provisions in Section A of these Guidelines, advertising content that falls into
one or more of the following categories is prohibited in the BART system based on inconsistency
with the goals and objectives described above:

1. Political or Public Issue Content. Any material that, when viewed as a whole, can
reasonably be regarded as directly:
Supporting or opposing a political party;
Supporting or opposing any political or judicial office holder;
Supporting or opposing a proposed ballot measure;
Supporting or opposing a law, ordinance, regulation, or proposed legislation;
Supporting or opposing a constitutional amendment or amendments;
Supporting or opposing an active governmental investigation;
Supporting or opposing ongoing civil litigation;
Supporting or opposing ongoing criminal prosecution;
Supporting or opposing a judicial ruling or rulings;
Supporting or opposing a strike, walkout, boycott, protest, divestment, or embargo or
groupings thereof;
Supporting or opposing the election of any candidate or group of candidates;
Supporting or opposing a policy or policies of a named or identified governmental,
business, or nonprofit entity other than the policies of the advertiser itself;

. Supporting or opposing any foreign nation or group of nations or any policy of a

foreign nation or group of nations other than the policies of the advertiser itself;

n. Depicting an image or images of one or more living political or judicial figures or
depicting an image of one or more political or judicial figures that have died within
the last five (5) years;

0. Referring to one or more living political or judicial figures or referring to one or
more political or judicial figures that have died within the last five (5) years;

p. Using a slogan, symbol, slogans, or symbols associated with any prohibited category
of this section B1.

o S@ o a0 T

—x

3

2. Religious Content. Any material that, when viewed as a whole, can reasonably be regarded
as directly:
a. Promoting or opposing any religion, atheism, spiritual beliefs, or agnosticism
inclusive of images depicting religious iconography occupying 15% or more of any
advertisement frame.

3. Obscene or Vulgar Content. Any material that when viewed as a whole, can reasonably be
regarded as:
a. Meeting the standards for obscenity as set forth in the California Penal Code Section
311,
b. Utilizing words, text, symbols, or images recognized by the community as extremely
vulgar, indecent, or profane for display in a public setting that includes minors.

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
3|Page





4. Unlawful, Unsafe, or Disruptive Content. Any material that depicts or, when viewed as a
whole, can reasonably be regarded as encouraging or promoting any of the following:
a. The sale, use, possession, or distribution of goods or services that are unlawful;
b. A contest or contests that violate applicable law;
c. Unlawful or unsafe behavior;
d. Detrimental actions to the maintenance and safe operation of public transportation;
e. Graffiti or vandalism.

5. False, Misleading, or Tortious Content. Any material that depicts or, when viewed as a
whole, can reasonably be regarded as:

a. False or fraudulent;

b. Deceptive or misleading;

c. Copyright, trademark, or patent infringement;

d. Constituting a tort of libel, trade libel, public disclosure of private facts, intrusion into
private matters, misappropriation of a person’s name or likeness, or depiction in a
false light;

e. BART graphics, logos or representations without the express written consent of
BART, or which implies or declares an endorsement by BART, its directors,
management, or employees, of any service, product, or point of view, without prior
written authorization by BART.

6. Content Advertising Specified Goods or Services. Any material that directly advertises any
of the following categories of goods or services:

a. Alcohol, or any material that depicts the consumption of alcoholic beverages or signs
of excessive alcohol intoxication;

b. Firearms or non-firearm weapons;

c. Tobacco, or depictions of tobacco-related products, e-cigarettes, products that
simulate smoking, or products that resemble tobacco products; or

d. “Adult”-oriented goods or services, including the use of brand names, trademarks, or
slogans, for goods or services rated “X” or NC-17 by the Motion Picture Association
of America (“MPAA”), adult book stores, adult video stores, nude dance clubs, adult
telephone services, adult internet sites, or escort services.

Notwithstanding items 6.a. and 6.c. above, depictions of tobacco products or alcohol
consumption are permissible to the extent that the purposes of such depictions are non-
commercial and are otherwise advancing a scientific, medical, journalistic, artistic, or public
health objective.

6. Inappropriate, Offensive, or Violent Content. Any material that, when viewed as a whole,
can reasonably be regarded as depicting or describing any of the following:

a. A graphic or realistic dead, mutilated, or disfigured human body or bodies;

b. A graphic or realistic human body part or body parts in a state of mutilation,
dismemberment, decomposition, or disfigurement;

c. A fetus or fetuses in a state of mutilation, dismemberment, decomposition, or
disfigurement;

d. Human or animal excrement, vomit, or graphic depictions of blood or viscera;

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
4|Page





An act of animal abuse as defined in California Penal Code Section 597,

The act of killing, mutilating, or disfiguring human beings or animals;

Genocide, mass-murder, war crimes recognized under the laws and customs of war;
Weapons or violent implements which appear to be aimed or pointed at the viewer;
Images of firearms, non-firearm weapons, or threatening sharp-edged device in the
foreground of an image or occupying 15% or more of any advertisement image or
frame;

Graphic violence or graphic sexual harassment;

Denigrating public transportation or the mission of BART;

Graphic images that, under contemporary community standards, would be reasonably
considered extremely frightening to minors or the elderly;

m. Material that is insulting, degrading, disparaging, demeaning, or disrespectful; or
material that belittles or is dismissive of genocide, war crimes, or slavery that is so
objectionable under contemporary community standards as to make it reasonably
foreseeable that the material will result in harm to (including loss of ridership),
disruption of, or interference with the transportation system.

—>TQ — o

—_ X

ADVERTISING PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

(a) BART may, from time to time, select “Advertising Contractors” who shall be responsible for the
daily administration of BART’s advertising programs, in a manner consistent with these Guidelines
and with the terms and conditions of their agreements with BART.

(b) BART shall designate an employee as its “Contract Administrator” to be the primary contact for
the Advertising Contractors on issues related to advertising content. Questions regarding the terms,
provisions, and requirements of these Guidelines shall be addressed initially to the Contract
Administrator.

(c) The Advertising Contractors shall comply with these Guidelines, and shall review all advertising
with reference to them. If there is any question as to whether a proposed advertisement falls into a
prohibited category--as outlined in these Guidelines--the Advertising Contractors shall refer that
advertisement to the Department Manager of Marketing and Research, or their designee for review
and consideration. The Department Manager of Marketing and Research or their designee shall
determine whether the proposed advertising will be accepted. In the event that the advertising is
rejected, the advertiser may request in writing that the decision be reconsidered. Upon such request,
the Department Manager of Marketing & Research shall consult with BART’s Office of the General
Counsel and with the Assistant General Manager for External Affairs, or the officer designated by
the General Manager for this purpose. The Assistant General Manager for External Affairs or
General Manager designee, on the basis of such consultation, shall determine whether the proposed
advertising will be accepted or rejected.

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
5|Page






BART ADVERTISING CONTENT GUIDELINES - OPTION B

OBJECTIVE

Through these guidelines, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART?”), in keeping
with its primary function as a provider of public transportation, does not intend to convert its
property into an open public forum for public discourse, debate, or expressive activity. In furtherance
of the discrete and limited objectives described below, BART shall retain control over the nature of
advertisements accepted for posting in the BART system, and maintain its advertising space as a
nonpublic forum with limited content neutral subject matter restrictions. In setting its advertising
standards, BART seeks to meet the following goals and objectives:

(a) Maintain a secure and orderly operating environment;

(b) Maintain a safe and welcoming environment for all BART passengers, including minors
who use the BART system, without regard to race, color, marital status, sexual
orientation, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, gender identity, disability,
medical condition, or veterans’ status, and avoid claims of discrimination from the
public;

(c) Maintain and increase ridership and fare revenue;

(d) Avoiding unintentional appearance of favoritism, association with, or bias towards any
group, movement, or viewpoint;

(e) Preserve the marketing potential of the advertising space by avoiding content that the
community could view as inappropriate or harmful to the public;

(F) Increase advertising revenue to help support BART service to the public;
(9) Avoid imposing demeaning or disparaging messages on a captive audience;

(h) Reduce the diversion of resources from BART objectives caused by controversy
surrounding advertisements.

BART retains the unqualified right to display, on or in its facilities, advertisements and notices that
pertain to BART operations and promotions, consistent with the provisions of its agreement with the
Advertising Contractors. Promotional materials shall include, but not be limited to, internal
marketing collateral, BART branding campaigns, and co-promotional campaigns with third parties.
Consistent with the status of the BART premises to which this policy pertains as a nonpublic forum,
BART does not accept free public service announcements. These Guidelines shall be effective upon
adoption and shall be enforced to the degree that it does not impair the obligations of any executed
contract. BART reserves the right, from time to time, to suspend, modify, or revoke the application
of any or all of these Guidelines as it deems necessary to comply with legal mandates, facilitate its
primary transportation function, to ensure the safety or security of BART customers and BART
facilities, or to fulfill the goals and objectives referred to herein. All provisions of these Guidelines
shall be deemed severable.

For purposes of understanding the meaning of advertisements, BART may refer to information
beyond the advertisement including, but not limited to, dictionaries, reviews by authoritative bodies,
or public information regarding the advertiser. BART shall assess whether an independent,

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
1|Page





reasonably prudent person, knowledgeable of BART’s customer profile and using prevailing
community standards, would believe that the advertisement complies with the provisions of these
Guidelines. In the case of advertisements that use double entendres or multiple interpretations, all
meanings of the advertisement must comply with these Guidelines. BART reserves the right, in all
circumstances, to require that an advertisement in the BART system include a disclaimer indicating
that such advertising is paid for by the advertiser, stating that "The views expressed in this
advertisement do not reflect the views of BART," or a similar statement, and BART may set
minimum size standards for the disclaimer to ensure legibility.

ADVERTISING STANDARDS

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines

2|Page





B-Prohibited Advertising Categories
Netwithstanding-any-provisionstr-Section-A-of- these-GuidelnesaAdvertising content that falls into

one or more of the following categories is prohibited in the BART system based on inconsistency
with the goals and objectives described above:

3-1.0bscene or Vulgar Content. Any material that when viewed as a whole, can reasonably be
regarded as:

a. Meeting the standards for obscenity as set forth in the California Penal Code Section
311;

b. Utilizing words, text, symbols, or images recognized by the community as extremely
vulgar, indecent, or profane for display in a public setting that includes minors.

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
3|Page





4.2.Unlawful, Unsafe, or Disruptive Content. Any material that depicts or, when viewed as a
whole, can reasonably be regarded as encouraging or promoting any of the following:
a. The sale, use, possession, or distribution of goods or services that are unlawful;
b. A contest or contests that violate applicable law;
c. Unlawful or unsafe behavior;
d. Detrimental actions to the maintenance and safe operation of public transportation;
e. Graffiti or vandalism.

5.3.False, Misleading, or Tortious Content. Any material that depicts or, when viewed as a
whole, can reasonably be regarded as:

a. False or fraudulent;

b. Deceptive or misleading;

c. Copyright, trademark, or patent infringement;

d. Constituting a tort of libel, trade libel, public disclosure of private facts, intrusion into
private matters, misappropriation of a person’s name or likeness, or depiction in a
false light;

e. BART graphics, logos or representations without the express written consent of
BART, or which implies or declares an endorsement by BART, its directors,
management, or employees, of any service, product, or point of view, without prior
written authorization by BART.

6-4.Content Advertising Specified Goods or Services. Any material that directly advertises any
of the following categories of goods or services:

a. Alcohol, or any material that depicts the consumption of alcoholic beverages or signs
of excessive alcohol intoxication;

b. Firearms or non-firearm weapons;

c. Tobacco, or depictions of tobacco-related products, e-cigarettes, products that
simulate smoking, or products that resemble tobacco products; or

d. “Adult”-oriented goods or services, including the use of brand names, trademarks, or
slogans, for goods or services rated “X” or NC-17 by the Motion Picture Association
of America (“MPAA”), adult book stores, adult video stores, nude dance clubs, adult
telephone services, adult internet sites, or escort services.

Notwithstanding items 4.a. and 4.c. above, depictions of tobacco products or alcohol
consumption are permissible to the extent that the purposes of such depictions are non-
commercial and are otherwise advancing a scientific, medical, journalistic, artistic, or public
health objective.

5. Inappropriate, Offensive, or Violent Content. Any material that, when viewed as a whole,
can reasonably be regarded as depicting or describing any of the following:
a. A graphic or realistic dead, mutilated, or disfigured human body or bodies;
b. A graphic or realistic human body part or body parts in a state of mutilation,
dismemberment, decomposition, or disfigurement;
c. A fetus or fetuses in a state of mutilation, dismemberment, decomposition, or
disfigurement;

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
4|Page





Human or animal excrement, vomit, or graphic depictions of blood or viscera;

An act of animal abuse as defined in California Penal Code Section 597;

The act of killing, mutilating, or disfiguring human beings or animals;

Genocide, mass-murder, war crimes recognized under the laws and customs of war;
Weapons or violent implements which appear to be aimed or pointed at the viewer;
Images of firearms, non-firearm weapons, or threatening sharp-edged device in the
foreground of an image or occupying 15% or more of any advertisement image or
frame;

Graphic violence or graphic sexual harassment;

Denigrating public transportation or the mission of BART;

Graphic images that, under contemporary community standards, would be reasonably
considered extremely frightening to minors or the elderly;

m. Material that is insulting, degrading, disparaging, demeaning, or disrespectful; or
material that belittles or is dismissive of genocide, war crimes, or slavery that is so
objectionable under contemporary community standards as to make it reasonably
foreseeable that the material will result in harm to (including loss of ridership),
disruption of, or interference with the transportation system.

—Sae oo

— X

ADVERTISING PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

(a) BART may, from time to time, select “Advertising Contractors” who shall be responsible for the
daily administration of BART’s advertising programs, in a manner consistent with these Guidelines
and with the terms and conditions of their agreements with BART.

(b) BART shall designate an employee as its “Contract Administrator” to be the primary contact for
the Advertising Contractors on issues related to advertising content. Questions regarding the terms,
provisions, and requirements of these Guidelines shall be addressed initially to the Contract
Administrator.

(c) The Advertising Contractors shall comply with these Guidelines, and shall review all advertising
with reference to them. If there is any question as to whether a proposed advertisement falls into a
prohibited category--as outlined in these Guidelines--the Advertising Contractors shall refer that
advertisement to the Department Manager of Marketing and Research, or their designee for review
and consideration. The Department Manager of Marketing and Research or their designee shall
determine whether the proposed advertising will be accepted. In the event that the advertising is
rejected, the advertiser may request in writing that the decision be reconsidered. Upon such request,
the Department Manager of Marketing & Research shall consult with BART’s Office of the General
Counsel and with the Assistant General Manager for External Affairs, or the officer designated by
the General Manager for this purpose. The Assistant General Manager for External Affairs or
General Manager designee, on the basis of such consultation, shall determine whether the proposed
advertising will be accepted or rejected.

apminecaL 1166946 BART Advertising Content Guidelines
5|Page






BART Advertising Content
Guidelines

Welcome ¥l Bienvenidos

Chao Ming [obpo noxanoeaTe Benvenuti

#eyLc Bem~vindo Dobrodoidli Bienvenue

Bienvenidos Yg—.s Yal fuRRpusy
. Nobpo noxanoeaTh
JHL Welcome @ufinendu Chiao Mimg

Bem-vindo Ben EAmT

g Bienvenid men Bienvenue

Dobrodoili #% : dudal g

£ 2 o€ AIHANKHS renidos

1rmen ,L‘_..J.‘-Ld Ch
Witajcie Bienvenue
s Yol BuRdouiu Bem-vindo
Bienvenidos AJHANAHE

On this train, everyone is welcome

Board of Directors

Planning, Public Affairs, Access & Legislation Committee
November 15, 2018





* In light of a few controversial ads that appeared on BART this year, members of
the Board have asked for reconsideration of BART’s advertising guidelines.

e BART’s current Advertising Content Guidelines, adopted by the Board ten years
ago, allows point-of-view ads subject to limitations such as prohibition of
demeaning, false, or profane content.

e Concepts proposed by Board members and public feedback include:

1. Enhance limitations on point of view ads, possibly similar to new SFMTA
guidelines;

2. Keep the current guidelines, but forcefully condemn ads that distress
our riders via District communication channels; or

3. Redirect revenue from controversial ads to legitimate BART purposes
that relate to the ads in question.

Marketing and Research Department





SFMTA Guidelines

Under the new SFMTA guidelines, ads are limited to:
1. commercial ads,
2. governmental ads, and

3. nonprofit ads related to certain topics such as prevention or treatment
of illnesses and promoting safety or personal well-being.

e The new SFMTA guidelines prohibit political ads and all ads that express a
viewpoint about matters of public debate.

e With guidelines that prohibit political ads, there would be fewer ads that
prompt public concern.

e But there are other impacts too such as a) prohibition of some non-
controversial public service or point of view ads, b) complaints from public
service organizations whose ads are rejected and c) reduced ad revenue.

e Using the new SFMTA guidelines as a starting point, staff drafted new Ad
Content Guidelines for Board discussion.

Marketing and Research Department






Draft Advertising Guidelines

oo For Discussion — Option A

Key changes from the existing BART guidelines include:

1. Expanding the objectives to better document the reasons for
maintaining BART ads as a non-public forum.

2. Limiting ads to only three categories: for-profit, governmental, and
limited public service ads.

3. Prohibiting political and religious ads.

4. Clarifications in other areas relating to obscenity; sexual harassment;
weapons; alcohol; and disturbing, disparaging, or frightening ad content.

5. Clarification that websites and other sources can be used for purposes of
assessing the meaning of ads.

Marketing and Research Department






Marketing and Research Department

Prevention/treatment of
illnesses or injuries

Recruitment for medical studies
Museums

K-12 education

Accredited colleges

Vocational programs

Theater or performing arts
Environmental matters

Services to low-income, and
other groups

Option A - Public Service
Su bcategO ries (Paraphrased for brevity)

Charitable solicitations

Diet or nutrition

Sporting events/activities

Travel services

Farmer’s markets/gardens/parks

Commercial or professional
trade organizations

Credit unions/financial services
Z00s or aguariums

Government funded public
broadcast entities






Option A List of Prohibitions

(Paraphrased for brevity)

Political

Religious

Obscene or vulgar

Unlawful, unsafe, or disruptive
False or tortious

Alcohol, firearms, tobacco, or “adult” oriented

N o U ok whNhe

Inappropriate or violent (e.g. covers a lot of subcategories
including mutilation, killing, excrement, disparaging or
demeaning)

Marketing and Research Department






Test of Option A

e Assembled images of previous ads including print ads on
BART for a full year — over 900 campaigns

e Applied draft guidelines to evaluate the clarity of the draft
guidelines, and to see what ads would be accepted or
rejected if the guidelines were in effect

Marketing and Research Department






Option A -
Examples of Prohibited Ads

THE MAN IN THE

HIEH CASTLE

. STREAM NEW SEASON DECEMBER 16

~amazsn

INSTITUTE FOR /1R
HISTORICAL ;
REVIEW

Not in any of the allowable nonprofit
subcategories

Frightening to minors or seniors

Marketing and Research Department





Option A -
Examples of Prohibited Ads

Not in any of the
allowable nonprofit
subcategories. Also
prohibited reference to

US TECH WORKERS! legislation.
Did u ow

i

: tower fell 1
-on 9/11?

' Building 7, not hit by a plane, collapsed

o= o ; i
| infree-fail 7 hours after the TwinTowars. P e

Over 2,000 experts call for an independent
igati tructio

Seek & Hire US Workers! ReThink911.org

e s e wiw.ustechworkers.com Not in any of the allowable
nonprofit subcategories

Marketing and Research Department






Option A -

Examples of Prohibited Ads

No on SB277 Measure D is not what it seems.

WHO SHOULD MAKE VACCINE DECISIONS FOR YOUR CHILD?

HY: LI

“Certain drinks containing sugar

are exempted...”

Official Text of Measure D

&0 DOEES OF 16 VACCINES WILL BE MAMDATORY FOR DAYCARE OR SCHOOL ENTRY
NO EXEMPTIONS AMD MEW VACCINES CAN 8E ADDED TO THE REQUNRED SCHEDLILE ANYTIME

“Certain beverages would not be
subject to the tax.”
City Attorney’s Impartial Analysis of Measure D

LEGALLY, VACCIMES ARE CONSIDERED "UNAYOIDABLY UNSAFE”
THE LS GOVERNMENT PAID OUT OVER 52 BILLION DUE TO VACCINE INJURIES AND DEATHS

“Exemptions for “diet drinks,
milk products, 100% juice...alcohol...”

WACCINE MAMUFACTURERS ARE SHIELDED FROM ANY INJURY LIABILITY Official Ballot Question

THE MANUFACTURERS CANNGT BE SUED FOR DAMAGES AND INJAURIES CAUSED BY VACCINATION

THE AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION |5 VERY CLEAR: On November 4, vote No on D.

“The patient shauld make his or har own determination abeout treatment™

CALLYOUR REPRESENTATIVES [VINO "D | Noerkeleyseveragerax.com

TELL THEM YOI ET INVOLVED B Ll JRCHOICE.ORG Paid for by No on D, No Berkeley Beverage Tax, major funding provided by the
BECAUSE THERE IS RISK, THERE MUST BE CHOICE AR e A R Ciniitg
: Not in any of the allowable
Not in any of the allowable nonprofit subcategories. Also
nonprofit subcategories. Also refers to legislation.

refers to legislation.

Marketing and Research Department Page 9






Option A -
Examples of Prohibited Ads

OVER THE PAST

MORE
THAN

LAWSUITS
V. TRUMP

€ EARTHIUSTICE
OVERRULING O —
TH’UHP earthjustice.org/trump

tajascoalition.org™

Not in any of the allowable Opposes policy and refers to political
nonprofit subcategories figure

Marketing and Research Department Page 10





Option A -
Examples of Prohibited Ads

THEY SAID, y ' Gt
“WEREGOING | B MVPATIENTS
TO TAKE YO U.“ 7 = timely access
m mrhrll TER. VTR & care services
MY UNCLE. - | b onibany coe
THEY NEVER '

CAME BACK. ' o

- SAHAG SAMARJIAN, SURVIVOR

LW

Have you experienced delays or denials of care?
THE ARMENIAN GENOCIDE 1915 “"e%‘;»“fw
WWW.REMEMBERANDDEMAND.ORG siory st KAISERDONTDENY.org
#rememberanddemand

Not in any of the allowable
nonprofit subcategories

Marketing and Research Department Page 11

Opposes policy of another entity






Option A -

Examples of Prohibited Ads

BANK#WEST
ﬁ BHP PARIBAS Trvs e Jor & chiaggg warid

WE HAVE MADE
A DECISION
ON TOBACCO. |

ducers, wholesalers and traders
e Comes primarily from tobacen

Actually,
let’s not.

= .- R -. ) g Fight for & healthy Intermet.
Supporting divestment zoz://a i

Supports legislation

Marketing and Research Department Page 12





Option A -
Examples of Permissible Ads

AIDS/LifeCycle”

e . 8 Human Trafficking

wesiseg o o in Contra Costa
& B Is Real! K¢

s, OFACE OF THE w
L DISTRIT ATTORNEY
% CONTRA COSTA COUNTY UL

M ME, Not MEAT. !
~\

Non-profit diet or nutrition

Marketing and Research Department Page 13






Option A -

Examples of Permissible Ads

Non-profit environmental matter

Marketing and Research Department Page 14





K55 Draft Advertising Guidelines

For Discussion — Option B

Same as Option A, except:

1. Adopts a narrower set of changes to prohibit ads that are dismissive of
genocide, war crimes, or slavery if it is reasonably forseeable that the
ads will disrupt or harm BART (including loss of ridership), or are
frightening to minors or the elderly.

2. Eliminates requirement that non-profit/public service ads must fit
specific categories.

3. Eliminates broad prohibition on political and religious ads.

Marketing and Research Department Page 15






Peer Comparisons

Washington BART BART BART
Boston DC Chicago New York ~ SFMTA | (current) (Option A) (Option B)

Allowable
categories:

commercial v v v v v v v v

governmental v v v v v v v v

non-profit v v limited limited limited v limited v
Allowable
content:

political no no no no no v no limited

. . , . ok if not a . ,
ok if not a ok if doesn’t ok if not a okifnotrea matter of ok if doesn’t
religious matter of support or matter of ; . ) v support or v
ublic debate oppose ublic debate IR S ;LN oppose
p pp p e pp
v
alcohol - v _ ‘/ v no no no no
(limited) (limited)
ok if not re
disparaging no issue of public no no no no no no
debate

Marketing and Research Department Page 16





Revised Guideline Options

Examples of Est Rev
Rejected Ads Impact*

Option A: Prohibit political and religious ads, and
limit ads to only three categories: 1) for-profit, 2) Slides 7 -12 S4 M
governmental, and 3) limited public service ads.

Option B: Adopt a narrower set of changes to prohibit

ads that are dismissive of genocide, war crimes, or

slavery if it is reasonably forseeable that the ads will Slide 7 only Negligible
disrupt or harm BART (including loss of ridership), or

are frightening to minors or the elderly.

Option C: Keep the existing Guidelines as is. N/A N/A

* Represents total estimated revenue impact over 10.75 year Ad Franchise Agreement

Marketing and Research Department Page 17





ool Possible Next Steps

1. Modify options based on Board feedback

2. Agendize for further discussion or action in January

Marketing and Research Department Page 18






		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19




BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Prepared for the Board of Directors
November 15, 2018

ms Engineer, RS






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Conversion Recap

-
/






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Damage Mechanisms

Gauge Face Wear

~ogy

RCF; Rolling
Contact Fatigue






Wi

et

BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Wheel Conversion Effort

1 Monitoring 25 cars for profile wear patterns.

Wear Rates

67%

86%

85%

Flange Thickeness Flange Height Max Profile Wear/Year Tread Hollowing/Year
Wear/Year Growth/Year

mCYL =BT3






e

BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Wheel Monitoring — Profile Contacts

i i

Gl ! i l B s L

Gl

" i
o ;@?&Z






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Wheel Monitoring — Ride Quality

Threshold
exceptions

Lateral g
accelerations

Vertical
accelerations






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Wheel Monitoring - Dynamics

e e






Rail Opt
Wheel Monitoring - Cost

Cost / Inspection
Cost / Retruing
Cost / Refurbishment
Cost / Replacement
Total Dwell Hours

Total Cost

Cost / Inspection
Cost / Retruing

Cost / Refurbishment
Cost / Replacement
Total Dwell Hours






BART Wheel / Rail O

Grinding Progress

81 miles ground to interim profile, 40%

130 miles remalnlng, 63%

San Pablo

Richmend

E %
’g‘
Sauﬁal:o | .)3
e

Alameda

Bay Farm
island

Pacifica

Linda Mar

Glen Frazer

U L ayy

Bay Peint Pittsburg
Martinez
Vine Hill

Hereules Martinez
Pinole
IicNears
Beach
Pachecc

Vine Hill
Glen Frazer

San Pablo
Nortorwill
Pleasant Hill

s Richmend
3
Costg Centre

Pleasant Hill
Lafayette

Clayton
Copfra
Costf Centre:

Walnuf Creek

Danwille

Blackhawk

Meraga Diablo
Piedmont gacyon
Danvifie Blackhowk
Alameda
San Ramaon

s
Island

g

\ San Ramon
~
Alameda

N

Brookshire
i Bay Farm
X tstand
Dougherty

SanXeandro

Asce

Brisbane
Pleasant

South San

Pleasa
lacifica
Dresser





Pinole Vine Hill § Hercules Martinez
Glen Frazer 3 A
Pinole Vine Hill
McNears Glen Frazer
El Sobrante Beach
i Pachece
San Pablo i 4 El Sobrante Congord

Son Pablo

Richmon
Richgron,

Wayreek

Diablo
Diablo

Danville P e ot - : x Danville

Blackhawk

fsland N Sen Ramon A,‘:{,’,‘,?;‘a IO \\\ San Ramon

~, ~
Alameda Alameda ™\

%, Brockshire

R i i
Bay Farm b o et Bay Farm

tstand % \/ e & islend
Daly‘Cﬂy : b pe % o \ Daly'City Bebie
CO\”\ i v \ . - Colma :

South San 4 i , : i
ancisco_ e s S o , Russell City

BN
N\

Millbrae

Pacifica
acifica

da Mar
3 Mar






BART Wheel /

Rail Monitoring

Rail Details and MT
Line:| 15
Track:| L1 2
Milepost| 157 3
Rai|  West 4
Cuve| TRUE g —
Section:|  119RE = i |
vis " 2 Lif-isTa
Rolled:]  Mar-93 £ /13
e = gy [ R TRE | &
I g 5% Max: 0 %
; e s g o Min:| 0 §n
Avg: ] =
Gauge: NDA
AREMA 4.2 Condition
5 | Com| TRUE
g‘ x| oo
8 [ Amp| 000 ) .
% it [Gauge?] TRUE g < i
£ ; " 28 §§ Width:]  NDA =
= Pos:| Undefined 3
3 Spalf]  FALSE ‘3’
Rough: NDA [
Check| FALISE | @ /
& | Flake] FALSE
_____ g | Spall LGHT
Shell:]  FALSE
MiniProf or Manual
‘ h L Area|  NDA : f
b Top Wear| 03020 S e R e T e e e TR
o S e Side Wear:]  0.0250 . ; :
/ : s o GFA| NDA g f»-*"’“‘"’“‘ ’“."""‘“"““\.._\.:
’ — st e Wetal o Rem:| _ NDA 2 7 : g
o Area 1 Target|  NDA § { : ]
Avea | Target: NDA = H
Grind Quality:]  NDA 2 f 1
z g Tovi NDA § )gi ¥
5 § H Gauge: NDA T ;
Field: NDA Pl
Pre/Post Grind:|  BASE ‘






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization

Noise Improvements

BALB » GLEN
105 5 3
100 Subway At-Grade Subway 560

=

T

T

13.2  13.1 12.9 125 124

Time

Oct 20177 § S 15 =5 .

L 4
Pkl X
ik, Lponryiind L

m B Cylind. Oct 17, 2017. 13:43. Vehicle: 2527 [C] 5-cars.
Rail Ground O .

Apr 2018

Frequency, Hz

m B 57-3. Apr 16, 2018. 15:59. Vehicle: 1250 [A] 10-cars.
134" 13

3 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124






BART Wheel / Rail O

Noise Improvements

EN
o

Unclassified

w
(¢)]

_C

w
o

M

N
[$,]

- 73%

Since July 2017

N
o

-
[¢;]

-

- »
f —
£
o
o
IS
O
O
o
O
F Z
|
©
€
o
-
®
L S
@)
| u—
i O
W
t D
O
| &
©
i)
»
£

)

e Grand Total

seeeeeses 2 per. Mov. Avg. |
(Grand Total)

Jan-17 K






BART Wheel / Rail Optimization |

Industry Interest & Participation

 Presented at WRI, Wheel Rail Interaction Conference 2018
O 200+ industry professionals discussing advances, technologies, and best practices in
wheel / rail contact mechanics, dynamics, and vibration.

d Participation in NYCT / FTA study on #7 Flushing Line wheel geometry

 Hosting London Underground Sr. Wheel / Rall Engmeer for a
demonstration of our efforts o F 5 .

O Interest from several other agencies including CTA, and MBTA in how

to better their systems
\\ Chlcago Transit Authority c p o O "_“w,,... A
~ Transpartéim;,iqr&m

APTA AMERICAN @ TemalogxpCenter, A€,

AMTRAK @ M hnsaihisiiis iy g V - 74" T

\\ PUBLIC
Transportation Authority marta \\® = m Sl . .
o i

TRANSPORTATION
Memhe‘ ASSOCIATION

FOLK SOUTHERN®






- U Continue with wheel and rail conversion and monitoring effort
O Grinder refurbishment

- U Friction Modification study

= - . e -

O Wheel condemning limits / lifecycle analysis

- O Advanced measurement technologies

O Instrumented wheelsets — track performance measurements from railcar

U Wayside detectors — railcar performance measurements from track






